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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZEN2A3ALEE

Year ended 31 December

20174 20184 20194 2020 2021 5

2017 2018 2019 2021

AREFT AEETT ARETT ARETTL ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Yrzz Revenue 1,197,774 2,238462 3,605,606 5153233 5,309,290
BREL AR A Profit before tax 444,745 937350 1226809 1,329,129 1,102,164
FEHAX Income tax expense (286,813) (536,382) (606,798) (588,655) (551,768)

BREHEEA Profit for the year attributable
AR F R G H to owners of the parent 159,151 401,664 613,795 485,805 279,746
W12A31H
As at 31 December

20174 201845 20195 20204 2021 5

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

ARETT ARETTT ARETTL ARETTT ARETR

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

LERAE Total assets 7,704,640 9,972,828 8,617,258 12,738,992 15,182,212
BESR Total liabilities (6,952,918) (8,884,858) (6,994,634) (8909356)  (10,930,837)
mBE Total equity 751,722 1,087,970 1622624 3,829,636 4,251,375

4 ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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EEEENEEARR

(1) ¥BEFEER
HZE2001F 128318 FRAEEKA
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16669 BB IT* D HlR E—FRER
#R30% K% 8 Leew: ™ EF KA
314% @ SRR K A104% 0 FRFFE A
AR 5504 BEIT - R 257% ©

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to
as the “Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of Huijing
Holdings Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

ANNUAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
(1) Continuous growth in results

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue for the
year was RMB5,309.3 million and gross profit was RMB1,666.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 3.0% and decrease of 6.6%,
respectively; gross profit margin was 31.4% and net profit margin
was 10.4%; and net profit for the year was RMB550.4 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.7%.

¥R 2021 Annual Report 5
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(2)

(1)

With the Group's precise deployment and continuous cultivation of
high-quality city clusters, the Group has widely won the trust of
customers. As of 31 December 2021, the Group achieved contracted
sales of approximately RMB8,004.7 million and contracted gross floor
area of approximately 982,000 sq.m., contributing to continuous
growth in operating revenue.

Strong financial position

Based on its long-standing grasp of the overall market and continued
positive revenue, the Group has been able to gradually build up a
solid capital structure to provide momentum for growth in each
industry. In 2021, the Group’s total assets reached RMB15,182.2
million, an increase of 19.2% over the same period last year ; the net
debt ratio was 72.0% and the net gearing ratio was 42.6%. The
Company's assets were in good condition and the annual dividend
per share was HK2.48 cents.

Distinct advantages in business strategies

In 2021, the Group will continue to adhere to the business model of
“focusing on residential development projects, while taking the
urban renewal projects as the core, as well as the cultural and
tourism-healthy living towns and the scientific and innovative
technologies industrial towns as the two wings (VA{E £ 2 & =
BER T ERAZL  XIREENMMEIEXRER),
which constitutes its “one focus, one core, and two wings (— == — 1%
)" blueprint, to enrich the diversity of profit structure and
continuously enhance the core competitiveness and sustainable
development capability of the Company.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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(2)

(3)

Going a step further in urban renewal

Since the State proposed in the 14th Five-Year Plan to "accelerate
the transformation of urban development, coordinate urban
planning and construction management, implement urban renewal
actions, and promote the optimisation of urban spatial structure and
quality improvement”, urban renewal is a major industry trend. By
the end of 2021, the Group will complete the land supply target for
one urban renewal project, i.e. the Renzhou Area project in Shatian;
the Baoshan project in Zhangmutou and the Xinwan project in
Humen are progressing smoothly and are expected to complete the
land supply target within the year; the Group will be a pre-service
provider for two projects, including the Hongmei Hongwuwo Area
project and the Wangniudun Town project in Dongguan. So far,
Huijing Holdings has obtained the qualifications of preparatory
services providers for nine projects and is in the process of obtaining
the qualifications of preparatory services providers for the other nine
projects.

Regional economic development driven by the science
and technology industry

As one of the “two wings” of the Company’s business strategy, the
science and innovation industry also achieved a breakthrough
development during the year: Huijing-Bay Area 5G Smart
Manufacturing Port (ES - /& [% 5G &5 #)%8 ) will help enterprises to
upgrade and transform, and open a new chapter for a smart factory
in Dongguan Eco-environmental Park; Huijing Industry-Zhihui Valley

SESEZE . ZEA) will build a comprehensive science and innovation
park, and create a science and innovation ecosphere integrating the
transformation of scientific and technological achievements, high-
end talent apartments, joint office space and commercial support
carriers; Huijing-Jiangbian Ancient Village project GE & + /T i& &
T8 B ) will lead a new style of civilisation, and will be developed into
a tourism resort project with characteristics of revitalisation of
villages in Dongguan. Through the advantages accumulated in the
real estate industry over the years, Huijing is promoting the
industrialisation of the research results of artificial intelligence and
technological innovation, helping the construction of innovative
industrial ecosystems.

£33 2021 Annual Report 7
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202 FHEMSEEAR] REER
ARBARRBER [FHRZ LRKNER
IR - Erh RERMR | ABBKULAL o

EEAVRFETELHERERAER828
FHA HMRSEEE  HALZHEERM
M) B E T BEE G EAREMT - 125
ESEERE A —REZ SR - HE 20214
12A3NHE ZREBRZENERTELES
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BB AEENBEREREEN  THEER
MRE - SEREMME o
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8 ERERERAT

In 2022, the real estate market will continue to focus on the keynote of
“stability” and the Company will adhere to the strategic positioning of
“penetrating into Dongguan, maintaining foothold in the Greater Bay Area,
and sustaining coverage of the Southern, Central and Eastern China areas

ORBHEREE M RANEE - M/BHER - R RERIME) in the future.

The total gross floor area of the Group’s new land reserves was 582,000
sq.m. in this financial year and distributed in five projects, of which Fuyang
City, Anhui Province and Chengdu City, Sichuan Province are the first cities
entered by the Group, marking another important pivot point in the
development map of Huijing. As of 31 December 2021, the Group owned a
total of 21 real estate projects and 4 parcels of land in 11 cities across the
country, with a total gross floor area of the land reserves of approximately
3,147,000 sg.m.. The high-quality and sufficient land reserves will ensure
the Group's sustainable development, extend the depth of the Group's
brand and refine the quality of its products.

|, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders, investors, customers that we
cooperate with, colleagues and the community for their support.

We are forging ahead with an exciting future. There will be unlimited
opportunities awaiting us when we are prepared to enter the second
quarter of 2022. We hope we can continue to work together to embark on
a beautiful chapter of urban development.

Lun Ruixiang
Board Chairman of Huijing
29 March 2022

Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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2201 F - EATTHR] BENERZE - £
ZOETEER 2020 F TR R B E T - PRI
BRE2ERELSMIERD - BHEEAPRHEZEL
ENEZHEKE D KR TR EFFHEIT
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FEUREEMBORRR T » ARERGTZREN
BRED - BRBLCMBNLEN  RERD
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R MREERNANEER  TRIER
AHERENRERA - BATRERERAQR
2B+ FRBETAKE - FRRELE -
EE R - NEEIIR 2021 FHEFERAR
BEEMERR  FEREEESRESET
BRE - mEAE - RS RRTAKEAK
HEMERES BT ERMEZ TN
- ARERFIEKFNERNEES -

BligEE L eXER  AHR=  mWRER -
ERREREREBERT] OED - AR T
MEETREME ] WBREL - AEEBRF
FIAEERERETEER  UWRMHEH S
LD XIKEEMMAIEXSER |0 —F—
BRE | EBRE  BAORTERT B ENK
LEBF N LA ERREN

In 2021, which is the first year of the 14th Five-Year Plan (A E R E), the
economic development in China showed a steady recovery as the country
gradually shrugged off the impact of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. As a
major part of the macro economy in China, real estate has experienced a
change from a feverish first half of the year to a deep adjustment in the
second half, with the market size remaining relatively high throughout the
year. The Chinese government will continue to adhere to the policy
keynote of “houses for living in and not for speculative investment as well
as implementing city-specific policies (B{ETY » B R )" to achieve
the “three stabilities (=#&)" of “stabilising land prices ((2{&)", “stabilising
housing prices (]2 f8)" and “stabilising expectations (F2FEHA)", thereby
promoting the positive cycle and healthy development of the real estate
market.

Under this economic and policy environment, the Group has maintained a
stable development momentum. It has been highly recognised by credit
rating agencies for its strengthening of financial security, maintaining of
adequate liquidity, enhancement of financial management, continuous
optimisation of financial structure and stable growth in contracted sales.
Lianhe Ratings Global Limited has assigned a “B+" rating to the Group with
a positive outlook. Meanwhile, the Group also won over ten investment
and brand awards in 2021, including the Most Valuable Real Estate
Company for Investment of the Year and the Brand Value Communication
Award of the Year. This fully reflects the Group’s track record of contracted
sales growth, gradual realisation of its geographically diversified land
reserves and above-average profitability.

Based on the mission of “maintaining foothold in the Greater Bay Area,
penetrating into Dongguan, and sustaining coverage of high value-added
cities in the Southern, Central and Eastern China areas (3 & A& @R - 3%
R MRPER EFRREREFIEEHN ™) and the strategic
positioning of “a leader in city value upgrade (i T {BIEF B LEME )", the
Group will maintain the business model of “focusing on residential
development projects, while taking the urban renewal projects as the core,
as well as the cultural and tourism-healthy living towns and the scientific
and innovative technologies industrial towns as the two wings (MAfE=E
BRFLER  UHTERAZD  XIRRENMBAIEEXEAME),
which constitutes its “one focus, one core, and two wings (—E — 1M &)"
blueprint, in order to continually enhance the core competitiveness and
the capacity of sustainable development of the Company.

¥R 2021 Annual Report 9
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REBHRATEREWMENEE  HRRBE
BYERE - HE2021F12A31BIEEE -
AEEEBSERZHARES3093E5ET ' [
LEIE R 493.0% ©

BHHE

HE2021FNANBLFE  AEBERAS
ErEMNEGHNEERENAARKL047EE
T BEHE200F1N2ANBIEFEEREY
39% AR ERERBE(RERE]D D
981,997 F ;K » WEZ 202012 A31 B IEHF
e R #)29.6% °

YIEHE

HE2021F1N2A3BLEFE  WEHEKRE
BRI RLA30ELNARKES30548 8
TG G AR BB IR EE B %) 99.93% © B ZE 2021 F
NRANBLEFE  AEBCERAEZEMEA
#9758,749F 7K - BUBTFEIBRAI31.1% °
ERAEMEHENMETHEE([FHEE))
HETFHFRAREKRT RLELH
21.4% ©

FAR AEBUERER/ILEE @ BEELEED
B R AR N PR Ep i & o

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties and, to a
lesser extent, lease of investment properties. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB5,309.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
3.0%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, including the joint venture, the
Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB8,004.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 3.9% compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020, and contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) sold of
approximately 981,997 sq.m., representing an increase of approximately
29.6% compared to the year ended 31 December 2020.

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from sales of
properties recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately 3.0% to
approximately RMB5,305.4 million, which accounted for approximately
99.93% of the total revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group recognised total GFA of approximately 758,749 sq.m.,
which represented an increase of approximately 31.1% as compared to the
previous year. The average selling price (“ASP") of the properties recognised
as property sales was approximately RMB6,992 per sq.m., representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 21.4%.

Based in Guangdong Province, the Group continued to expand into the
east and west regions of China during the year.

10 JESIZERABRAT  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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TRIT202D1FEWTEERIBETEREE  The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold of each city
RS in2021:

EERR
B BEEHE (B85 E EERR
BEEE Bl FHEE WEAD
Percentage Percentage
of total of total
Recognised recognised Recognised Recognised recognised
Location GFA revenue revenue
P ) FhR ARETT %)
sg.m. RMB/sq.m. RMB'000 (%)
] Dongguan 15,397 2.0% 9,025 138,961 2.6%
AR Heyuan 185,737 24.5% 6213 1,153,903 21.7%
A Hefei 35323 4.7% 10377 366,551 6.9%
&5 Hengyang 50,154 6.6% 10213 512,221 9.7%
& Xichang 6,591 0.9% 4829 31,827 0.6%
M Bazhou 212 0.0% 7623 1616 0.0%
P & Chengdu 254,887 336% 6,008 1,531,461 289%
=1 Fuyang 210,448 27.7% 7455 1568827 29.6%
st Total 758,749 100.0% 6,992 5305367 100.0%
IBHE RHIMA ARSI RN T & - Particulars of projects and land parcels are set out in the following table:
HE ARER
2& BEER AIHE fhité
BE@R (at1) RENE BEER BEER EiRfE
Group's Total estimate
equity SaleableGFA  Investment  Unsaleable  GFAfor future Total  Attributable
Name of Project interest GFA Sold (Note 1) property development consideration*  consideration Land cost
(FAR) (FAx) (FAK) (Fhix) (F7K) m)  (ARETT)
(sgm) (sqm) ) )
wegr B 100% 43147 8826 - 49257 - 559891 559,891 11442
Huijing Riverside Villa Dongguan
WEER B S 100% 32871 - - 5276 - 80059 80059 2097
Huiing Riverside Vila - Perfection Dongguan
BRE E 100% 20417 3976 - Q004 - 184600 184600 6929
Royal Spring Hill Dongguan
hILA Bx 100% 123653 557 - 24566 - 91,79 91,79 6170
ity Valley Dongguan
ERAHR £ 100% 120709 5091 15329 28659 - 31031 81031 1359
Huijing City Centre Dongguan

¥R 2021 Annual Report 11
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i ARRE
BEER FUHE st
fiEs (W= 1) EEER BEER EHRE
The
Group's Total estimate
equity SaleableGFA Investment Unsaleable  GFA for future Total  Attributable

Name of Project interest GFASold (Note 1) property development consideration*  consideration Land cost

HREF (fit4) E 100% 49749 8759 - 27168 -

Century Gemini (Note4) Dongguan - - 09
ERH(Hit4) EE 100% - - 25780 - - ' ’

Huijing City (Note 4) Dongguan

hAZR z 100% 62590 4770 - 11670 - 80097 80097 10135
Central Palace Dongguan

220% ] 100% 15006 1144 - 2745 - 105260 105,260 55708
Fenghua Mansion Dongguan

BEEETMRIL) [ 100% - - - - - 3701 B0 -
Houjie Town Baotun Village Area (Note2) - Dongguan

HEAER () x 100% - - - - - 259,154 299154 -
Hongmei Hongwuwo (Note 3) Dongguan

BE=HRR(H3) x 100% - - - - - 186,300 186,300 -
Qingxi Sanzhong Area (Note 3) Dongguan

DERNRR(#E3) % 100% - - - - - 115075 115075 -
Shatian Renzhou Area (Note 3) Dongguan

NS R 100% 180,785 - - 3544 - 186131 186131 %16
BundNo8 Heyuan

NEERE R 100% 370013 306084 - 125413 - 747084 TAT 84 9094
Nine Miles Bay Heyuan

RIER(F5) Mg 80% - - - - 530,707 290517 300414 9208
Dongjiang River Galleries (a portion of) Heyuan

AEERATRL s 100% 137,504 69956 @1 69960 - 1682723 182733 5054
Hefei Hujing City Centre Hefei

ERER BRI NE 5 100% 90619 # - 744 1,1055% 330283 330283 25
Huijing Yanhu International Resort Hengyang

252 i 80% - 61525 - 29% - 268977 215182 31824
Xingfu Distrct Pinghu

il it 90% - 26456 - 61,781 - 418600 376,740 12753
Yonghe District Chenzhou

BEH B 100% - 313338 - 9813 - 658,200 658200 19179
JieyouLake Xuzhou

EER i 40 - §7401 - 2679 - 38184 152737 42389
Feili Palace Xichang

EiRE i 51% 1447131 8348 - 8053 - 236421 120575 14727
Yongjinlan Bay Chengdu

il i 51% - 421 - 33 - 0277 35841 16136
Royal View Peak Chengdu

12 ESIZERRARZAF Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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&
BEER
ik:3))

ARHER
fhité
BEAR

ATHE
i) 33 BEER
The

Group's

ARE EHRE
Total estimate

GFA for future Total
development consideration*

Saleable GFA
(Note 1)

Attributable
consideration

Investment Unsaleable

property

equity

interest GFA Sold Land cost

Name of Project

HEER G 1% 5746 27143 - 18995 - 114898 5,598 11811
Royal View Palace Chengdu

HREL i 51% 53710 5763 - 3878 - 107,545 54848 16976
Royal View Riverside Chengdu

it &k 1% 210448 41387 63505 31947 - 578816 2951% 16669
The Tst Mansion Fuyang

ERLRERRD & % 10273 129206 - 64672 - 86040 404,760 27849
Huijing Global Centre Changsha

@t 2403234 1508528 188,735 677558 1638303 761795 6230913 37891
Total

* BEWEIER QAR E A * Refer to the cost of land which the project company acquired

Biat - Notes:

1 e A ERAEREYEANTIEEEE 1. Saleable/leasable GFA refer to the internal floor area of a property, which has
MR )TEE A ()i 282 208 Ep been derived from the relevant (i) pre-sale permit; (ii) floor area prediction
SREMEEESTE  AlAEETEEN report (B EFFETEAIMR ), where a pre-sale permit is not available for the
B RS i) Y 2 BB ek 20 2 B B BE 4 whole or a part of a property; and/or (i) relevant development indicators
JEEHAE TEEEEEEI®RE  8A approved by the relevant authority responsible for urban and rural planning
I 0 48 2 3 S SR L Y AR R B R FEAE s X or the Group's internal records, where neither a pre-sale permit nor floor area
EBRIDHEEE - prediction report is available for the whole or a part of the development.

2. E4EETNMN RSB EETmERTA 2. The expected GFA is not available for Houjie Town Baotun Village Area as the
BREASF TEESIE - ARE—F latest land planning remains subject to approval. For further details, please
2iE L ESALTBIRERT [Esgs refer to the subsection under the prospectus of the Company headed
B BAETABES — WREE T E “Compliance with Laws and Regulations — Historical Non-compliance
ARETRMIETHRNMERLES T Incidents — (A) Delay in Commencement and/or completion of construction
W | —&fe within the prescribed period as stipulated in the relevant land grant

contracts”.

3. R2021F 124318 BE=F R HEHE 3 As at 31 December 2021, the land in Qingxi Sanzhong Area, Hongmei
ERAERSERMNFEN LI ATERE Hongwuwo and Shatian Renzhou Area was zoned for industrial use, current
AR (PEmiEL R EANEEE /MRS o information (including plot ratio) is not relevant for our Group's purpose. For
BHE—FFE  BRHEARTBRRER[ZE further details, please refer to the subsection under the prospectus of the
E— TfEE I BT - Company headed “Business — Land reserves”.

4. HoEFESHMARR -t R EE 4 Century Gemini and Huijing City are situated on the same parcel of land and

MERE D EAE

therefore share the same site area.
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REWE

R2021F 128310 AEBEHEFRELEERE
#9188,735F 75 K ( 7] 1H & M 8 £940,024F 75
K)o EHE2021F 12831 BIEFEHRERA
HAREIOEETT

+ i e

BEUXNER  RZARME  BIHHEM
B Ko KB T B 55 HE S T 35 B 2R 23R 3% LA K2 3
BRI T AR AT I - 2N 52 B 42 4 8 B 1k b
BEREEZSH R ABEBERELESHYE
IHE - K201 F - AEETMERZEF BRI R
Pt @ (Plane @ R Im)I4E) « D — L
AREBRZEMIHZHMHAL o 72 2021F 12 A 31
B AEEMN T HEELNR3146831FHK -
A RMAREN BRI AY21 818 B RatR i o

TRIRR2021F12 A31 BIRAEB + it
I E 2D M A S

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total GFA of approximately
188,735 sq.m. (leasable area of approximately 40,024 sq.m.) with rental
income of approximately RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Land reserves

Leveraging on the Group's in-depth understanding of the property markets
in the Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta Urban Cluster, the Mid-
Stream Urban Cluster and the Chengdu-Chongqging Urban Cluster and
intensive studies on its target cities, the Group continued to strategically
develop and operate property projects at strategic and advantageous
locations in those regions. In 2021, the Group also expanded into the east
and west regions of China, such as Anhui and Sichuan provinces, to further
establish the Group’s present in those markets. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group has land reserves amounting to approximately 3,146,831 sq.m.,
with 21 projects and 4 parcels of land located in 11 cities all over China.

The following table sets out the GFA of the Group’s land reserves by
geographical locations as at 31 December 2021:

ks

=+ fE HEEME

NE HWEREME Aotk
Percentage of

Total land total land

Location reserve GFA reserve GFA
(FE7HK) )

(sg.m.) (%)

Hae Dongguan 33,323 1.0%
R Heyuan 858,791 27.3%
&HiE Hefei 69,956 2.2%
k5 Hengyang 1,189,818 37.8%
8 Pinghu 61,525 2.0%
BB Chenzhou 266,456 8.5%
=N Xuzhou 333,383 10.6%
ma Xichang 87,401 2.8%
i &R Chengdu 75,585 2.4%
B3 Fuyang 41,387 13%
§92 Changsha 129,206 4.1%
st Total 3,146,831 100.0%

14 CESIZERRAERZAF Huijing Holdings Company Limited



IEH]LFIH:H& Tﬁ
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RAREBH  ZEXGEER
BDHERWNT

([=ZEMWIETE  As at the date of this report, the progress of the Three-old Transformation
Schemes (the “Three-old Transformation Schemes”) was as follows:

BARBEILAE: ZEBAUINEE
Bl NET=&uE - BAl - AQFE
B A & R H - I IE RS BUT
RSB PIM R AR L - BER R B IHE
AT 2 b T 75 AR O & B HRCET - b f5E AR RE -
E“EEE%ﬂﬁi_jtsi1ﬁ:ttmﬁéffﬁév TEHAZAR

REHER 2002 FE _FEEBIH LM
FRAKERE - BEtstAEER36722F A
}Ko

EPIETER R : ZIBE ABUIENAR
BT EkE - AN IEE AT
52 P9 BR B B R A B 1+ 2= AR & (2020-
2035) WELEI N - Rk T BT ER
= BEEBUTHEBEEIITKRRE AL -
A BV FERTATALEUS TYESER & - FE P
g R R AT AT R A 0 2022 F ik
18- ZIBE WAL HTAE A14910F 75
K TBETEIAEE R 34288 F 5K ©

DHEFRMAE : ZIEB ZUENAB K
FRETHZEREEE - ZBEEMR
WHE REHEEL77321FE T K
BRIZEXED TR BENLHAR
MEAMIEXRM - FEtREEEREA
270625 F K e ZIEEM=ZELRRER
20217 AR - B BIE ST HE B i
FE o EEMHERR -

Project Zhangmutou Baoshan Area: The Three-old Transformation
for this project is carried out under the Cooperation Scenario.
Currently, the Company completes the negotiation with local village
committee, and moves forward to obtain the final approval by the
relevant government authorities and then apply to deregister the
current land title and be issued a new land use right. It is expected
that the Company will obtain the new land use right certificate
before the second quarter of 2022 subsequent to relocation of
residents and payment of land premium. The expected plot ratio
accountable GFA was 367,222 sgq.m..

Humen Xinwan Area: The Three-old Transformation for this project is
carried out under the Right Owners Scenario. As the project is
located in Humen area, which is within the territorial spatial planning
of Guangdong Province (2020-2035), the urban renewal procedure
is suspended until the completion of the planning by relevant
government authorities. The Company anticipates that the urban
renewal procedure of Humen Xinwan Area will resume in 2022
following completion of the aforesaid government work. The total
site area of this project is 14,910 sgq.m. with an expected plot ratio
accountable GFA of 34,288 sq.m..

Shatian Renzhou Area: The Three-old Transformation for this project
is carried out under the Right Owners Scenario. The project is located
in Shatian town with a total site area of approximately 77,321 sq.m.
The Three-old Transformation was currently completed and the land
used for the project was identified as M3 industrial land, with an
expected total GFA of 270,625 sgq.m.. The Three-old Transformation
for this project was completed in July 2021. It currently finished the
relevant land supply procedures and is under the progress of
construction.
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4. NARIEEHEBAZSE] TOHEMERSE 4 The Company had entered into nine agreements as preparatory

EHaEc HEBEEYER=T @ 2 services providers with relevant parties. The relevant projects are all
BRBRTS + 4RMLHDEFE A2,229,500F 5K o located in Dongguan city carrying out preparatory services and have
TERTABEETE B A [ B8 — B RE] X a total site area of 2,229,500 sq.m.. The Three-old Transformation for
EITZENE - ZZHEFBUOT the relevant projects is expected to be carried out under the Single

Party Scenario. The details of the projects are as follows:

HH NE B EE
Total

Project Location site area

(F73K)

(sg.m.)

i e B A BREE T il feef 3L 323,000

Xie Gang Li Village Xiegang town, Dongguan city

Y H A gE/NE (—H]) REMmPHIE 294,400

Shatian Al Smart Town (First Phase) Shatian town, Dongguan city

daFE REmAE 255,300

Qishi Xinnan Qishi town, Dongguan city

b REMARILEA 207,800

Cha Shan Shang Yuan Chashan town, Dongguan city

BEBE Rm BER 161,300

Qingxi Qingxia Qingxi town, Dongguan city

RILKE A & REMAILE 105,700

Chashan Waterworks Area Chashan town, Dongguan city

BT = REm& B = 210,000

Wanjiang Gonglian Area Wanjiang Gonglian area, Dongguan city

HIEHER & REEm iR 485,300

Hongmei Hongwuwo Area Hongmei town, Dongguan City

ERS 0y R HA 186,700

Hengli, Wangniudun Wangniudun town, Dongguan City

wet 2,229,500

Total

5. ANEFEIBEEGHEIEHM T EEHEE 5  TheGroupis currently working on obtaining the qualifications of the

HIRTHA R BT Tk - fARE B preparatory services providers for the other nine projects. The
BERT  ofl B S R = EME LM relevant projects are all located in Dongguan city and the site area of
FE4) 189 BT 5K o the nine projects for Three-old Transformation will be approximately

1.89 million sgq.m..
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Overall performance

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB5,309.3 million, which represented a year-on-year
increase of approximately 3.0%. Gross profit was approximately RMB1,666.9
million, which represented a year-on-year decrease of approximately 6.6%.
Gross profit margin was approximately 31.4%, which represented a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 3.2 percentage points. Profit for the year
recorded a year-on-year decrease of approximately 25.7% to approximately
RMB550.4 million and profit attributable to owners of the parent recorded
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 50.4% to approximately
RMB256.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Revenue

Revenue increased from approximately RMB5,153.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB5,309.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which represented a year-on-year increase of
approximately 3.0%. The GFA delivered increased from 578,747 sq.m. for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to 758,749 sq.m. for year ended 31
December 2021, which represented a year-on-year increase of
approximately 31.1%, while the ASP decreased from RMB8,898 per sq.m. to
RMB6,992 per sq.m. mainly as a result of the higher portion of GFA
delivered in Chengdu and Fuyang, such as Yongjinlan Bay, Royal View
Riverside, Royal View Palace and The Tst Mansion, which have relatively
lower average selling price compared with the higher average selling price
in Dongguan where the major portion of GFA was delivered in the 2020.

Cost of sales

Corresponding to the increase in revenue, the cost of sales increased
accordingly from approximately RMB3,368.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB3,642.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which resulted from the increase in GFA delivered during
the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to the same period in
2020.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased from approximately RMB1,784.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1,666.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, with gross profit margin being approximately
34.6% and 31.4%, respectively. The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly due to the regional portfolio of property delivery and the relatively
lower average selling price of the properties in 2021.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased from approximately RMB142.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB124.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to (i)
the decrease in the fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately RMB71.1 million; (i) the decrease in the
dividend income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately RMB12.2 million; (iii) the decrease in government subsidies
of approximately RMB9.6 million, which was partially offset by the increase
in gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net by approximately RMB82.4 million.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

Fair value gains on investment properties increased from approximately
RMB41.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB170.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, the increase was
primarily due to the increased fair value of the Group's investment property
of hotel in Hefei and the building including commercial offices and hotel in
Fuyang.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from approximately RMB157.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB123.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease was primarily
due to (i) the decrease of approximately RMB29.7 million of advertisement
expense for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to the same
period in 2020, as a result of the decrease in advertising and marketing
activities held for the year ended 31 December 2021; (i) the decrease of
approximately RMB4.1 million in salaries and benefits expense for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as a result of the decrease in the number of
employees.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from RMB510.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to RMB472.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. Such decrease was primarily due to (i) the decrease of
approximately RMB32.0 million in salaries and benefits expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2021 compared to the same period in 2020 and
(ii) the decrease of approximately RMB18.0 million in share option
expenses; being partially offset by the increase of approximately RMB12.3
million in other related tax expenses.
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Other Expenses

Other expenses increased from RMB31.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB129.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such increase was primarily due to the fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB85.5 million.

Share of Profit of Joint Ventures

Share of profit of joint ventures decreased from a share of profit of
approximately RMB196.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to a
share of profit of approximately RMB20.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which primarily due to the loss arising from Xuzhou
Huijing Jiacheng Properties Company Limited, joint venture, in 2021.

Finance Costs

Finance cost increased from approximately RMB135.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB150.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily due to the increase in
interest on senior notes.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB588.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB551.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, with effective income tax rate of
approximately 44.3% and 50.1% for the respective year. The increase in
effective income tax rate was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
margin, which resulted in the decrease of appreciation rate and therefore
the decrease in LAT charge rate.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

Net profit decreased from approximately RMB740.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB550.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, while net profit margin decreased from
approximately 14.4% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately 10.4% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease
in net profit margin was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
margin, the increase in finance costs and the decrease in share of profit of
joint ventures.

The decrease in net profit was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
by 6.6%, the increase in finance costs by 11.2% and the decrease in share of
profit of joint ventures by 89.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which was partially offset by the increase in net fair value gains on
investment properties by 310.9% for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Group operated in a capital-intensive industry and has funded its
growth primarily through cash generated from operations including
proceeds from the sale of its properties, debt financing and capital
contributions from shareholders. The Group’s cash requirements relate
primarily to acquisitions of lands, properties development, debt repayment,
and clearance of all applicable taxes for projects developed.

Going forward, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will be
satisfied by cash generated from its operating activities, banking facilities
available to us, and the net proceeds received from the Company’s global
initial public offering (the “Global Offering”) and issuing notes.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB2,702.4 million as compared to approximately
RMB2,083.7 million as at 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily due
to the increase in proceeds from sales of properties, borrowing from banks,
and issuance of senior notes. Substantially all of the Group's cash and bank
balance are denominated in RMB.

The Group's net current assets were approximately RMB2,614.8 million and
RMB3,638.7 million as at 31 December 2020 and 2021, respectively. The
increase in net current assets was mainly attributable to (i) the increase of
cash and bank balances of approximately RMB618.7 million as at 31
December 2021, (ii) the increase of prepayment, other receivables and
other assets of approximately RMB1,569.2 million; being partially offset by (i)
the increase in contract liabilities of approximately RMB452.9 million; (i) the
net increase in current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB629.4 million; and (iii) the increase in
provision for corporate income tax of approximately RMB82.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's borrowings of RMB1,068.1 million
(2020: RMB931.9 million) were borrowings with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had banking facilities in the total
amount of RMB5,033.6 million, of which approximately RMB1,728.1 million,
representing 34.3% has been utilized.
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The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period is based on (i) the contractual undiscounted cash flow
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and (i) the earliest date
that the Group could be required to repay. For further details, please refer
to note 46 to the consolidated financial statement.

Key financial ratios

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net gearing ratio (calculated as the
total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and bank balances divided
by total equity) was approximately 42.6%, which represented an increase
of 24.6% as compared to approximately 18.0% as at 31 December 2020.
The increase was primarily attributable to (i) the increase in both short-term
and long-term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and senior
notes of approximately 63.0% as at 31 December 2021; and (i) the increase
in the balance of total equity as at 31 December 2021.

The Group's current ratio was calculated based on its total current assets
divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates and
remained relatively stable at 1.3 times and 1.4 times as at 31 December
2020 and 2021.

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group's revenue and expenditure are denominated
in RMB. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not entered into any
hedging transactions. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are primarily affected by
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group manages its
interest rate risk by closely monitoring the trend of interest rate fluctuation
and its impact on the Group's interest rate risk exposure, as well as
regulating the debt portfolio of the Group.

Pledge of assets

The Group's bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 of
approximately RMB3,596.2 million (2020: approximately RMB1,896.1 million)
were secured by certain land held for development for sale, equity interests
in certain subsidiaries, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale of the Group with total carrying values of
approximately RMB3,292.5 million (2020: approximately RMB2,602.1
million).
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments that are contracted
but not provided for in respect of property development expenditure as
follows:

MW12A31H
As at 31 December
2021 F

2020 5

2020
(ARBFIT)
(RMB'000)

2021

(AR®T )
(RMB’000)

BRT#E R B - Contracted, but not provided for:
TEEWME Properties under development 1,691,648 1,339,627
FRWENBAGEE T Purchase of land through acquisition
of subsidiaries 578,040 491,790
TEREE Investment properties under construction 168,640 122,520
&t Total 2,438,328 1,953,937
EIERERERAERE Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities

MR2021F 124318 REBEMPFERATE
I

FLAIA SR B Y 5 2 B PRt r R
& MIRTTHER

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total financial guarantees are as
follows:

M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2021 £

2020 5

2020
(AR¥EFTT)
(RMB'000)

2021

(AR®F )
(RMB'000)

Guarantees given to banks in connection with
mortgage facilities provided to customers of
the Group's properties

3,588,717 4,516,730

AEBERETROTAAKREFELHENSRT
MEZEPRENIZIBRERHEER - RIBE
RLZHHRR > WEFIEREERS  RIAKE
BEEEENEPRNRITHREERIBEAS
RALfRI eI B R EISK

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to the customers of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case
of default on mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with
any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted customers to
those banks.
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Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the
banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage
repayments by these customers, the banks are entitled to take over the
legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the start of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the customers take possession of the relevant
properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect of
the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to customers of
the Group’s completed properties held for sale. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company that in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient to repay the
outstanding mortgage loans principals together with any accrued interest
and penalties and accordingly, no financial liability has been made in
connection with these guarantees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors consider that the possibility of the default of
the parties involved is remote, and accordingly, no financial liability has
been recognised in the financial statements.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

The Group (i) acquired 51% of the equity interest in Fuyang City Xinggang
Properties Company Limited* ( 8 [5 T 2 & & 2 B R 2 & ) (‘Fuyang
Xinggang”), which holds properties located in Fuyang City, Anhui Province,
in April 2021; (i) acquired 51% of the equity interest of each of Chengdu
Lida Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd* (A &R B HEFR AR A A))
(“Chengdu Lida") and Pujiang Gaoyu Zhongxinhai Real Estate Co,, Ltd* (3
IEEFHEEEEAMR QA (Gaoyu Zhongxinhai"), together with
Pujiang Gaoyu Xinda Real Estate Co, Ltd* CE/I SR FBEEXHARA
7] ) (“Gaoyu Xinda"), their jointly owned company, holding a total of five
property projects in Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, by way of capital
increase in May 2021. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 April 2021 in respect of the discloseable transaction of
the Company in relation to the acquisition of 51% of the equity interest in
Fuyang Xinggang and the announcement of the Company dated 21 May
2021 in respect of the discloseable transactions of the Company in relation
to the investment in Chengdu Lida, Gaoyu Zhongxinhai and Gaoyu Xinda
by way of capital increase. For the summarised financial information of the
Group's subsidiaries mentioned above, please refer to note 36 to the
consolidated financial statement.
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The Group disposed of (i) 40% of the equity interest in Bazhou City
Yongzheng Property Development Company Limited* (%81 17k IE 5
E F & A R A ) in September 2021; (i) 40% of the equity interest in
Xichang Shugao Property Development Company Limited* (78 & 1% /5 &=
I & F 2 A BR A F)) in December 2021; and (jii) 40% of the equity interest
in Dongyuan Changyong Industrial Investment Company Limited* (3 J&
BEKEEREABRZAF)in December 2021 and no longer had control
over the above companies.

The Group disposed of 50% of its equity interest in Nanfang Silk in February
2021 and no longer had control over the company, which had been
changed to the joint venture of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures or updates in relation thereto
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Significant investment held

On 21 December 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with
Shenzhen Runhang Investment Industrial Partnership (“Shenzhen
Runhang”), pursuant to which Shenzhen Runhang agreed to make an
investment of an amount not exceeding RMB1,288,240,000 in Dongguan
Huijing East Automobile Development Limited ("Dongguan Huijing East
Automobile”) and Huijing Group Limited, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has agreed to make an investment of
approximately RMB575,000,000 in Dongguan Huijing East Automobile
simultaneously regarding the three-old transformation project located in
Zhangmutou Town, Dongguan City. The above mentioned investment
accounted for 2.5% and 2.5% of the total assets value of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively. For further detail,
please refer to “Discloseable Transaction Cooperation Agreement” of the
Company’s announcement dated 21 December 2020, and “Supplemental
Announcement in Relation to the Discloseable Transaction: Cooperation
Agreement” dated 12 March 2021. For the financial information in relation
to the above mentioned investment, please refer to note 36 to the
consolidated financial statement.

Other than the above mentioned investment, there were no significant
investment held by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

*

For identification purpose only
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Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 545 employees. Total
expenditure on salary and welfare of the Group's employees for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB221.2 million
(2020: approximately RMB242.4 million). The Group has adopted a system
of determining the remuneration of employees based on employees
qualification, experience, position and seniority. In general, the Group
provides competitive remuneration packages to employees, which include
basic salaries, allowances, discretionary bonus, performance-based rewards
and year-end bonus. The Group operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The Group also pays
social security insurance for the Group’s employees, including social
insurance and housing funds. In terms of employee training, the Group
provides consistent and systematic training to employees based on their
positions and expertise, in order to enhance their expertise in real estate
and their related fields.

Future outlook

Looking ahead to 2022, the Group foresees that the economic
development in China will continue to recover steadily. As the real estate
industry is a major part of the macro economy, the Chinese government
has proposed that the general keynote of “houses for living in and not for
speculative investment ({F 5 ~%)" will remain unchanged and will strive
to achieve the goal of “three stabilities (=#&)", which are “stabilising land
prices (12 b {&)", “stabilising housing prices (¥& &= {&)" and “stabilising
expectations (#2 78 #i)", in order to ensure the positive cycle and healthy
development of the real estate market. The macro control of the real estate
industry and its liquidity requirement will continue to bring challenges to
the operation of the Group.
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Looking forward, the general keynote of the real estate industry control in
China will remain unchanged, and the corresponding financial supervision
will not be significantly relaxed. The “three red lines (= 1§ 4T 4% )" for real
estate financing, the “two red lines (A9 {§& 4T 4% )" for banks and the “two
concentrations” of lands will remain in place. Against this background, the
growth rate of real estate investment will continue to face challenges. The
Group will adopt a more proactive sales strategy, adjust marketing plans
and strategies in a timely manner and increase marketing investment. At
the same time, it will continue to strengthen financial security, maintain
adequate liquidity, enhance financial management and continuously
optimise financial structure to further accelerate the contracted sales of the
Group's projects and maintain a stable capital structure.

The Group will pay close attention to changes in the market environment
and related industrial policies. From the perspective of the domestic
industrial development strategy, the Group will adhere to the business
model of “focusing on residential development projects, while taking the
urban renewal projects as the core, as well as the cultural and tourism-
healthy living towns and the scientific and innovative technologies
industrial towns as the two wings (A EF#E BT &5 - LU EH
Bzl - XREEMEBLEIEZE BEE)" which constitutes its “one focus,
one core, and two wings (—% —1ZM )" blueprint, and uphold the
“people-oriented (JAAZ7ZK)" core value to continue to meet customers’
demand as its orientation by leveraging on its own strengths and abundant
resources to ensure adequate and quality land reserves, as well as by
linking the upstream and downstream industrial chains to bring integrated
renewal in residential and industrial development to the city, with a view
to providing customers with a more comprehensive and diversified way of
“new production GFTAEE)" and "new life GFTAEJE)". The Group will
continue to strengthen its presence across the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Greater Bay Area, vigorously boost its market share in regions where
the Group has established its presence, gradually extend its outreach
across areas with high growth potential such as the Yangtze River Delta,
Chengdu-Chongging and the mid-stream of the Yangtze River Urban
Clusters and continue to build a high-quality development road that
integrates “industry, city and people (Z ~ 3 * A)".
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TRETFH 202112 A3 BAREE LA The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the Group's land

BYEIE B 8D R EEREERA reserves by property project as at 31 December 2021:
72021%12H31H As at 31 December 2021
R0 512831 BT R021F12A31 BEE
Completed as at 31 December 2021 Under development as at 31 December 2021
e THE/ that
FIHE BE HE THE  TAHE ARAE
BEAE 2 RBEER BEER 0 REME  BEER 0 BEEE  RENE  4R%ER
Total
GFA Saleable/ estimate GFA
Unsaleable availablefor  Investment leaseable  Unsaleable  Investment  forfuture
Property Type GFA GFAsold  sale/lease property GFA property development  Total GFA
(sqm.) (sqm) qm) (sqm) (sqm.) (sqm) (sqm) (sqm.)
frEN$ER Residential property project
] Dongguan 162,706 935532 28033 - - - - - 1126271
AR Heyuan 100715 550,798 4104 - 285,060 39942 - 532,707 1570246
T Pinghu - - - - 61525 29% - - 84521
[ Xichang - - - - 87401 2679 - - 90,080
M Chenzhou - - - - 26645 61,781 - - 328237
&M Xuzhou - - - - 333383 9813 - - 34319
] Chengdu 30926 254887 35,354 - 431 3301 - - 364719
et Subtotal 294347 174,27 104411 - 107405 160,532 - 532,707 3907270
EEVEE] Integrated property project
E Dongguan 28659 120709 5201 - - - - - 154659
AR Hefei 7415 137,504 8436 - 61520 62,545 - - 21740
3 Changsha 04672 102736 129206 - - - - - 296,614
= Fuyang 31921 210448 10532 - 3085 2 - - 283783
5t Subota 132667 571397 153465 - 90375 62572 - - 104
RENE Investment property
= Dongguan - - - 41,109 - - - - 41109
R Heyuan - - - - - - 84121 - 8,121
= Fuyang - - - - - - 63505 - 63505
et Subtotal - - - 41109 - - 147626 - 188,735
EBRETEN Property project promoting
VL specificindustry
i Hengyang 12867 90619 2853 - 81369 14574 - 1,105,59% 1307878
NG Subtotal 12867 90619 283 - 81369 14574 - 1I055% 1307878
@ Total 439881 2403233 260729 41,109 1247800 237678 147626 1638303 6416359
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TREHFR2021F 12 A3 BAEEYEIER  The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s property projects
ROHBEEEEEROME  BIEE/ERKZERE  and project phases developed, including projects and project phases held

#IE B MIA B BER for future development as at 31 December 2021:
M2021F12831H As at 31 December 2021
21512831 ABAT Ran&12331 BER
Completed asat31 December 2021 Under developmentasat 31 December 2021
it i3
) BE  WHEE BAIH RE FugE kR FAER KB/t RERR £/t
BEME BEER BEEE REMR  BEER BEAR REEE RENR 4REER AREER B WIA BERE BIRH
Actual Actual Actual
Total estimated estimated estimated
GFA Total GFA  estimateGFA construction presale construction
Unsaleable avalable Investment  Total GFA Saleable  Pre-saleable Presdle  Unsaleable  Investment under  forfuture commencement  commencement  completion
GFA  GFAsold forsale property  completed GFA GFA GFA GFA  property development development time time time
(Fh%) ) (ERK) (FAh%) ) (
lsgm) (sqm) lsgm) (sqm) lsgm)
iBER RE 315867 05 B 8% B | - - - - - - R (X | 41 06
Hujing Rversice Vila Dongguan
il = 0w 5206 180 - - B - - - - - - - B w009 018428 11962
Hujng Rversde Dongguan
Vil Perfecion
L5 £ 1199 om0 39% - 1647 - - - - - - - W7 0028 011520 1739
Royel Sping il Dongguan
il 5 59665 priccd 13653 % - 148776 - - - - - - - 1871 114415 4B 1876
CityVally Dongguan
ERATRL 5 05 8659 079 59 1539 169988 - - - - - - - 16998 20151016 01648 1978
Hujng Gy Centre Dongguan
g Rz 168 o8 85 - 866 - - - - - - - B w12 51 w515
Century Gemii Dongguan -
B2 5 - - - B8 58 - - - - - - - BB 0 K 15430
Hiing iy Dongguen
hAZR R 1894 160 6590 4m - 79030 - - - - - - - T 04 210428 12
Centrl Place Dongguan
SE0E RE 60 s 51 144 - 18855 - - - - - - - 1885 28104 0919 a0
Fenghuaension Dongguen
5 56506 9% 105624 BB a1 - - - - - - -
Subrol
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Ra21£12A31BBAT Ran 12831 BER
Completed asat 31 December2021 Underdevelopmentas t 31 December 2021
it
AR /R
Afne RE FUgE i1 B/ RREE 5/t
BEMR . BEER REER REDE  REER it BRI g BIRY
Actual/ Actual/ Actual/
Total estimated estimated estimated
GFA TotalGFA  estimate GFA construction presdle construction
Total avallable  Investment  Total GFA Saleable Unsaleable  Investment under forfuture Total  commencement  commencement  completion
sitearea GFAsold forsale property  completed GFA GFA development  development GFA  time time time
5% ¥ () () @5 (%) #F %) (%) (5% (%) (B
lsqm,) lsqm) sgm,) lsqm,) lsqm,) lsqm,)
ShEs% i [0 EOT ] - B 1] - - - - - - -0 ey 01958 8125
BudhoB Heyn
hEELE g 73500 65471 30013 404 - 476508 285060 151 927% 984 - 00 - 81510 20181130 018120 131
Nine MiesBay Heyuan
RIEHEA) i} %635 - - - - - - - - - - - R T T
Dongjang Rier Galers Heyan
(epotionol
et 599860 100715 S507% 4104 - 690537 285060 851 927% 084 - A0 3707 1570246
Subtotd
AERAHPL A 37 o 8% - 615 4% 8% 0365 o M B 7 R 1A 7831 083
HefeiHujng Cty Cente Hefei
RER e i B4 12867 90619 85 - 106339 81369 59739 490 14574 - %83 11055% 1307878 2016428 0171030 2131
XiE Hengyang
Huiing Yanhu tematione
Resot
ke 8 514 - - - - - 61515 61525 36 0% - s - 52 200630 0001215 31
¥ingfu Distict Finghu
EE il 107319 - - - - - 66456 8%6 18863 61781 - vl - B 9B 063 2024922
YongheDistict (Chendhou
#EH il %38 - - - - - BB 54652 1718 9813 - W% -W% mey 14100
Jeyoulate uzhou
SEBER [if] 09 - - - - - 8401 460 9704 2609 - 20080 - 0080 2091018 200109 NBEN
FeilPaace: Yichang
et 120534 08 m3 1289 - 15969 891654 850 1478 174388 Y1 1150163 11055% 2515453
Subtotd
ke it 46 85 MR 8348 - R - - - - - - - IR iy 80712 0B
YonginanBay Chengd
BEER fi# 441 - - - - - 431 401 B 3 - 45 - 45 0006 20000831 NBKS
RoyelViewPesk Chengdu
2R K8 040 18% % 123 - 98 - - - - - - - gB 19103 191218 puilue:}
RoyalView Palace: Chengdu
SEL i# B0 387 53710 5763 - [353] - - - - - - - 6351 2081114 20190118 e
RoyalView Rverside: (hengdu
g 116357 2096 B 134 - 1167 4B 4Bl BN 33 - 85 - B9
Subiotal
i 1] 114879 319 21048 1053 - 590 3085 1440 20514 i 650 Y387 - M 072 2180202 2221031
The IstMansion Fuyang
ESEERL &b 081 64672 1027% 129206 - 25614 - - - - - - - 2614 2016830 0171225 2000630
Hujing GlobalCentre Changeha
3t 2668557 2981 2403234 078 4109 3144930 14780 689472 20499 L7 4166 1633104 1638308 6416359
Total

Wit R T RESWARR M - - EtD  Notee  Century Gemini and Huijing City are situated on the same parcel of land
(EHERI BB HDETE © and therefore share the same site area.
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Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr Lun Ruixiang, aged 54, was appointed as a Director on 9 January 2019
and was appointed as chairman of the Board and redesignated as a non-
executive Director on 25 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and the member of the remuneration committee
of the Board. Mr Lun Ruixiang is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies, development and directions, as well as monitoring the
operations and management of the Group. Mr Lun Ruixiang founded the
Group in 2004 and has over 17 years of experience in residential and
commercial property development and business development. Mr Lun
Ruixiang has been engaging in the automobile industry in Dongguan since
January 1995.

Mr Lun Ruixiang is a relative of Mr Lun Zhao Ming and the father of Ms Lun
Ying Kit.

Executive Directors

Mr Lun Zhao Ming, aged 57, is the chief executive officer of the Group. He
has been appointed as a Director and redesignated as an executive
Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company on 25 March
2019. Mr Lun Zhao Ming joined the Group in June 2005 as a chairman
assistant and was primarily responsible for human resources and
administration affairs. He was promoted as a vice president in November
2009, during which time he was engaged in overseeing the daily operation
of the Group as well as management affairs. Mr Lun Zhao Ming was
promoted as a senior vice president in January 2015, and was promoted as
the chief executive officer of the Group in January 2018. In addition to
monitoring our daily operation and management, he is also in charge of
formulating the Group's business strategies and directions and serving as
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lun Zhao Ming worked at Dongguan Humen
Port Mayong Xinsha Development Co., Ltd. (R 5= F2 P98 i 51 ) a 5
BBR/AF]), a company primarily engaged in industrial park development,
from September 2003 to May 2005. Mr Lun Zhao Ming graduated from Sun
Yat-Sen University in the PRC with a bachelor's degree in science in July
1984.

Mr Lun Zhao Ming is a relative of Mr Lun Ruixiang and Ms Lun Ying Kit.
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Mr Lu Peijun, aged 49, joined the Group as the financial controller in
March 2005 and became a vice president in May 2015. He has been
appointed as a Director and redesignated as an executive Director and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company on 25 March 2019. Mr Lu is
mainly responsible for the management of the financial department and
legal department of the Company and assisting in monitoring project
implementation and progress. He has more than 12 years of finance-
related experience before joining the Group. He worked at Guangdong
Development Bank (R Z & IR1T) (now known as China Guangfa Bank
(JBE£ER1T)) from January 1994 to March 2005.

Mr Lu graduated from South China Normal University with a degree of
bachelor in legal studies through online education in February 2005.

Mr Luo Chengyu, aged 38, is an Executive Director, Vice President of the
Group and the president of the Urban Renewal Group. He obtained a
bachelor's degree in traffic engineering from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology in 2006 and a master's degree in architecture and
civil engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology in
2014. From 2008 to 2016, he worked for the People’s Government of Town
Street governed by Dongguan City, responsible for urban construction and
planning, investment promotion, major municipal projects management,
industrial park development and etc. From 2016 to 2017, he was the head
of the Urban Renewal Industry Centre of Guangdong Zhongtian Group. He
is familiar with the operation mode and rules of urban renewal with rich
experience in project management, as well as excellent coordination
capability.

Mr Luo was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 7 May
2021.

Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson, aged 54, has been appointed as Executive
Director, Company Secretary and Authorised Representative of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company since on 25
March 2019. Mr Lau has over 13 years of financial control experience in
property development industry and has various experiences with listed
groups. He was appointed as an executive director of Soundwill Group
(Stock Exchange stock code: 878), a Hong Kong-based investment holding
company principally engaged in property related business.

Mr Lau is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr Lau resigned as Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 7 May 2021.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, MH, JP, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. Ms Chiu is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board.

Ms Chiu has over 32 years of experience in accounting, business
management and operations. From 2000 to 2006, Ms Chiu joined DVN
Holdings Company Limited (currently known as Frontier Services Group)
(Stock Exchange stock code: 0500), a company specializing in development
and sales of digital broadcasting systems, where she was the chief
operating officer and the senior vice president of the Business
Development and Corporate Affairs. During 2006 to 2019, she served as
senior vice president, group chief representative in Eastern China Region
and consultant under the Fung Group, which engaged in trading,
distribution, logistics and retailing businesses. She has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Kato (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(Stock Exchange stock code: 2189), Songz Automobile Air Conditioning
Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 2454), Huali University
Group Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 1756) and China Oilfield
Services Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 2883) since May 2019, 20 May
2020, 17 July 2020 and 2 June 2021, respectively.

Ms Chiu was awarded the Medal of Honor by the Hong Kong Government
in 2013 for her achievement and dedication in public services especially in
relations to the accounting profession. She was also awarded the
“Outstanding Women Professionals” Award in 2014, “Distinguished Alumni”
Award from Sheffield University and was also awarded “2017 Outstanding
Business Women” by Hong Kong Commercial Daily in 2017. In 2017 and
2018, Ms Chiu was awarded the “Justice of Peace” and “New Territories
Justice of the Peace” respectively by the Hong Kong Government for her
contribution to the community. Ms Chiu has been a member of the
Women’s Commission since January 2017. She was also a member of the
Equal Opportunities Commission from May 2009 to May 2017, as well as
the Energy Advisory Committee from July 2014 to July 2018. Ms Chiu is
currently a member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shanghai.

Ms Chiu graduated with First Class Honors in Economics from the
University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom in 1982 and holds an
Executive MBA degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong
Kong in 1997. Ms Chiu was the President of the Council of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2013, and the president of the
Information Systems Audit and Control Association (China Hong Kong
Chapter) from 2001 to 2005. She is a qualified Chartered Accountant from
England, a Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant, PRC Certified Public
Accountant and Auditor of the Information Systems Audit and Control
Association.
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Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. He is also a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board.

Mr Hung is a solicitor in Hong Kong and has over 26 years of experience in
legal practice. Mr Hung was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in May
1995. Mr Hung is currently with Li & Partners, a Hong Kong based law firm
and has been a partner of the firm since December 2014.

Mr Hung was a member of the Council of the Law Society of Hong Kong
(the “Law Society”) from October 2003 to May 2020. He was elected as vice-
president of the Law Society from May 2012 to August 2014 and president
from August 2014 to June 2016. Mr Hung has also been the representative
for Law Society in the Judicial Officers Recommendation Commission from
July 2015 to July 2019, the representative for the Duty Lawyer Service
Council since February 2018 and Chairman from January 2021 to January
2022. Mr Hung has been serving various appointments including the
Financial Reporting Council since December 2018; Communications
Authority since April 2017; Professional Services Advancement Support
Scheme Vetting Committee since January 2017; Hong Kong Examinations
and Assessment Authority from September 2013 to September 2019; Sub-
committee on Causing or Allowing the Death of a Child of the Law Reform
Commission from February 2007 to August 2021; member for the Law
Reform Commission since December 2020; and Lump Sum Grant Steering
Committee from April 2015 to March 2020 .

Mr Hung received his degree of Bachelor of Arts from University of
Winnipeg in Canada in May 1982. He later received his degree of Bachelor
of Laws in December 1992 and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in
September 1993 from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong.

Ms Lin Yanna, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 11 December 2019. Ms Lin is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Board.
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Ms Lin Yanna has over 19 years of experience in business management and
operation. From January 2001 to August 2008, Ms Lin Yanna worked as the
general manager of Shanghai Bus Financial Management Company
Limited (/8B BB ERABR A R), a company focusing on financial
management and providing accounting services, and was responsible for
the overall operational management, construction of operational structure
and formulation of overall management and risk management policies.
She was the director of and a member of the investment decision
committee of Shanghai Stonecapital Co,, Ltd. (LB HIEEGR AR,
an investment management company in China, from September 2008 to
September 2018. At Shanghai Stonecapital Co., Ltd, she was mainly
responsible for overseeing private equity investment and managing assets
of Shanghai Stonecapital Co,, Ltd.

Ms Lin graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in
the PRC in January 1999, with a master's degree in management. Ms Lin
also completed a master's programme jointly organised by the Shanghai
National Accounting Institute and the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
the PRC and received a degree of Master in Accounting for Senior
Management in December 2004.

Mr Chen Yu, 47, the chief financial officer of the Group, has more than 20
years of experience in the field of corporate financial management. He has
served as CFO or financial controller in many large listed multi-national
companies (including Merged Healthcare Inc., Northern Telecom Network,
MDS, Husky IMS, RioCan REIT, Pacific Securities and Canada Liuhe group).
He has international vision and global collaboration experience. He served
as CFO and general manager of Capital Market Operation center of Xinyuan
Real Estate Co, Ltd. (Z5tE % B MR A R]) from February 2019 to October
2020. Mr Chen Yu is proficient in the management practice of capital
market operation, financial accounting, cost optimization, budget analysis
and other modules, and has excellent financial leadership.

Mr Chen Yu graduated from the College of Economics at Peking University
JEFKE) with a bachelor's degree in economics in 1998 and an MBA
degree from Schulich School of business of York University in Toronto,
Canada in 2004. He is a chartered professional accountant in Canada and a
registered public accountant in the United States (lllinois).

Mr Chen Shaobin, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group. He first joined
as the deputy general manager of Real Estate Development Department in
the Group in April 2004 and became our vice president in May 2016. Mr
Chen is responsible for assisting the Group's outreaching affairs.
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Ms Lun Ying Kit, aged 28, is the vice president of the Group. In 2016, she
obtained a bachelor’s degree in art and business from the University of
New South Wales, Australia, and a master’'s degree in marketing from
University of New South Wales, Australia in 2018. She is in charge of the
Group's brand management, customer relationship management and
commercial sector of property with excellent market acumen, insight and
team management ability.

Ms Lun Ying Kit is the daughter of Mr Lun Ruixiang and a relative of Mr Lun
Zhao Ming.

Mr Wang Bo, aged 52, has been the chief operating officer of the Group
since January 2018. Mr Wang joined the Group as an executive vice
president in October 2017. Mr Wang is responsible for the overall
implementation of projects, project progress and quality control and
supervision of project progress and implementation. He has many years of
experience in operation management in property development industry.
Before joining the Group, he worked as the general vice president of
Guangzhou Huahai Group (BE/MNZE/G 5 ®), a property developer, from
March 2015 to October 2017; the president assistant of Guangdong Nimble
Investment Company Limited (ER&EIZE AR A F]), which is a
property development and property management company, from October
2012 to November 2013; vice president of Guangdong Chuang Hong
Property Development Company Limited (ER &S EMEGR A
A]) from October 2011 to November 2012; and the general manager of
development department and project supervisor of Guangdong L'Sea
Group Company Limited (BERF/EEE B R A E]) from April 2010 to
December 2011.

Mr Wang graduated from Wuhan University of Technology in the PRC with
a bachelor’s degree in industrial and residential architecture engineering in
June 1992.

Mr Wang resigned on 30 June 2021.

Mr Liang Yin, 45, is the chief financing officer of the Group. He is mainly
responsible for the financing management of the Group. Mr Liang holds a
bachelor's degree in computer and its applications from Nanjing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F = ZEM R A Z) and a master's
degree in Applied Finance from Monash University in Melbourne, Australia.
He has more than 23 years of senior management experience in the
financial and real estate industry. Since 1999, he has served successively as
the general manager of various domestic and international banks,
including Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shenzhen Branch,
Standard Chartered Bank, China CITIC Bank, ICBC (Asia) Bank of China/
Chinese Mercantile Bank and Chong Hing Bank. He has rich financial
professional knowledge and is familiar with the capital market and financial
industry financing rules at home and abroad. He has also served as the vice
presidents of Kaisa Group and the chief financing officer of Blu Ray Real
Estate Group (8% Yt B HIE S H), both of which are well-known listed real
estate enterprises. He has rich experience in real estate financing
management and operation at home and abroad.

Mr Liang had a position transfer and ceased to be a senior management in
the middle of February 2022.
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The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.
The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company'’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange since 16 January
2020 (the “Listing Date”), the CG Code was not applicable to the Company
before the Listing Date. To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has fully complied with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all the
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting than
the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Group. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was
noted by the Company during the period commencing from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report.

The composition of the Board as at the date of this annual report is as
follows:

Non-executive Director:

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman)
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Executive Directors:

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Lu Peijun

Mr Luo Chengyu (appointed with effect from 7 May 2021)

Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson (resigned with effect from 7 May 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen
Ms Lin Yanna

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Mr Lun Ruixiang is a relative of Mr Lun Zhao Ming. Save as disclosed
aforesaid, none of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The chairman, being Mr Lun Ruixiang, provides leadership for and
management of the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings and
receive, in a timely manner, adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information. He also takes primary responsibility to ensure that the
Board works effectively, performs its responsibilities and discusses all key
and appropriate issues in a timely manner. He fulfills this by encouraging
Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board's affairs and
ensure the Board acts in the best interests of the Company. He also
encourages Directors with different view to voice their concerns, allows
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensure Board decisions fairly
reflect Board consensus. The chairman is responsible for facilitating the
effective contribution of non-executive Directors and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors.

The chief executive officer, being Mr Lun Zhao Ming, is responsible for
leading the day-to-day management of the Group’s business in accordance
with the strategy, policies and programmes approved by the Board. The
chief executive officer is also responsible for providing reports and advice
to the Board on the performance of the Group’s business. The chief
executive officer would be supported by the management, who provides
relevant information and recommendations to facilitate informed decision
making.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period commencing from 1 January 2021 to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code provision
A4.2 provides that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Each of the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is
appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date and is subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary
and senior management of the Company. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging their duties to
the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), significant domestic and/or overseas investments, financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

A summary of training received by Directors during the period under
review and as at the date of this annual report according to the records
provided by the Directors is as follows:

HEE NS

B= 23
Attended

briefings/

Directors trainings
fmlm i S Mr Lun Ruixiang v
fmARBA S A Mr Lun Zhao Ming v
EME A Mr Lu Peijun v
BRRERE (B 20215 A7BHEESRE)  MrLuo Chengyu (appointed with effect from 7 May 2021) v

Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson (resigned with effect from

2I$ B4 (82021 F 5 A7 HEEEHT) 7 May 2021) N/A
HERBA T Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna v
RRIBE A Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen v
IR 2+ Ms Lin Yanna v
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Board meetings

Code provisions A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Board should
meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times each
year. The Board held six meetings and one annual general meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The table below sets forth the details of
the attendance at this meeting:

HE g HE g%
B|ITIRE BITIRE
Attended/
Number of Attended/
annual general Number of
Name of Directors meeting meetings held
fmIm LA Mr Lun Ruixiang 11 6/6
fmPRRF S Mr Lun Zhao Ming /1 6/6
EhE SE Mr Lu Peijun 1/1 6/6
ERBTE Mr Luo Chengyu (appointed with
(B202155 A7 AREST) effect from 7 May 2021) 11 3/3
RE&HicE Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson
(B2021 %5 A7 BEET) (resigned with effect from 7 May 2021) 0/0 3/3
HERBA T Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna 1/1 6/6
RRBEEAE Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 1/1 6/6
U e Ms Lin Yanna 1/1 6/6
EEEREE BOARD COMMITTEES
EEeKNIUBEREES HFWEESKRIESL  The Board has established the audit committee, remuneration committee

ZEE® UEBARRABERENER - AR
ALEESEZ RO HIFI EmBESR
C R AR E B R P, - IR ERRE
SRERHH -

PREFEEREENAMO KB RBILIFH
TEF BEREFEZEENIFLANERE
FNAFR[RAER] —H o

and nomination committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All the said Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of the said Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and
members of each Board committee is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.
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Audit Committee

The primary duties of the audit committee are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to consider any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor; (ii) to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;
(iii) to communicate and monitoring the work of internal audit and external
auditors to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services, and to report to the Board,
identify and make recommendations on any matters requiring action or
improvement; (iv) discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations,
and ensure coordination where more than one audit firm is involved; (v) to
examine the financial positions of the Company; (vi) to oversee the
Company'’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and (vii) to oversee the Company’s corporate governance
functions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four audit committee meetings
were held. In the meetings, the audit committee reviewed the audit plan,
reviewed the annual financial results and report as well as the audit report
prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major
findings in course of audit, reviewed major internal audit issues, reviewed

LHIE - ABEF - NS REBERSE  the financial reporting system, compliance procedures, internal control and
NIRFF - BB EEIN S AZ S R T/ES8  risk management systems and processes, recommended re-appointment

B REmERS  RRAXANLREAR
B RBT ESRERBE © AR RN G EE
ATE - BREAGNENALALT LR
AIRALREARENRBEE - TRIILK
SEAOBEER

ZEEREERE

Name of committee member

of external auditors and relevant scope of works and continuing connected
transactions, ensured the Company’s corporate governance function and
fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. From the perspective of the
Company's corporate governance, the audit committee also reviewed the
Company's compliance with the Listing Rules and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance at these meetings:

HEas
BITRE
Attended/
Number of
meetings held

WEERLE(EFE) Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (Chairman) 4/4
ARIBE A Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 4/4
MBS 22+ Ms Lin Yanna 4/4
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee has adopted the second model described in
paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Director and senior management member).

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are (i) to recommend
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for the
Directors and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (iii) to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment; (iv) to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors; (v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies in the
industry in which the Company operates, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; and
(vi) to consider and recommend to the Board for approval the grant of
share options to Directors and senior management pursuant to any share
option schemes in effect.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two remuneration committee
meetings were held. In the meetings, the remuneration committee
considered and recommended to the Board the remuneration package of
the individual executive Directors and senior management as well as the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors and fulfilled duties as
aforesaid required. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance
at this meeting:

HE &
HITRE

Attended/
Number of
meeting held

Ms Lin Yanna (Chairman) 2/2
Mr Lun Ruixiang 2/2
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen 2/2
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the period under review are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of senior
management (excluding Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:

A

Number of

person(s)

RMB750,000 or below 1
RMB750,001 to RMB1,000,000 1
RMB1,000,001 or above 4

REEES

REZEENIEREERIBFRIESFS
MR - BIR R RZTTE YREEER
AR RANEEEBAIELNEMEZZES
REZE  (\METREREZAEZTSIRE
B (WEAENARELES UK
REETESNAZREFTSREESE (v
EHNEFENEZTCNERR ML NEEE
AMERELIE VB IERTE
= AV I

REAZBEHRBEFHREASREIA - W
BIE BB REEARIRARE LB N AETT
B RBENEN - RERESNHEEZME
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to (i) review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; (iii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship; (iv) to review the policy on Board diversity and make
disclosure of such in the corporate governance report; and (v) to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the nomination committee will then be put to the Board for decision.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, two nomination committee
meetings were held. In the meetings, the nomination committee reviewed
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, reviewed the
board diversity policy, as well as assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, made recommendation to the
Board on the re-election of the retiring Directors and fulfilled duties as
aforesaid required. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance
at this meeting:

HFEER
ETRE

Attended/
Number of
meeting held

fin e (£/E) Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman) 2/2
RRBEEAE Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 2/2
=3y Ms Lin Yanna 2/2
BEHE Nomination Policy
(i B (i)  Objective

REZBERAEFERESEORE
A+ DA RS I RS - R
AELEBREE RECAEEAN
B -

REAZBEHEHER/EENBRT £
FERERRARE LERHEH TR
RBEBAAE ORI ZRAR -

(i) BEEE

AT EERNREAUEBTGRER
TR AEEENE  REZEELEN
AZBEETRY  EENERREE .
ERASEKEEMTELENKRRLE
5 - E ] R R AR B i s R ARG
UEBHAARTHERANESTESZ T
BRRENSHEZTEAZE - Z5HE
REHSE  WIHERMENEERER
El -REZESEERAGHENEBR
THRIBRERAEMA -

The nomination committee shall nominate suitable candidates to
the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to the
Shareholders for election as the Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The nomination committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
Directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or
the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

(ii)  Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board, the
factors which would be used as reference by the nomination
committee include but not limited to the Director’s reputation for
integrity, his/her accomplishment and experience in the industry
which the Group operates, his/her commitment in respect of
available time and relevant interest as well as the diversity in all its
aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the
Company from time to time. These factors are for reference only, and
not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The nomination committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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(iii) Nomination Procedures

The nomination committee shall invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the nomination
committee prior to its meeting. The nomination committee may also
put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy and/or as an addition to the Board, the
nomination committee shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting, the nomination committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by the Board
to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will be sent to
shareholders. The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any
other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
nomination committee will monitor the implementation of the Diversity
Policy and will review the Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the period under review.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

The remuneration paid to Ernst & Young (“EY”), the external auditors of the
Company for the period under review was RMB4.7 million and RMB1.3
million for audit services and non-audit services, respectively.

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and the Board policy and procedures are followed.
The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-to-
day knowledge of its affairs. The selection, appointment or dismissal of the
Company Secretary will be approved by the Board as appropriate at a
physical board meeting.

Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson resigned as the Company Secretary and Mr Lo
Chi Ho Wilfred was appointed as the Company Secretary on 7 May 2021 by
the Board at a Board meeting. The Company Secretary has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Duties of the Board and the Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness at least annually through the audit committee.
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The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives, and monitoring the establishment and maintenances of
appropriate and effective risk management and internal controls system.
The management is responsible for designing and maintaining an effective
risk management and internal control system as well as providing
confirmations to the Board on the effectiveness of the system.

Such risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
that there will be no material misstatements or losses.

Risk Management

The Group's risk management structure meets the best practice model
known as “Three Lines of Defense Model” with the first line of defense
being operational management and internal control measures, the second
line of defense being finance, cost and quality control, human resources
functions, legal and compliance, and company secretarial, and the third
line of defense being internal audit.

ol

FE—ER FEERR E=ER

1st Line of Defense 2nd Line of Defense 3rd Line of Defense
: - D N
s ¥ w35 ¥ y mm | mEwn
. - : i Hl External Regulator
: o HE Finance H :
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: Management H Costand Quality ! : .
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Internal Control Legal and Compliance
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During the Year, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a
comprehensive review of the risk management system, identified the risks
facing the Group and adopted the relevant countermeasures with the help
of external consultants, clarified the main department responsible for risk
management, countermeasures, objectives for improvement, and reported
the assessment results to the audit committee.

Internal Control

The Group's risk management system is integrated with internal control
system which was developed based on the COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) principles.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safequarding the Group's
assets, providing reliable financial reporting information and complying
with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems and procedures are also
established to identify, measure, manage and control, rather than eliminate,
different risks arising from different business and functional activities.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department plays an important role in enhancing
internal control system of the Group. It assists the Board in determining
whether sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards by performing
periodic audits over all major operations of the Group, under a rotational
cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising annual audit focus and audit
frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk
assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the audit
committee at the beginning of each financial year. If any material risks or
internal control defects are found, the internal audit department will
discuss with respective department heads to have actions agreed and
subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory controls are
maintained. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the audit
committee for review and all improvement actions will be properly
followed up by management to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent consulting firm to
assist the internal audit department to provide professional internal audit
services to the Group. Such appointment aims to provide leadership to and
enhance professionalism and independence of the internal audit
department.
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The Group complies with the requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance
(“SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group will disclose inside information to
the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls
within any of the “safe harbours"provisions and satisfies the conditions under
the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group will
ensure that the information is kept strictly confidential.

The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information and established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
Directors are authorized to communicate with parties outside the Group.

Through the audit committee, the Board has conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the Year, covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls, and it has considered the Group’s risk management
and internal control system to be effective and adequate.

The Board strives to maintain on-going dialogues with the shareholders
through various communication channels, for instance, the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. All such
information are available on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company was held in June 2021.
Through such opportunity, the Board sought to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy which
will be reviewed regularly to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to article 58 of the Company'’s articles of association, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
However, shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow article
58 of the Company'’s articles of association for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting.
The requirements and procedures of article 58 of the Company’s articles of
association are set out above.

Regarding proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are
available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

If shareholders have any queries in connection with their shareholdings,
please write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at:

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1066

Fax: (852) 2262 7584

Website: www.tricorglobal.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

The Company's articles of association has been amended and restated with
effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the respective website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. There has not been any change in
the Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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The Directors pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 92 to 224 of this annual report.

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of HK2.48 cents (2020:
final dividend of HK4.95 cents) per ordinary share of the Company,
amounting to a total final dividend of approximately RMB106,351,000
(2020: RMB218,643,000).

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “2022 AGM") to be held on
Wednesday, 22 June 2022, will be payable on Tuesday, 11 October 2022 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Thursday, 7 July 2022.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. The principles and guidelines of
such are as follows:

(@)  The Company has no fixed dividend payout ratio;

(b)  Any declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
made in accordance with the constitutional documents of the
Company and the relevant laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies
Law"). Pursuant to the Cayman Companies Law, the Company shall
not declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus (which, for this purpose, includes proceeds
arising from donated shares, credits resulting from the redemption
or conversion of shares at less than the amount set up as nominal
capital, and donations of cash and other assets to the Company), if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the Company is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities;
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Any declaration and payment of dividends by the Company,
including the amount of any dividends to be declared, is subject to
the discretion of the Board and, where required under the
constitutional documents of the Company and the Cayman
Companies Law, the approval of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”); and

The Directors may recommend a declaration and payment of
dividends after taking into account the Group's operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future
development requirements, Shareholders' interests and other factors
which they may deem relevant at such time.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(a)

from Friday, 17 June 2022 to Wednesday, 22 June 2022 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM. In order to be entitled to attend
and vote at the 2022 AGM, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on
Thursday, 16 June 2022; and

from Monday, 4 July 2022 to Thursday, 7 July 2022 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (a) above
no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Thursday, 30 June 2022.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above, no
transfer of shares will be registered.
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An overview and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” of this annual report. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the Year. Certain financial key performance
indicators can be found in the section headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group's relationship with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance are
included in a separate “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”,
which will be published in compliance with the stipulations under the
Listing Rules, and in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company for the Year.

Principal risk and uncertainties

The Group believes that the risk management practices are important and
use its best effort to ensure it is sufficient to mitigate the risks present in
our operations and financial position as efficiently and effectively as
possible:

—  Our business and prospects depend on the performance of the PRC
property market and may be adversely affected by any market
fluctuations;

—  Our expansion into new geographical markets presents certain risks
and uncertainties;

—  Our involvement in urban renewal developments may require more
costs and resources and the benefits from such developments may
not become apparent in the near future;

—  We may not be able to recoup committed resources if our land
acquisition fails;

—  We may acquire land parcels in the future, title or other defects of
which we may not be able to remedy;

—  We may not be able to acquire land reserves in desirable locations
that are suitable for our development at commercially acceptable
prices in the future, which may affect our business, financial
conditions, results of operation and prospects;

—  Our business and operations, including our urban renewal projects,
are highly subject to government policies and regulations. We are
susceptible to adverse changes in policies in the PRC real estate
market and in regions we operate;

3R 2021 Annual Report 53



EEGHE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

— VEHABSRAEEMN  HERMANYE
FBAMEERLE LEB A KRAT - A
BRI ELBE (BRELMHE - B2
MERFEGFENESRIYE)RERS
'R

— BfEGREELENEERR -

5 68 7 52 8] 1 7 o e 0 L R B S TNRETE M
A2HBRER [EREZR] —F -

EHAERERERSE

AATR 202051 A16 BRI EREZ AT Ak -
™ BIRBEEFR13BTAEKE K3
1TERXEE0.0178 JT Y 788,100,000 A% H & 3@ A% -
FEMBRIMDEITR AR ETWERE - ANARN
TR RIEFEA 139N BEETT c ZEFT
BRIEFHEBRESERIEBRRER [ KRR
BIRFTBIBERE | —SATEMEEER - AT
SHREAEBREEIAT ¢

—  Property development involve uncertainties, and we may incur
impairment losses of our assets (including our land reserves,
properties under development and completed properties held for
sale) if our property development or our property becomes less
economically viable; and

—  Weare exposed to the credit risk of our joint venture.

For other risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 16 January 2020. 788,100,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at the offer price of
HK$1.93 per share. The net proceeds from the Company’s listing amounted
to HKS$1,391.1 million after deducting share issuance costs and listing
expenses. Such net proceeds are intended to be or have been applied in
accordance with the proposed applications as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. A summary
of the use of proceeds is set out below:

FRAALHHEHREFR(EERT)

Net proceeds from the Company’s listing (in HK$ millions)

REFHAS REAFHAY KERARERZ

FEREAR HERE Sy AEH EithEx
Expected

Utilizedasat Unutilized as at timeline of

the date of this the date of this unutilized

Use of proceeds Planneduse  annualreport  annual report proceeds
AT E 78 B IR To fund development costs to advance 765.1 54838 2163 202%F 12 A
BRMAK urban renewal projects December 2022
BEMEEE (MARE Development and construction costs for 278.2 278.2 - iR

SRTPOLERES
e 2R/ MR) 1R

the development of existing property N/A
projects, namely Hefei Hijing City Centre

B RBEM AR and Huijing Yanhu International Resort
BEATRETREIE Repayment of certain existing interest 2782 2782 - i
TR EMER bearing bank borrowings and other N/A
borrowings
REESIEEEESRE To provide funding for working capital 69.6 696 - i
f—RARRE and other general corporate purposes N/A
it ] Total 13911 11748 2163

RAFEHRAH - WRE BT SFIRFEIARE
HiTF R 7 N E R N B R BB F5 R
1o

The net proceeds that have not been utilized were temporarily placed in
short term deposits with licensed institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong as
at the date of this annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Exchange offer in relation to outstanding US$115,000,000
12.5% senior notes due 2021 (the “Old Notes”) and issuance
of US$138,000,000 12.5% senior notes due 2022 (the “New
Notes”)

On 12 July 2021, the Company commenced the Exchange Offer to Eligible
Holders (as per definitions in the announcement of the Company dated 12
July 2021) with respect to the Old Notes held by non-U.S. persons (as
defined in Regulation S). The Company issued the New Notes which are
listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for refinancing
certain indebtedness and for other general corporate purposes. The New
Notes bear interest from 22 July 2021 at the rate of 12.5% per annum,
payable on 22 January 2022 and 21 July 2022. For more details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 12 July 2021, 19 July 2021
(published in the morning), 19 July 2021 (published in the evening) and 23
July 2021 and note 30 to the consolidated financial statement, respectively,
in respect of, among others, the exchange offer of the Old Notes and the
issue of the New Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance have been
used primarily for refinancing of certain indebtedness and for other general
corporate purposes.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report of the Directors and
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted
at the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$1.9 million (2020: HKS 14 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 47 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the Company may make distribution
to the Shareholders out of contributed surplus. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this
contributed surplus if it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30.0% of
the Group’s turnover for the Year. The five largest suppliers in aggregate
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 35.9%
and 10.9% respectively by value of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5.0% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Mr Lun Ruixiang

Executive Directors

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Lu Peijun

Mr Luo Chengyu (appointed with effect from 7 May 2021)

Mr. Lau Kam Kwok Dickson (resigned with effect from 7 May 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen
Ms Lin Yanna

In accordance with the Company'’s articles of association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Mr
Lun Ruixiang, Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna and Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen
shall retire from office at the 2022 AGM, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this
report still considers them to be independent.
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REEEER (Wit 2)

Name of Director
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Mr Lun Ruixiang

EBER
Interest of spouse
BRERA
Beneficial owner
RRALE BRERA
Mr Lun Zhao Ming Beneficial owner
EhEEE BRERA
Mr Lu Peijun Beneficial owner
BREBRE(B2021F5R  EBRERA
TREZA)
Mr Luo Chengyu (appointed Beneficial owner
with effect from 7 May 2021)
ABEE (B2021F5A EBREAA
7 HEHE)
Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson Beneficial owner
(resigned with effect from
7 May 2021)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:

(i) Interestsin shares of the Company

Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)

EREZN REML
HER G ay B
Underlying Approximate
Number of shares percentage of
shares (Note 1) interested Total  shareholding
4421,241,000 (1) - 4,421,241,000 84.15%
44,659,000 (L) 2,600,000 47,259,000 0.90%
(Hizt3)
(Note 3)
- 9,600,000 9,600,000 0.18%
- 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.11%
- 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.11%
- 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.03%
- 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.04%
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(ii)

Name of Director

it e

Mr Lun Ruixiang

w5

-

F L RRZALRZSR G (78] G
EARFRPBEMFEXVER)

REBEZBEESEMR I REBEARQA
4,421,241,000 B B& ) BV EE B IZ R AR A B B R
WL EES2EHRE -

158 KA T 44,659,000 MRS 17 HY FE 2% 122 AL A (R
NAHROZLTEZ2EHBE  MBEF
HRHEEG - BRI =L TR AR ERIT
BAERABFMEFAREE ORGP HEEER
m#m%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁtimM@ lics
BHERHBERY  BAERARRLI =L L
%%EH%EM%%¢%ﬁ%A°

RAEQBEEEE S

REEE AR

ERERAERA
Wui Ying Holdmgs L|m|ted

Notes:

(ii)

Name of associated company

The letter "L" denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of
the SFO) in such shares.

Wui Ying Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, holding 4,421,241,000 shares of the Company, is beneficially wholly-
owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang.

Wui Shing Holdings Limited, holding 44,659,000 shares of the Company, is
beneficially wholly-owned by Ms Chan Hau Wan and Ms Chan Hau Wan is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Wui Shing
Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO. Since Mr Lun Ruixiang is the spouse of
Ms Chan Hau Wan, he is also deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares which are held by Ms Chan Hau Wan by virtue of the SFO.

Interests in the associated companies

REEEN
HHEHHE

Number of

RSB
RER DL
Percentage of
shareholding
interests in the

class of
securities in
the associated associated

Nature of interests company

ESHBA 1

Beneficial owner

company

100%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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FERENADLTIIRHNREIEEIE{? SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
RS R R B SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

R2021E12 A318  MTAT (BRESEALD  Asat 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a Director or
TSRS THABIN ERATRMDEMEEIX  chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
A RESSARE  ROIREZESFLEIEE  shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the

BI25 336 IKEE AR R Bl 17 & 5 it register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:
RGHE BEERN IREBL
RRE® /A BmtE (Hiat1) B R A B Ak
Underlying Approximate
Number of shares percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interests shares (Note 1) interested Total shareholding
ERERERAR XEEERER 4,421,241,000 (L) - 4421,241,000 84.15%
Wui Ying Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled corporation
BO=& T [T S 4,421,241,000 (L) 9,600,000 4430841000 8433%
Ms Chan Hau Wan Interest of spouse (fizt2)
(Note 2)
XEfEER 44,659,000 (1) - 44,659,000 0.85%
Interest in a controlled corporation
ESHEBA - 2,600,000 2,600,000 0.05%

Beneficial owner

Htat - Notes:

1. FELRERZATRZERMDH A (E 1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of
FEREFRBEERGIZEXVED) the SFO) in such shares.

2. BAERRF 4421241000 R D EERIZRE 2 Wui Ying Holdings Limited, holding 4,421,241,000 shares of the Company, is

RAFEMEFELEEREERR - MREK beneficially wholly-owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang and Mr Lun Ruixiang is
BHELBEGRD  minErEBRARER deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Wui Ying
TREM AR FAFEREE MR P A Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO. Since Ms Chan Hau Wan is the spouse
HeomRRE =Lt ARIEELENERRG of Mr Lun Ruixiang, she is also deemed to be interested in the same number
RIEEZ RBEGRD - BITER AR RIGEF of shares which are held by Mr Lun Ruixiang by virtue of the SFO.

FAEMEREE M R RE R -

B EXFrIEESN  R2021F 12 A31H - #  Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person had registered
A TIAARDT 2D BB EARE  an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
EENEERDE BIREERAATIHEE  Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
Rz EERSAR - pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), effective
from 6 April 2019:

1. Purpose:

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide
selected participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
selected participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme provides the Company with a flexible means of
retaining, incentivizing, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected
participants.

2. Participants:

The Board may determine any directors and employees of any
member of the Group, whom the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed to the Group, to take up options
to subscribes for shares of the Company.

3.  Total number of shares available for issue under the
Pre- IPO Share Option Scheme and the percentage of
issued share capital as of the date of this report:

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of ordinary shares
currently available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 65,500,000, representing 1.25% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

4.  The period within which shares must be taken up under
an option:

The period within which the Shares shall be taken up under an
option shall be a period during which the option may be
exercised. Subject to the provisions for early termination
contained in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, such period
shall be the time as indicated in the letter of grant to each
grantee.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments must be
made:

An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
within 10 business days from the date of offer of grant of the
option upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a payment of RMB1.0.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price in relation to each option granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be 50.0% to 70.0% of
the final offer price per Offer Share (as defined in the
Prospectus) in Hong Kong dollars.

The remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was expired on the Listing
Date. Subsequent to the expiry of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, no further option can be granted thereunder but in
all other respects, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force and all options granted prior to
such expiry shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance therewith.
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BEE RN AREEf B EZF The movements in the number of share options under the
HRBERES AR AFENESG Pre- IPO Share Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:
MERTE
BREETHRAZA
Number of shares under the options
®2021 % rEE FEE rEE FEE  Rnf gk BEB/TES
SHRERBRIRSEE 118 i Cil:d Fis | A% 12A31H fi® (B/R/%)
Asat Vesting/
Asat  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 1 Exercise Exercise
Date of grant 1 January during during during during December price per period
Category and name of participant  (dd/mm/yyyy) 2021  theYear  theYear  theYear  theYear 2021 share  (dd/mm/yyyy)
BE(Wits)
Directors (Note 5)
WA 06/04/2019 8600000 - - - - BE00000  096SETT (Hist1)
MrLun Ruixiang HK$0.965 (Note 1)
23/10/2019 1,000,000 - - - - 1000000 0965 (Hist1)
HK$0.965 (Note 1)
RERELE 06/04/2019 6000000 - - - - 6000000 0965 T (Hiat1)
MrLun Zhao Ming HK$0.965 Note 1)
ERERA 06/04/2019 6000000 - - - - 6000000 09653 (H1)
MrLu Peijun HK$0.965 (Note 1)
BRREEWFS) 06/04/2019 1,800,000 - - - - 1800000 135TET (Hist1)
MrLuo Chengyu (Note 3) HK$1.351 (Note 1)
e 23400000 - - - - 13400000
(Br35)
Sub-total (Note 5)
EZUBEA
Associate of Director
RO=L L (H72) 23/10/2019 2600000 - - - — 2600000 0965 (W)
Ms Chan Hau Wan (Note 2) HK$0.965 Note 1)
Nt 2,600,000 - - - - 2,600,000
Sub-total
B8
Employees
At 06/04/2019 14900000 - - - - 4900000 0965 ETT (Hiat1)
In aggregate HK$0.965 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 7,700000 - - - - 7700000 125457 (Hist1)
HK$1.2545 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 9900000 - - - 2950000 6950000 1351TT (W)
(B1z5)
(Note 5) HK$1.351 Note 1)
06/04/2019 7250000 - - - 2100000 5150000 13517 (W)
HK$1351 (Note 1)
23/10/2019 4800000 - - - — 4800000 135TET (Hit1)
HK$1351 (Note 1)
et 44,500,000 - - - 5050000 39,500,000
Sub-total
gt 70,550,000 - - - 5,050,000 65,500,000
Total
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Notes:

20.0% of the underlying shares of the Company is vested from
16 January 2020 to 15 January 2021; 20.0% of the underlying
shares of the Company is vested from 16 January 2021 to 15
January 2022; 20.0% of the underlying shares of the Company
is vested from 16 January 2022 to 15 January 2023; 20.0% of
the underlying shares of the Company is vested from 16
January 2023 to 15 January 2024; 20.0% of the underlying
shares of the Company is vested from 16 January 2024 to 15
January 2025.

Ms Chan Hau Wan is the spouse of Mr Lun Ruixiang. Pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Ms Chan Hau Wan is an
associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang.

The underlying shares of the Company will be vested in five
vesting periods as the same manner in note 1 above. The first
vesting date varies for different grantees from 19 June 2020 to
14 August 2021.

The underlying shares of the Company will be vested in five
vesting periods as the same manner in note 1 above. The first
vesting date varies for different grantees from 4 May 2021 to 14
August 2021.

Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson has been resigned as a Director
whereas Mr Luo Chengyu has been appointed as a Director,
both with effect from 7 May 2021. The sub-total of numbers of
shares under the options for Directors as at 1 January 2021
covers those underlying shares of the Company granted to Mr
Luo Chengyu on 6 April 2019. The sub-total of numbers of
shares under the options for Employees as at 1 January 2021
covers those underlying shares of the Company granted to Mr
Lau Kam Kwok Dickson granted on 6 April 2019.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of
the Shareholders on 11 December 2019. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme:

Purpose:

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide selected participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage selected participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will provide
the Company with a flexible means of retaining,
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to selected participants.

Participants:

Any individual, being an employee, director, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, franchisee
partner, adviser of contractor of any member of the
Group or any affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s)
considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed or
will contribute to the Group is entitled to be offered and
granted options.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Post- IPO Share Option Scheme and the percentage
of issued share capital as at the date of this report:

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes is 525,400,000, being no more than 10.0% of
the total number of shares in issue on 16 January 2020,
being the date the shares of the Company commence
trading on the Stock Exchange.
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The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company at any time must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time (“Option Scheme
Limit").

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Post- IPO Share Option Scheme:

The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the option granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1.0% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant of further options above
this limit shall be subject to approval of the shareholders
of the Company at general meeting, with such
participant and his close associates (or his associates if
such participant is a connected person of the Company)
abstaining from voting.

The period within which shares must be taken up
under an option:

The period which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine but in any event not exceeding
ten years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

The Board may at its discretion impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition
to those expressly set forth in the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as it may think fit (which shall be stated in the
offer letter) including, among other things, vesting
period and conditions, restrictions or limitations relating
to the achievement of operating or financial targets.
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ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which payments
must be made:

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and
the option to which offer relates shall be deemed to
have been granted and to have taken effect when the
duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of
the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of
shares of the Company in respect of which the offer is
accepted clearly stated therein. The grantee shall pay
HKS$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for
the grant, which must be received by the Company
within 20 business days from the date on which the
offer letter is delivered to the grantee. Any offer may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of shares
for which it is offered provided that it is accepted in a
board lot for dealing in the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by
the Board but shall be not less than the higher of () the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme:

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Listing
Date.

As of the date of this annual report, no options were
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme.
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On 22 July 2021, the Company issued the 12.5% senior notes due 2022, in
an aggregate principal amount of US$138 million (the “Notes”). Wui Ying
Holdings Limited, being directly wholly-owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang and
thus a connected person of the Company, has subscribed the Notes in an
aggregate amount of US$5.4 million. As the Notes were issued under
normal commercial terms, and there the Notes were not secured by the
assets of the Group, the subscription of the Notes by Wui Ying constituted
fully exempt connected transaction. For details of the issuance of the
Notes, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 12 July 2021,
19 July 2021 (published in the morning), 19 July 2021 (published in the
evening) and 23 July 2021 respectively.

Please refer to the share option schemes operated by the Company as
disclosed above and in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from these, neither at the end of nor at any time during the Year did
there subsist any arrangement to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or holding companies, was a party, and the objects of or one of
the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

None of the Directors (or any entities connected with the Directors) had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.

During the financial year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholder
of the Company and their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has any interests in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Other than the Directors’ letters of appointment, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
Year.
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The Company shall receive, from each of the controlling shareholders of
the Company (the "Covenantor”), an annual declaration on his/her/its
compliance with the undertakings contained in the deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) entered into by each of
them in favour of the Company pursuant to which each of the Covenantors
has undertaken to the Company that he/she/it shall or shall procure that
his/her/its close associates (other than members of the Group) shall:

(i) not, directly or indirectly, carry on, or participate in, or be interested
or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest (in
each case whether for his/her/its own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of other person, and as a shareholder, partner,
agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in
any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business or
investment activities in the PRC and Hong Kong, except for the
existing Ancillary Properties (as defined in the Prospectus), which is
the same as, similar or in competition or likely to compete with the
businesses carried on or contemplated to be carried or by any
member of the Group (the “Restricted Business”);

(i) if thereis any project or new business opportunity that relates to the
Restricted Business (“New Business Opportunities” and each, a “New
Business Opportunity”), refer such New Business Opportunity to the
Group for consideration;

(i) notinvest or participate in any Restricted Business;

(iv)  If any of the Covenantors, their respective close associates and/or
companies controlled by them (other than the Group) wishes to sell
any interest in land to any third party (the “Opportunity for Sale”),
each of the Covenantors will and will procure their associates that
the Opportunity for Sale is offered to the Company and the
Company shall have a first right of refusal in respect of such
Opportunity for Sale; and

(v)  provide, during the Relevant Period (as defined in the Prospectus),
where necessary and at least on an annual basis, all information
necessary for the review by the Company and the independent non-
executive Directors, subject to any relevant laws, rules and
regulations or any contractual obligations, to enable them to review
the Covenantors’ and their close associates’ (other than members of
the Group) compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition, and to
enable the Company to enforce the Deed of Non-Competition.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Details of the Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders”.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company had received an annual
written confirmation from each of the Covenantors in respect of their and
their close associates’ compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition. The
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and were satisfied that
each of the Covenantors has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
for the Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company during
the Year are as follows:

(1)

Property management services provided by Dongguan
Huijing Property Management Company Limited (R
mESRYEREER A R) (“Dongguan Property
Management”)

On 11 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Dongguan Property Management to regulate the
transactions with Dongguan Property Management and its
subsidiaries in relation to the provision of pre-delivery property
management services for the unsold properties held for sale only (a)
before the completion; (b) after completion and until the
incorporation of the owners association of the relevant properties
are set up; and (c) the engagement of the initial property
management services provided had been renewed upon expiry of
the initial term (the “Framework Management Services Agreement”).
Dongguan Property Management is beneficially owned as to 60.0%
by Ms Chan Hau Wan and as to 40.0% by Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is
therefore an associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang and Ms Chan Hau Wan and
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The Framework Management Services Agreement shall become
effective from the Listing Date and up to and including 31 December
2021 and the term may be renewed as the parties may mutually

subject to compliance with the requirements under Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

rincipal terms of the Framework Management Services

Agreement are set forth below:
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Dongguan Property Management or its subsidiaries shall,
where it is selected following the relevant tender processes,
provide management and related services to the Group’s
unsold properties held for sale according to the tender
documents and definitive management services agreements
to be entered into between Dongguan Property Management
and members of the Group from time to time;

the management fees payable by the Group in relation to the
unsold properties held for sale shall be based on the fee
quotes to be submitted by Dongguan Property Management
under the relevant tender bids which will be subject to the
selection procedures set out under the subsection headed
“Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions — Pricing
terms and tender process of relevant management services
and internal decoration services after the Listing” in the
Prospectus; and

the definitive management services agreement to be signed
between Dongguan Property Management and members of
the Group in relation to the unsold properties held for sale
shall only contain provisions which are, in all material aspects,
consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms and
conditions set out in the Framework Management Services
Agreement.

m aggregate annual property management fees to be paid by

the Company to Dongguan Property Management in relation to the

nagement services for the unsold properties held for sale for
three years ending 31 December 2021 will be approximately

RMB2.9 million, RMB5.2 million and RMB8.1 million, respectively. Pursuant

mental agreement dated 23 February 2021 entered into

between the Company and Dongguan Property Management, the annual
cap of the annual property management fees will be increased from
RMB8.1 million to RMB10.0 million for the year ending 31 December 2021.
For details, please refer to the “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Company's announcement dated 23 February 2021.
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The above annual caps are derived based on (i) the number of the existing
unsold properties of the completed development for the three years
ending 31 December 2021; (i) the expected aggregate gross floor area to
be developed by the Group for the three years ending 31 December 2021;
(iii) the anticipated number of unsold units for the three years ending 31
December 2021 with reference to the relevant historical unsold rate of the
Group's properties; (iv) the prescribed property management fees
guidance under the applicable regulations of the PRC; and (v) the property
management fees charged for comparable developments.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the proposed annual
caps in respect of the relevant management and related services under the
Framework Management Services Agreement exceed 0.1% but are all less
than 5.0% on an annual basis for the three years ending 31 December
2021, the management services under the Framework Management
Services Agreement and the proposed annual caps for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 are subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(2) Provision of interior decoration services by Guangdong
Huifeng Eco-technology Limited (EREZ 4 ERIFHE
PR 22 8]) (formerly known as Guangdong Huifeng
Construction Limited (REMESZETEZERLT)))
(“Guangdong Huifeng”)

On 11 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
interior decoration services agreement with Dongguan Huifeng to
govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between the
Group and Dongguan Huifeng in connection with the provision of
interior decoration services to the Group (the “Framework
Decoration Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the Framework
Decoration Services Agreement, where Dongguan Huifeng shall be
selected following the relevant selection process, Dongguan Huifeng
shall provide interior decoration services to the Group according to
the definitive building decoration services agreement to be signed
by the Group with Dongguan Huifeng from time to time. Dongguan
Huifeng is beneficially owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore
an associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The Framework Decoration Services Agreement took effect upon the
Listing Date and will be valid until 31 December 2021, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations. Pursuant to the
Framework Decoration Services Agreement, the provision of interior
decoration services by Dongguan Huifeng will be subject to a
selection process overseen by the Group's review panel. Please refer
to the paragraph headed “~ Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions — Pricing terms and tender process of relevant
management services and internal decoration services after the
Listing” in the Prospectus with respect to the pricing terms and
tender process.

The maximum aggregate annual interior decoration services fees to
be paid by the Company to Dongguan Huifeng in respect of the
provision of interior decoration services for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2021 will be approximately RMB33.0 million,
RMB18.2 million and RMB33.0 million, respectively.

The above annual caps are determined with reference to (i) the
estimation on the demand for the relevant interior decoration
services, projected with reference to the aggregate gross floor area
under development for the Group's existing property projects; (ii)
the historical amounts paid to Dongguan Huifeng by the Group for
building decoration services during the Track Record Period (as
defined in the Prospectus); and (iii) the Group's effort to diversify its
supplier base in connection with the building decoration services.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the proposed
annual caps in respect of the relevant interior decoration services
under the Framework Decoration Services Agreement exceed 0.1%
but are all less than 5.0% on an annual basis for the three years
ending 31 December 2021, the building decoration services under
the Framework Management Services Agreement and the proposed
annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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(3)

The Commercial Property Management Services
Framework Agreement with Dongguan Property
Management

On 23 February 2021, the Company entered into a Commercial
Property Management Services Framework Agreement with
Dongguan Property Management in relation to the services agreed
to be provided by Dongguan Property Management to the Group
include but not limited to the office support services for the existing
and anticipated new office buildings such as in Guangdong, Hunan,
Zhejiang and Jiangsu provinces, including property and facilities
maintenance, security services, cleaning services, gardening services,
public area maintenance, greeting and other property management
related services.

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for similar services and similar type of projects of Dongguan
Property Management in the market from three service providers,
which are independent to the Group, the Directors, the chief
executives, the substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and their respective associates, from time to time.

The above term of the Commercial Property Management Services
Framework Agreement has been incorporated to ensure that the
pricing terms are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by the
independent third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Commercial Property
Management Services Framework Agreement for the period ending
31 December 2021 shall not exceed RMB8.44 million. The service
fees are expected to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.
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The annual cap has determined with reference to, among others, the
following factors:

(M the unaudited historical amount of approximately RMB3.5
million settled by the Company for the office support services
in 2020;

(i) the anticipated increase in quantity of services for office
support services for the period ending 31 December 2021
with reference to the expansion of the Group to new regions
such as Zhejiang and Jiangsu provinces, and the anticipated
increase in demand of quantity and quality of the existing
administrative services of the Group;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on

normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and
(iv)  other factors such as the experience the management team
for the commercial property management services of
Dongguan Property Management in provision of office
support services.

The Sales Centre Support Services Framework
Agreement with Dongguan Property Management

On 23 February 2021, the Company entered into The Sales Centre
Support Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan Property
Management in relation to the sales centre support services agreed
to be provided by Dongguan Property Management to the Group
include but not limited to the provision of cleaning and security,
customer reception and other relevant support services in sales
office, showrooms, display units and club houses in various locations
in the PRC, depending on the location of the property projects on
project based.

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the management projects, the
operational costs (including labour costs, material costs,
management costs and the mark-up rate, if applicable) with
reference to the comparable market price for similar services and
similar type of projects of Dongguan Property Management in the
market from three service providers, which are independent to the
Group, the Directors, the chief executives, the substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and their
respective associates, from time to time.

ZIRBPR/AE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The above term of the Sales Centre Support Services Framework
Agreement has been incorporated to ensure that the pricing terms
are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms, and shall be
no less favourable than those offered by the independent third
parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Sales Centre Support
Services Framework Agreement for the period ending 31 December
2021 shall not exceed RMB13.73 million. The service fees are
expected to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.

The annual cap has been determined with reference to, among
others, the following factors:

(M) the unaudited historical amount of approximately RMB3.5
million settled by the Company for the sales centre support
services in 2020;

(i) the sales centre of existing projects and new property
development projects for the period ending 31 December
2021 with reference to the size, geographical locations,
facilities and human resources allocation of the relevant
display units, sales offices and clubhouse;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of the management team
for the sale centre support services of Dongguan Property
Management and the need of the Company to improve its
efficiency on marketing operation.
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The Commercial Operational and Value-added Services
Framework Agreement with Dongguan Huisheng
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Huisheng”)

On 23 February 2021, the Company entered into the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement in
relation to Dongguan Huisheng is commissioned to provide the
commercial operational services and value-added services for various
investment properties in connection with the management projects
of (i) Huijing City in Houjie in Dongguan, the PRG; (i) Huijing City in
Zhangmutou in Dongguan, the PRC; and (iii) Huijing City in Hefei,
the PRC (the “Three Huijing City") which are held by the Group.
Pursuant to the Commercial Operational and Value-added Services
Framework Agreement, the services agreed to be provided by
Dongguan Huisheng to the Group include but not limited to the (i)
commercial operational services such as shopping mall operational
management, promotion and marketing, security and logistics and
maintaining good relationships with tenants and customers; and (i)
value-added services, such as market positioning of potential
customers and tenants, selection of style of decoration and layout
for the Three Huijing City. Dongguan Huisheng is beneficially owned
by Mr. Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lun Ruixiang
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
conditions of the “Three Huijing City”, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for providing similar services of Dongguan Huisheng in the
market from three service providers, which are independent to the
Group, the Directors, the chief executives, the substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and their
respective associates.

The above term of the Commercial Operational and Value-added
Services Framework Agreement has been designed to ensure that
the pricing terms are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial
terms, and shall be no less favourable than those offered by the
independent third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement for
the period ending 31 December 2021 shall not exceed RMB32.0
million. The service fees are expected to be satisfied by internal
resources of the Group.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The annual cap is determined with reference to, among others, the
following factors:

(M the unaudited historical amount of approximately RMB3.4
million settled by the Company for the provision of relevant
services for the investment properties in 2020

(i) the estimated demand of the Company for commercial
operational services and value-added services for the period
ending 31 December 2021;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Huisheng's
senior management and the Company’s expansion plans on
investment properties.

The Property Agency Services Framework Agreement
with Dongguan Leyuan Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Leyuan”)

On 23 February 2021, the Company entered into the Property
Agency Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan Leyuan in
relation to Dongguan Leyuan is commissioned to provide various
property sales agency services in connection with the projects of the
existing and anticipated new projects in 2021. Dongguan Leyuan is
beneficially owned by Mr. Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore an associate
of Mr. Lun Ruixiang and a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Property Agency Services
Framework Agreement, the services agreed to be provided by
Dongguan Leyuan to the Group include but not limited to the
following:

providing market analysis report of the project location;
cooperating with the Group to formulate various sales
activities and marketing plans as well as assisting the Group to
carry out advertising promotion activities; and

establishing a professional sales team to be responsible for the

sales of each of the real estate projects of the Group. The
property sales agency services are non-exclusive.

3R 2021 Annual Report 77



EEEHE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

78

REEKITEEATEXERRETE
ENEEEREENBELUE WHLE
—ERBHER BN AEE &=
TBTBRAER  ARBXEEFAMEL
ANEERRAREZEMBEA) LI
PURERBOKEREZRE -

iR AR RFAE SR o K 5 B
REBGRBLAFAE N6 —RAEAX
&k - B NENBILE =TT iRt -

HE2021F12A31 HILEIM - EARE
IRAEERBZBETNREEFE LRI
HBBAREIS0BETT - BHRBEE S
REBHANIE RN

FELRDZEANTEARER :

() ANRFR 2020 F s ERIBIRBE M
HEENREEZATSBOARE

—

3TEBI

(i) EZE2021F12A8318 1FEE - &
EEEINYERERBOMGETR
wHE

(i) IBILE =R HEURSIE R
BERGFEBO AT ELLEHE &

(v REZREHVERERBOLR
PAR AN A )& SRR R B B B B [
%O

HRRBIE AR BIE 14A78 6B A
EMEEERRBGIERDZE  QEHES
FRFSIEZR ik - Q) =8 RIZERK
ER @) MEREBERGER D EE
THEZFELIRMNGEEAA DX
BB 0.1%E KN 50% @ BARE FHiR
BB 14AE - S E T HRETHNE R
RBEBETRER RERFEEHR
T WERRETE AR RAERTE

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the charging standards
for similar agency services in the market from three service providers,
which are independent to the Group, the Directors, the chief
executives, the substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and their respective associates.

The above term of the Property Agency Services Framework
Agreement has been designed to ensure that the pricing terms are
fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms, and shall be no
less favourable than those offered by the independent third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Property Agency
Services Framework Agreement for the period ending 31 December
2021 shall not exceed RMB180 million. The service fees are expected
to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.

The annual cap is determined with reference to the following factors:

(i the unaudited historical amount of approximately RMB3.1
million settled by the Company for the property agency
services in 2020;

(i) the estimated quantity of service for property agency services
received by the Group for the period ending 31 December
20271,

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Leyuan in
the provision of property agency services and the change of
Company's marketing strategy.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio under Rule 14A.78 of the
Listing Rule in respect of the proposed annual cap under (1) the
Commercial Property Management Services Framework Agreement,
(2) the Sales Centre Support Services Framework Agreement, (3) the
Commercial Operational and Value-added Services Framework
Agreement, and (4) the Property Agency Services Framework
Agreement exceeds 0.1%, but is less than 5.0%, such transactions
contemplated under each of the Agreements are therefore subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements,
but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Mr Lun Ruixiang has abstained from voting on the relevant board
resolutions of the Board in relation to the Agreements in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Other than Mr Lun
Ruixiang, none of the other Directors is required to abstain from
voting on the relevant board resolutions of the Board in relation to
the Agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Framework Management Services Agreement, the Framework
Decoration Services Agreement, the Commercial Property
Management Services Framework Agreement, the Sales Centre
Support Services Framework Agreement, the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement and
the Property Agency Services Framework Agreement, and confirmed
that each of the continuing connected transactions has been
entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(©)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
above continuing connected transactions, the terms of which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
asawhole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions above in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. EY has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other non-exempt connected
and continuing connected transactions, arrangement or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest or interest in competing business, whether directly or
indirectly, nor contracts of significance between the Company or its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries,
subsisted at the end of the Year. Further, subsequent to the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company entered into certain new
continuing connected transactions, including 2022-2024 Residential
Property Management Services Framework Agreement with
Dongguan Property Management for the provision of residential
property management services; (i) 2022-2024 Commercial Property
Management Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan
Property Management for the provision of office support services; (i)
2022-2024 Sales Centre Support Services Framework Agreement
with Dongguan Property Management for the provision of support
services to sales centres; (iv) 2022-2024 Construction Consultation
and Inspection Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan
Property Management for the provision of construction consultation
and inspection services; (v) 2022-2024 Commercial Operational and
Value-added Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan
Huisheng for the provision of commercial operational services and
commercial value-added services for investment properties; and (vi)
2022-2024 Framework Decoration Services Agreement with
Guangdong Huifeng for the provision of interior decoration services.
For details, please refer to the “Continuing Connected Transactions”
of the Company’s announcement dated 17 December 2021.

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the Year, which do not constitute connected or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, the Directors or other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets and profits of the Company against all losses or damages which they
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty in their respective offices.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as of 31
December 2021 are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of
this annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the projects and land parcels of the Group are shown on
pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, discretionary bonuses, housing and other allowances and other
benefits in kind. The Company also reimburses Directors and senior
management for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably incurred
for providing services to the Company or discharging their duties in
relation to the operations of the Company.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the
Human Resources Department and the employees’ emoluments are
determined on the basis of their qualifications, experiences and area of
expertises.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company and decided by the Board, having regard to the Company’s
performance and the remuneration benchmark in the industry.
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The Group has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme for the Directors and the employees of the
Group, details of which are disclosed in section headed “Share Option
Schemes”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements set out in this annual report.

According to Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, there must be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and for a sufficient public float of
an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that at
least 25.0% of the issuer’s total number of issued shares must at all times be
held by the public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the Stock
Exchange may, subject to certain conditions and at its discretion, accept a
lower percentage of between 15.0% to 25.0% in the case of issuers with an
expected market capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10.0 billion.

The Stock Exchange had granted the Company a waiver from strict
compliance with the requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules
to accept a lower public float percentage subject to the condition that:

(i) the minimum public float shall be the higher of (a) 15.0%; or (b) such
percentage of Shares to be held by the public immediately after the
completion of the global offering (as increased by any Shares to be
issued under any exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined
in the Prospectus));

(i) the Company’s market capitalisation at the time of listing is over
HKS$10 billion;

(i) the Company will make appropriate disclosure of the lower
prescribed percentage of public float in the Prospectus together
with a confirmation of sufficiency of public float in its successive
annual reports after the listing; and

(iv)  there will be an open market in the shares offered in the global
offering, and the number of shares and the extent of their
distribution would enable the market to operate properly.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
fully complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
audited by Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the 2022 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Lun Ruixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

3R 2021 Annual Report 83



B 2B EN RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EY:

HESEZERAERLFARR
(REIEREZMA A BFRAA])

KMEBZINENENE24ENERERSE
RAB(ERRAD REHNBAR(EEE])
MR B B AR - AR A B F R B 2021
FRAJNENGEAVHRRKREREZA L
FENFAEBRE  HFA2EKSE  HFaE
BEPRNEAHRSRER  ULRAMBR
R BRIESABEME -

BMRE  KEVBRREBRES SR
g ([BESMAE]) BHENEEMIEHREE
A EBMBHREENDEEMAFBR
B HEEM2021F12A31 BNES B
MEEHZEZB I FENGEUBRRAREA
ReERE  WEERBEBQARMEMNEERT
ZhEREE -

BMERBERBETMAGRONBBETE
A (T &EBFERT LR ) EITER TIE - RPAIBLZ
FRAFENEETEARERHA G T4 E
MBEBRAAFRENE LR EE— SR -
REBBQMAGNEX S AEETA
(=PRI - BABLR EKE - AEETT
AR EMBEEE - HIEE - RAIMES
MEREETE MEE M ARMANEREHR
HAEE o

To the shareholders of Huijing Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huijing Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 92 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's income
tax expense of RMB552 million comprised corporate income
tax at a statutory tax rate of 25% and land appreciation tax at
tax rates ranging from 30% to 60% incurred by the Group's
subsidiaries in the People’'s Republic of China. The
determination of the tax provision involves significant
management estimates about the Group's taxable income
and the appropriate application of the tax rate, in particular
when estimating the land appreciation tax.

We identified this as a key audit matter because the income
tax expense is significant to the Group and the income tax
provision assessment process is complex and involves
significant estimates.

Related disclosures of the accounting judgements and
estimates, the income tax expense and the tax provision for
land appreciation tax are included in notes 3, 10 and 31 to the
financial statements.

86

HAFHEF SRR BT EFEEATEIE

RS TR R O 1 UL T 4 B O3 (DA S A
BB

HEE AR & St SR R M AR S M B % B IR B A
AMRTPAAABHEER Rk

AN EER2EFHERBENE BE5ET
ZERZHBEHEDKRBEABREER

Our audit procedures to assess the income tax provision
included the following:

obtaining management’s schedules and examining the
correspondence with tax authorities to assess the tax
computation;

comparing the financial information used in these
management schedules to the corresponding
accounting records or other underlying documentation;
and

involving our internal tax specialists in the evaluation of
management’s application of the relevant tax regulations
to the tax computations for significant entities in the
Group.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had investment properties
with a carrying amount of RMB1,787 million measured at fair
value. Significant estimation is required to determine the fair
values of the investment properties and the Group engaged
an external valuer to assist management to determine the fair
values. Different valuation models were applied by the
external valuer to the different types of investment properties
held by the Group. The models include various assumptions,
including estimated rental values with reference to the current
market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, rental growth rates, discount rates, long term
vacancy rates, occupancy rates and capitalisation rates.

We identified this as a key audit matter because the
investment properties are significant to the Group and
valuation of investment properties involves significant
estimates.

Related disclosures of the accounting judgements and
estimates and fair values of the investment properties are
included in notes 3 and 14 to the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the investment
properties included the following:

obtaining and reviewing the valuation reports prepared
by the external valuer engaged by the Group;

assessing the external valuer's qualifications, experience
and expertise and considering the external valuer's
objectivity and independence; and

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions, methodologies and
parameters adopted in the valuations.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lok Man Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

29 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HZE2021F 12 A31 HIFFE Yearended 31 December 2021

2021 F 20204
2021 2020
KtaE AR¥T T ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
U REVENUE 5 5,309,290 5,153,233
HER AN Cost of sales (3,642,404) (3,368,907)
EF Gross profit 1,666,886 1,784,326
H AU A R as Other income and gains 5 124,112 142,329
HE MDA Selling and distribution expenses (122,965) (157,595)
TR Administrative expenses (472,932) (510,150)
REYE N ERNEFRR Fair value gains on investment
properties, net 14 170,757 41,559
HiFf Other expenses (129,927) (31,889)
B R R AN Finance costs 7 (150,801) (135,554)
DMERERERNFE Share of profit of joint ventures, net 20,299 196,103
DE—REE D EEE Share of loss of an associate (3,265) -
BRBE AT B T PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,102,164 1,329,129
TSR Income tax expense 10 (551,768) (588,655)
FRER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 550,396 740,474
AT Bl - Attributable to:
ISY/NEIEZPN Owners of the parent 256,140 516,356
FEFE AR HE 2 Non-controlling interests 294,256 224118
550,396 740474
BAREEAEBGLERER EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
HAMES (ERAREIT) Basic and diluted (RMB per share) 12 0.05 0.10
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHZ2021F 12 H31 HIFFZE Yearended 31 December 2021

20215 2020 4F
2021 2020

AR®TRT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

FREF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 550,396 740,474

HE MBI eEH D EEEZE  Other comprehensive loss that will not be
2 EMmEmEE - reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
BERNBPBRR 2 ENETE Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of the Company (19,326) (82,363)

Hiz M e EF D =B 2 Other comprehensive income that may be
EmaEmRA reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

MEBARMBHRERIENZE  Exchange differences on translation of financial

statements of the subsidiaries 42,932 51,812
FREMEEBA(EEB) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 23,606 (30,551)

FREEBARE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 574,002 709,923

ARG - Attributable to:

NEER A Owners of the parent 279,746 485,805
TR Non-controlling interests 294,256 224,118
574,002 709,923
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20214 12 31 H 31 December 2021

2021 F
2021

ARBT R
RMB’000

2020 5
2020
ARETT
RMB'000

FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - B MR Property, plant and equipment 13 69,071 65,330
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 5(a) 2,010 6,684
KB YEE Investment properties 14 1,786,900 1,433,900
EILEE Intangible assets 16 6,321 7618
REELEMNKE Investment in joint ventures 17 290,660 225,061
PRSP ENRE Investment in an associate 18 2,235
FERBE AR E8 i Land held for development for sale 19 597,814 496,728
BRI IHE E Deferred tax assets 32 168,962 165,802
ERBEELRE Total non-current assets 2,923,973 2,401,123
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FERBEREEMN i Land held for development for sale 19 1,113,137 1,161,151
EEME Properties under development 20 3,388,502 2,944,941
BELENDR T YE Completed properties held for sale 21 872,569 1,153,279
B S EWER Trade receivables 22 37,497 56,760
FERFIE - Ha WA N E4h  Prepayments, other receivables and
BiE other assets 23 3,751,039 2,181,815
B —REEERIE Receivable from a joint venture 17 160,256 258,121
BRATEFABR 2 2/mERE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 24 232,819 494,838
TEA L IR (E R Prepaid land appreciation tax - 3,241
IRE RIRITHES Cash and bank balances 25 2,702,420 2,083,723
MEEERE Total current assets 12,258,239 10,337,869
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B SRR Trade payables 26 1,678,076 1,738,948
HMEMNZIE W% 4 MIEST  Other payables, deposits received and
&M accruals 27 530,527 719,989
HEAE Lease liabilities 15(b) 1,933 5,163
AMAaE Contract liabilities 28 2,676,239 2,223,304
FTERIT R EMER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 29 1,452,479 823,100
BREE Senior notes 30 915,930 871,332
SRS Provision for corporate income tax 726,907 644,145
+ I E R R Provision for land appreciation tax 31 637,404 697,045
mEAGEE Total current liabilities 8,619,495 7,723,026
RENEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,638,744 2,614,843
EEHRERRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 6,562,717 5,015,966
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ArE AR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20214 12 A 31 H 31 December 2021

202145 2020 4
2021 2020
AR%ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FHESRITREME R Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 29 2,143,762 1,073,040
HERE Lease liabilities 15(b) 79 2,134
ERAFIEA G Deferred tax liabilities 32 167,501 111,156
SEMBBELRE Total non-current liabilities 2,311,342 1,186,330
EEFHE Net assets 4,251,375 3,829,636
= EQUITY
BAREE AEEER Equity attributable to owners of the
parent
BEITIRA Issued capital 33 47,972 47,972
EE=] Reserves 35 3,273,692 3,196,838
3,321,664 3,244,810
FEIE AR M 2 Non-controlling interests 929,711 584,826
EREE Total equity 4,251,375 3,829,636
fw BR B ER
Lun Zhao Ming Luo Chengyu
E2 E3
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2021F 12 A31 HIFFE Yearended 31 December 2021

e

Issued

capital
ARBTT
RMB'000

BRE

R
Share
option

REOEE

Share
premium
ARBTR
RMB'000

reserve

ARBTTR
RMB'000

ARBTTR

BATEAAEL
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARRE  GARE

Statutory
Capital

Merger surplus

reserve reserve

ARBTTR
RMB'000

reserve
ARBT T

RMB'000 RMB'000

EXRfE RERA
Retained
profits
ARBTR
RMB'000

Exchange
reserve
ARBTR
RMB'000

Total

ARBTR
RMB000

B

Non-
controlling
interests
ARBTR
RMB'000

RiELE

Total
equity
ARBT R
RMB'000

RanE1A18 As 1 January 2021 47972 1,062,114 76,040 656 499 145,187 (33,370) 1945712 3,244,810 584,826 3,829,636
EREFH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 256,140 256,140 294,256 550,396
FRENZEEE: Other comprehensive loss for the year:
BERBRRNELEE  Echange differences on translation

offinancial statements - - - - - - 23,606 - 23,606 - 23,606
ERZENNEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 23606 256140 279746 294256 574,002
HEMBAA(Hi#m)  Disposalof subsidiares (note 38) - - - - - - - - - (281253)  (281,253)
WEMBAR (H#376)  Acquisition of subsidiares (note 7)) - - - - - - - - - 109529 109,529
e RER Acquisition of non-controlling interest - - - - - = = = - (6679)  (66,790)
REFERER ZHH Contribution from non-controlling

shareholders - - - - - - - - - 289,143 289,143
IWESESRERELZE  Couity-settled share option

(Kt 34) arrangements (note 34) - - 10591 - - - - 5160 15751 - 15751

WOERERE (HeE11)  2020final dividend (note 11) - (218643) - - - - - - (218643) - (218643)
BRARERT Transfer from retained profits = = = = - 114775 - (114775) = = =
B E1A3H As at 31 December 2021 47,972 843,471* 86,631* 656% 499*  259,962* (9,764)%  2,092,237% 3,321,664 929,711 4,251,375

926
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZ2021 12 A31 HIFFJE Yearended 31 December 2021

ARG

EXGE  REE

R0E1A1R As 1 January 2020 - - 46519 (28610) 499 11214 (2819 1459076 1585879 36,745 1622624
ERgEf| Proftfor the year - - - - - - - SI636 S163% 24118 740474
FREBZAGE: Other comprehensive loss for the year:
REBNEBNELEE  Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - - (30551) - (30551) - (30551)
ERFERAEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (30551)  5163%6 485805 24118 709923
BIEHE—FRKERGE  Deerned disposal ofinterest of a
HBARIZEE subsidiary without loss of control - - - 29266 - - - - 29266 110244 139510
BRDERIET(HaE33)  Capitalisation issue of shares (note 33) 40776 (40776) - - - - - _ _ _ _
EAHRD(WE33) Issue of new shares (note 33 7% 1381584 - - - - - - 1388780 - 1388780
RN BITRS (it 33) Share issue expenses note 33) - (66,539) - - - - - - 66,539) - (66,539)
WEHEAR (M3375)  Acquisition of subsiciaries (note 37(0) - - - - - - - - - 61458 61458
KA-HERERZEF Contribution from anon-controling
shareholder - - - - - - - - - 152261 152261
IREEEMBRELSE  Equitysettied share option amangements
(Hit31) note 34 - - 2521 - - - - 4253 3774 - 3774
019FKRIRE 2019 special dividend - %) - - - - - - %) - %)
ERaRBEN Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 3973 - (33973) - - -
R00E1NANE Asat 31 December 2020 47972 1062,114* 76,040* 656 499* 145,187 (33370F  1945712% 3244810 584,820 3829636

* ZERBREBERGEVBERARABARE
32736920007E<2020£E © AR #3,196,8380007T)
RAREE -

¢ LN ARE 07T ©

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB3,273,692,000 (2020: RMB3,196,838,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

The amount is less than RMB500.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F 12 A31 HIFFE Yearended 31 December 2021

REFHRERERE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

2021 F
2021

ARBTR
RMB’000

2020 5
2020
ARETTT
RMB'000

R 0 B A Profit before tax 1,102,164 1,329,129
REE Adjustments for:

FEUWA Interest income 5 (14,449) (5,208)

M—REECEETNF L Interest income of a loan to a

WA joint venture 5 (13,034) (16,653)
W - BB NRERETE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 6 6,020 8,307

FHEESETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6 4,752 5913

B EEHN Amortisation of intangible assets 6 1,855 2,930

BE R RERA 2 Share option expense 6 15,751 33,774

REMERNTERZFE Fair value gains on investment

properties, net 14 (170,757) (41,559)

BATFEFAEBECEREE Fair value change on financial assets at

ZRFEEE fair value through profit or loss 85,530 (71,086)
HEME - WERKHEE D Gain on disposal of items of property,

& plant and equipment 6 (84) 91)
HEWB A RIS FEE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 5 (82,419) -
DIHEBERF Share of profit of joint ventures (20,299) (196,103)
DME— KB E D EEE Share of loss of an associate 3,265 -
EURGID RN Finance costs 7 150,801 135,554

1,069,096 1,184,907

W EE I ERM B A S L Acquisition of land held for development

for sale (421,263) (613,062)
EEMER LD, (1Em) Decrease/(increase) in properties under

development 2,265,292 (1,324,638)
BIELENTE S TYERD Decrease in completed properties held

for sale 384,605 3,294,336
B 5 EWER IR Decrease in trade receivables 16,356 58,664
FEfFRIE - HAbEIGRIE M E A Increase in prepayments, other

BEEMN receivables and other assets (1,025,825) (248,030)
B S ENBEZCRL), Em (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (379,008) 77478
aHaERd Decrease in contract liabilities (2,652,592) (2,268,422)
HihfERF0E - UL S M JEET  (Decrease)/Increase in other payables,

ERCGRLD),/ B8 deposits received and accruals (242,493) 165,121
& (TR FisE s Cash (used in)/generated from operations (985,832) 326,354
2 UF) B, Interest received 14,449 5,208
DT EMRER PRC corporate income tax paid (130,744) (150,546)
DR E L g ER PRC land appreciation tax paid (290,205) (245,288)
eESEE RTINS R E R Net cash flows used in operating activities (1,392,332) (64,272)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZ2021 12 A31 HIFFJE Yearended 31 December 2021

REFHRBRERE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

20215
2021

AR®TR
RMB’000

2020 5
2020
AREFIT
RMB'000

KE—REEDNENE Settlement from a joint venture 108,736 250,681
EEME - BERRE 1%15 = Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment 13 (10,897) (56,869)
NEB A E Additions of intangible assets 16 (558) (5,088)
NBWEYE Additions of investment properties 14 (91,716) (146,302)
B EIR AT ET AB 2 24 B & E Purchases of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (48,667) (423,752)
HER N FEFT AIBZ 2 4 B & Disposal of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 203,233 -
W BB B A ) Acquisitions of subsidiaries 37 44,934 72,292
HENE R F] Disposal of subsidiaries 38 74,015 -
HEWE - BEMREBEE D Proceeds from disposal of items of

FTiSskT8 property, plant and equipment 1,654 1,441

SR IR 150 Increase in restricted cash (831,275) (110,551)
B EEMAREREFRE Net cash flows used in investing activities (550,541) (418,148)
MEZTHAERERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
[RENEESS Interest paid (150,801) (135,223)
DTRE . Dividend paid (218,643) (212,159)
BEITERAD Issue of new shares = 1,388,780
fEinEE TR X Share issue expenses = (66,535)
Uy B8 FE4E R i 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests (66,790) -
BN ESFIERL Decrease in amounts due to directors = (62,442)
FIRTT R A E R New bank and other borrowings 3,264,292 2,159,332
BEIBITREMER Repayment of bank and other borrowings (1,558,675) (2,332,102)
BTBARIERSE Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 148,634 930,640
(B IR BT R AN Issuance costs of senior notes (13,044) (28,733)
ERELEERE Redemption of senior notes (103,709) -
R FEIERR AR R 2 R Contribution from non-controlling

shareholders 289,143 152,261
HENFHAEEH Principal portion of lease payments 39(c) (5,748) (6,307)
A EEERSRE T Net cash flows from financing activities 1,584,659 1,787,512
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F 12 A31 HIFFE Yearended 31 December 2021

20215 20204
2021 2020

ARBTR ARBTE
RMB’000 RMB'000

RERREZEYORL), I NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN

FE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (358,214) 1,305,092
FREFIREEED Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 1,696,868 452,464
PE % Exchange realignment 145,636 (60,688)
FREERALSEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 1,484,290 1,696,868
ReRBASE@UEHRDN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
e MRTTHEH Cash and bank balances 25 2,702,420 2,083,723
B XREIES Less: Restricted cash (1,218,130) (386,855)
FEReRERMUNRE R Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
WEEEBY consolidated statement of cash flows 1,484,290 1,696,868
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12 A 31 H 31 December 2021

ESERBRAG(ARAD A—FKR
20191 AORRBREHERADA(E
NE)VEHRSHESFMKINEREER
NAl AARIMEMPEEEDI A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
ARAMEELEWEURBEAEFS
VE 8 6-8 5 I &2 R D 24 18 2403-2408 E ©

AKABBHDR2020F1 B 16 BEER B
ABRGMABR AR (R ERET °

ARBRREZEBRAR - FR - ARA
MBAREZRPEARKME(F
BORENEHAELIRE -BEERR -
RRABRR R ERERARQERE
BBERRB(TER]  MARBERRK
Refmintt it ([Rintrstd] - BIBE
BERARAR) ROzt ((RK
T Wi se e B KRB e B AR
BRAR]) (R [HEBRR])

Huijing Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
9 January 2019 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Unit 2403-2408, 24/F, Shui On Centre 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16
January 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year,
the Company's subsidiaries were principally engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate and immediate
holding company of the Company is Wui Ying Holdings Limited
("Wui Ying”) and the controlling shareholders of the Company are
Mr. Lun Ruixiang (“Mr. Lun Ruixiang”, through Wui Ying Holdings
Limited) and Ms. Chan Hau Wan (“Ms. Chan”, spouse of Mr. Lun
Ruixiang and through Wui Shing Holdings Limited) (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12 31 H 31 December 2021

1. REIREERER 2 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
EEHEBARNER Information about subsidiaries

ARARNEEZMBARNFBFNOT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MR L

ERTEER/ AXREGEE

WHREE R

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

EfRAEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

REBDL

Percentage of

indirect

equity interest
attributable

to the Company

FREK

Principal activities

BEERAERRA 00 1,000,000 7T 100% REZMR
Hai Feng Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
REMERIRERHERE hE R E R, AR 500000007 100% #EFE
BRAR™ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Dongguan Huijing Kailun Bay Property
Development Limited
EREEBRAR" RE/ R E R, AR 1,500,000000 7T 100% WERERRE
Huijing Group Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 100%  AREEER
Property development
and investment and
investment holding
RETAERUMEREERART  FE/TEKNM AR 2500000007 100% #ERE
Dongguan Daxi Property PRC/Mainland China RMB250,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Limited
EHESEHEREBRAR R/ R E R, AR 50,505,051 7T 100% #ERE
Hengyang Huijing Property PRC/Mainland China RMB50,505,051 100%  Property development
Development Limited
REMERRHEERERART  PE/HEKNM AR 1,0000007T 100% #EERAE
Dongguan Huijing Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Property development

Development Company Limited
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1. REIREBEER 2

EENBARNER (E)

REMERRMTEEZER
BRAR(REERRE B

Dongguan Huijing East Automobile
Development Limited ("Dongguan
Huijing East Automobile”)

RETERYBREIE
RBEBERAR

Dongguan Jade Peninsula Property
Development Limited

R EERMERREERA T
Heyuan Huijing Property
Development Limited

AEEZEEXARAF

Hefei Fuhua Properties Limited

RRBRT K AR
REZRBR LA

Dongyuan Dongjiang River Village Long
He Investment Development Limited

REEREEXREBRAA
Dongyuan Yayuan Property
Investment Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL BT
BRHREE N

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

R, R E R
PRC/Mainland China

BB A
PRC/Mainland China

BB A
PRC/Mainland China

/B
PRC/Mainland China

B/ B
PRC/Mainland China

R, R E A
PRC/Mainland China

BRTLER
AR EE
Nominal value

of issued

ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR 30,000,000 7T
RMB30,000,000

AR 1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000

AR 50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

AR 150,000,000 7T
RMB150,000,000

AR 50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

AR #30,000,0007T
RMB30,000,000

ARAREEEE
REBDL
Percentage of
indirect

equity interest
attributable

to the Company

40.8%""
40.8%""

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

¥R 2021 Annual Report

FREK

Principal activities

ESGES

Property development

MEFHE

Property development

ESEE S

Property development

MEFRE R EER

Property development
and investment
holding

VESGES

Property development

VESGES

Property development
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1.

104

REIREBER &)

EENBARNER (&)

REMBLRESBRAAM
Dongguan Haiya Trading Limited

REMRPIBAEERRRA)"
Dongguan Humen Wanfang
Properties Limited

RRERKBEXFRAA
Dongyuan Dongjiang River
Village Properties Limited

EBERERREBR AR

Hengyang Yanhu Eco-tourism Limited

BRHRER(RR)ERRA
Songsen Furniture (Dongguan)
Company Limited

REmEaftEXREBRAR

Dongguan Jiayishi Investment Limited

REMEREREEARAD

Dongguan Huijing Jianuo Properties
Development Limited

ESIERREBRAE  Huijing Holdings Company Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL B
WHREE R

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

R B
PRC/Mainland China

FE/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

FEL/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

R B
PRC/Mainland China

FE B
PRC/Mainland China

FE/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

FE/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

ERTEER
EfRAEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR 500,000 70
RMB500,000

AR 100,0000007T

RMB100,000,000

AEH61,2500007T
RMB61,250,000

AR 5,0000007T
RMB5,000,000
11,000,000 7T
HK$11,000,000

AR 50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

AR F R B
REEDL

Percentage of

indirect

equity interest
attributable

to the Company

100%
100%

98%
98%

92%
92%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%

Principal activities

ESGES

Property development

VESGES

Property development

VESGES

Property development

VESGES

Property development

VESGES

Property development

ESGES

Property development

EIGES

Property development
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1. REIREBEER 2

EENBARNER (E)

B ERMEREERA
Chengdu Lida Real Estate
Development Co. Limited

BIGRTRREEXBRAA
Pujiang Gaoyu Zhongxinhai
Real Estate Co,, Ltd.

BIGETREELERAT"

Pujiang Gaoyu Xinda Real Estate Co,, Ltd.

EEmEBEXARAA
([RHEE])~

Fuyang City Xinggang Properties
Company Ltd. ("Fuyang Xinggang")

RRGER LSBT ERER AT
([ TZm])~

Dongyuan Dongjiang River Galleries
Tourism Development Company Ltd.
("Dongjiang River Galleries”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL BT
BRHREE N

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

R, R E R
PRC/Mainland China

R R E A
PRC/Mainland China

R R E A
PRC/Mainland China

R, R E R
PRC/Mainland China

R, R E A
PRC/Mainland China

ERTERER
AR EE
Nominal value

of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AREE316326537C
RMB81,632,653

ARBE40816327 7T
RMB40,316,327

AR #16,000,000 7T
RMB16,000,000

AR #100,000,0007T
RMB100,000,000

ARE29679950 7T
RMB29,679,950

ARAREEEE
REBDL
Percentage of
indirect

equity interest
attributable

to the Company

51% ¥ERE

51% Property development

FREK

Principal activities

51% ¥ERE

51% Property development

51% WERE

51% Property development

51% WnERME

51%  Property development

80% ¥R
80% Property development

3R 2021 Annual Report 105



pvEs e

N\

=l

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12 31 H 31 December 2021

1.
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AT REBMAR (0
ERMEARANES(E)

* REFEARELBANERRATF -
' REFEZZELAIEBEDE -

e BREPBEAEERRFIIECERRE

o

i3

M ARBEEASERIGZEERESR
50%H)IERT « REBDERBF N
BRERE - MEZRAR DR AREEH
=G

‘ H P % S N AL S R AT IE R A 5 X
BN WHENEHIBARBERE
BNEEDEEPXERMSK -

FAMKEBIHE R R ZF BN i %
WARMEE37

ERIHEBERRTEFEAKEFA
RKEIBRASEEEFEBRIED 2
AARIMBRR - BEER& - L EAM
MEBARZFERE<EREANITE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
continuec

d)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

* Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.
Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

@ Registered as a sino-foreign equity entity under PRC law.

AR

This company is accounted for as subsidiary of the Group because the
Group owns more than half of the voting rights even though the
equity interests in this entity attributable to the Group are less than
50%.

# The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate their Chinese
names as they did not register any official English name.

Details of the subsidiaries acquired during the year are summarised
in note 37 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ESIERREBRAE  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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ZEVBRRIDBRBEREGFNLE
(IHFEGHEAE]) BAENEBMBR
SEA([BAPBHREEL ]| BEME
FEVHHREER  BRGHEMN(E
BEER]) RRE) BEARER
AIRBERARURIINRERERE - %
EWBHRRIRBELRAERE - F
BRVEFEZREMERIZ R FER
ABRZ SREERI - ZFHH#REK
RARBTAREDIIR  BRmEHE
RN TEREONEESRIZ TR
BARETT) -

meaRE
BREMBRERBEARARENB AR
(I A%EEDEZ2021F128318
IEFEZHBRE - MBRRIEARF
EESHEZFINER(BRELAELE
)  BEAEEBBALHEEEAHRNIEH
EEMAENEORNRARKEEEZE
DR BRENEREREHREH
D (RSAEEBRIARNTERES
SKMMERE MRS ET)) 2% EE R
B - BNEU/S R IHE -

BEARFEERAMEREEINKREYHR
REBORFHEOER - £ EER
CHREHRBEERNE  AEEEE
BFEHBEEEMBR - 81

(@) BERBEHREMREESEENA
HIZHE

(b) EMEXNTBELNERN @ &
© AEENKRERRETRERE-

B A B IS R iR AR B A R A
WEMAE A BN BERE -
MEBARNEEHAEBERGZEEZ
RRTHFEIIER TEEFRAIREZ
FEHIRRRIEZ BRI

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on

which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.
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REEE#E)

BaEkEbEEEAZEXBD EBR
AEEERAER ANMFERERN
A BEL R EEOE IR R AR
BEE - BAKENEARIBER 5 AR
MMAESEARARRIRNEENRAE #
@ WA X RBREREBNEST
ARAF 2 BUESH -

REA-HAZHEKREY  KAEEHE
ENHAEERTEFREHR -HEBA
BN R B (X B R LR TIE)
RREEIHAR

1 745 5 18] 2% 25 — SRPHY /B8 % B A 42 o) 4
AIEBUBRER () ZMBARNEE (B
BE) RAIE - () A IHER RS RE
BR()A RN RFREZER
K HERR () TR BB 2 1B - () TR
EEHRE M A FE R (i) B E R E L
EERERNEE © TR E M2 E K
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EBEERLERBEEXLRBENR &
EEHHDBEEAIRE G N (WEA) -

AEBMERAFEHBRRERFAT
SIERT BB G IMEER] -

ERMBREER FIFEEYE -
FOR(BHK)  BEE FER
215303k (AT A) -

BB REER
7R (ETR) - BB
HERAF4R (B R

BAEMBRSER
F165 (BT A)
BRMEREER 202168308
F165 (BT 1 Covid- 19491567
ikl
(IRFEH)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

(early adopted)

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR"). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of
HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy.
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(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR”) as at 31 December 2021. The
Group expects that HIBOR will continue to exist and the
interest rate benchmark reform has not had an impact on the
Group's HIBOR-based borrowings. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group
will apply the above-mentioned practical expedient upon the
modification of these instruments provided that the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-related
rent concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient
when it becomes applicable within the allowed period of
application.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information?

Insurance Contracts>

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current**
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract'

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

s As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’'s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.
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Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application
without restating the comparative information. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment
to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.
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Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

0

(i)

(ifi)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment property under construction will be measured at cost
until such time when fair value can be determined or construction is
completed.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a
self-constructed investment property, any difference between the
fair value of the property at the completion date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
atintervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20-33.33%
Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises Over the lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office premises (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

Land held for development for sale

The land held for development for sale represents parcels of land
owned by the Group for the purpose of development of properties
for sale. The land held for development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. It is transferred to properties
under development upon commencement of the construction work
of the related property development project.
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POLICIES (

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost,
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs incurred directly attributable to
such properties during the development period, and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings attributable
to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on the
prevailing market conditions.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent computer software, which acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years.
The useful life of software is determined mainly with reference to (i)
maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected future
economic benefits from the software for continuous operations, (ii)
expected usage required from the operations of the Group and the
infrequent change of the software, (iii) product life cycles for the
similar software used in the past, and (iv) the period of control over
the software.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (Cor

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, senior notes and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the expected credit loss (“ECL") allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

provides benefits which are received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset is transferred over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the
Group's performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it
is significant.

For sales contracts for which the control of the property is transferred
at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
the physical possession and the Group has a present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.
The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent

with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relate. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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Contract costs (Continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are charged to the statement of profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the
revenue to which the related asset is recognised. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors of the Company) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 34 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB while the
Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. In the
opinion of the directors, as the Group's operations are mainly in
Mainland China, the use of RMB as the presentation currency is more
appropriate for the presentation of the Group's results and financial
position. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the financial periods. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e,, translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management in determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a completed property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention of holding the properties at the early
development stage of the related properties. During the course of
construction, the related properties under construction are
accounted for as properties under development included in current
assets if the properties are intended for sale after their completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment properties
under construction included in non-current assets if the properties
are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the properties
developed for sale are transferred to completed properties held for
sale and are stated at cost, while the properties developed to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to investment
properties and are subject to revaluation at each reporting date.
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Judgements (Continued)
Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolio and concluded that the Group's
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale is rebutted.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at 31 December 2021 was RMB168,962,000 (2020:
RMB165,802,000). Further details are included in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
disclosed below:

Impairment review for properties under development,
completed properties held for sale and land held for
development for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
estimated net realisable value is the estimated selling price less
selling expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information. The land held
for development for sale is initially stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated.

The Group has engaged an external valuer to perform a valuation of
the Group's properties under development, completed properties
held for sale and land held for development for sale as at the end of
the reporting period to assess if the net realisable values of these
assets are lower than their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of properties under development, completed
properties held for sale and land held for development for sale at 31
December 2021 were RMB3,388,502,000 (2020: RMB2,944,941,000),
RMB872,569,000 (2020: RMB1,153,279,000) and RMB1,710,951,000
(2020: RMB1,657,879,000), respectively.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As certain
matters relating to the income taxes have not yet been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgements based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of corporate income tax payables at 31
December 2021 was RMB726,907,000 (2020: RMB644,145,000).
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period
in which the differences realise. The carrying amount of provision for
land appreciation tax at 31 December 2021 was RMB637,404,000
(2020: RMB697,045,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment properties
and investment properties under construction, are revalued at the
end of the reporting period based on the appraised market value
provided by independent professional valuers. Such valuations are
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information from current prices in
an active market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting date.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the fair value
include those related to estimated rental values with reference to
the current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, appropriate rental growth rates, discount rates, long
term vacancy rates, occupancy rates and capitalisation rates.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2021
was RMB1,786,900,000 (2020: RMB1,433,900,000). Further details are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group "would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

The Group is principally engaged in one single operating segment,
i.e, the property development and investment business. Accordingly,
no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information by operating segment is presented as
the Group's revenue from the external customers is derived solely
from its operations in Mainland China and more than 90% of the
non-current assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.
Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the presentation of
geographical information would provide no additional useful
information to the users of these financial statements.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no revenue
from a single external customer contributed 10% or more of the
Group's total revenue.
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@ AEBE/MRZESTOT (@  Ananalysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
20214 2020
2021 2020
AR®T T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
&3 Revenue
KEEFEAIBI W Revenue from contracts with customers
R e Sale of properties in the PRC 5,305,367 5,149,966
K8 A R AT M Revenue from another source
REREMELCEHER Gross rental income from investment
el ALz property operating leases 3,923 3,267
5,309,290 5,153,233
REEFAHHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) W=EFREBH () Disaggregated revenue information
FIEREEFPAANKEE All revenue from contracts with customers are
R—IFERER - recognised at a point in time.
TRERNRAFEEFTERS The following table shows the amount of revenue
AFEHaENRESEE recognised in the current year that were included in the

contract liabilities at the beginning of the year:

2021 20204
2021 2020
AR% TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REJFAGKHEED Revenue recognised that was
BRI included in contract liabilities

at the beginning of the year:

MEHE Sale of properties 1,842,116 1,692,986
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

(@) Ananalysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property is obtained by the customer.

The contracted sales amounts allocated to the
remaining performance obligations as at the end of the
year:

2020 5
2020
AREFT
RMB'000

20215
2021

AR®T R
RMB’000

TREAER RN R T BE Amounts expected to be recognised
as revenue:

—FR Within one year 2,300,015 3,795,407

—F1& After one year 95,775 84,371
2,395,790 3,879,778

PREHRTRAOEENELD The contracted sales amounts allocated to the

HECRBEPRNEEE— remaining performance obligations which are expected

FRERBWE  ERELD to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to the

EEBRMERNET A
HibnBEEHR TREHOEEN
BREESERHRN —FA
EEWUZ%H&/\ o FRIFBEMS
BUTBEZROATERE -

sale of properties, of which the performance obligations
are to be satisfied within two years. All the other
contracted sales amounts allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.
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5. k&S - Hisig AR WSS (2) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
(b)) AEBEHAMWARKZH ST (b)  An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as
N follows:
2021 % 2020 4F
2021 2020
AR%ET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HERB QTR FE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net
(Btat38) (note 38) 82,419 -
BATERAEBRZ Fair value gains on financial assets
TREENATEKR at fair value through profit or loss = 71,086
BAVERABRZ Dividend income from financial assets
TRVEERRBUA at fair value through profit or loss 6,207 18412
F—KABREEZNNEWA Interest income of a loan to a joint venture 13,034 16,653
ME 5 =20 H 5 Foreign exchange differences, net = 9,490
SRITH B WA Bank interest income 14,449 5,208
BWIE S Forfeiture of deposits 679 1,605
HEME  BELBZHE BB  Gainon disposal of items of property,
Wz plant and equipment 84 91
HAth Others 7,240 19,784

124,112 142,329
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6. FRFIRTEF
AREE BB AR DEMB (A

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AN EIBEER -
2021 % 2020
2021 2020
AR¥ TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEMERAE Cost of properties sold 3,629,596 3,363,348
ABEITE SR EMEEER  Direct operating expenses (including

HEELERY repairs and maintenance) arising on

(BIEHIENRRERE) rental-earning investment properties 12,808 5,559
M - WEREETE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 13 6,020 8,307
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(c) 4,752 5913
ER LA Amortisation of intangible assets* 16 1,855 2,930
HEME - WE&H& Gain on disposal of items of property,

18 B Myl as plant and equipment* (84) @1)
Hoh e W IE R (A Impairment of other receivables = 13,309
BAFEFAEECSR Change in fair value of financial assets

BEMRFEET) at fair value through profit or loss*** 85,530 (71,086)
BRATEAEBRZ Dividend income from financial assets

S RUEE R AR BB * at fair value through profit or loss* (6,207) (18,412)
TR AGTZ2HERED Lease payments not included in the

HENK measurement of lease liabilities 1,464 642
Z SR BN & Auditor’s remuneration 4,700 4,600
BERAMAX (BIEEEZHM Employee benefit expense (including

(H1aEs)) - directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

e A REDER Salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind 191,461 202,034

ARG R4 E R IR B S Equity-settled share option expense 15,751 33,774

RO ETEIEE R Pension scheme contributions* 14,023 6,588

221,235 242,396
VE W 2= REHRE 7~ Foreign exchange differences, net** 2,861 (9,490)
* STAGEEREBERNTEMRA R - * Included in “Other income and gains” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
# HALABREN (TR - # Included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
** SAGEREERS [HbEx] - xx Included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit
orloss.
i WD QU S AN EE (1EAET) i There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as

the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

FARBEEIR A R FKFE
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7. BFEERA 7. FINANCE COSTS
BTSRRI R An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
20215 20204F
2021 2020
AR%T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBGENE Interest on lease liabilities 306 331
IR1T R EMERA R Interest on bank and other borrowings 178,953 167,581
1B E=EF Interest on senior notes 136,427 56,488
WREBNEENFEHY Interest expense arising from revenue contracts 5,599 10,592
321,285 234,992
B B LR A Less: Interest capitalised (170,484) (99,438)
150,801 135,554
3. BEERESTRASITH 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
ERNEERSSITHRASHMEE - Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
A BB THEHIE 383(1)@) - () pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
OFROERAT(REEEMNEER) S8 Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
I 2 SIEL R o (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation.
ZEWB AT EREREENZE The remuneration of each of these directors as recorded in the
EERANEMENNT financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out below:
20215 2020
2021 2020
AR®T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Fees 1,119 1,062
HEmpHe - Other emoluments:
Ha o EBEREWEN Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,989 6,033
BIETEAT Discretionary bonuses 324 8816
L‘X%% EE R BERRER Equity-settled share option expense 6,087 11,546
RIREFTEMER Pension scheme contributions 204 88
13,604 26,483
14,723 27,545
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8. EEREARTTBASHM =

RBEFE BETEENEFRNTER
WERNAEBEREORBERIEARFE
RAFEENBREN S (ER M
34) R B - BROE — T FBHNY
BMRMITE 34 - ZFEBBAEO D HE (R
BEHFENMERRARER) R H B &
o ARNFEMBHRRAMESECE
RELABERZESTTRABFHMKE
A o

(a) BYFHITES
FARBLFRTESINNESE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

In prior years, certain directors and the chief executive officer were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as defined in note 34) of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

wmR the year were as follows:
20215 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBZ T Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna 373 354
RREERAE Mr. Hung Wan Shun Stephen 373 354
IR L Ms. Lin Yanna 373 354
1,119 1,062

FRBEEMEMNBYIFNITES
24 (20204F : £E) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).
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8. EENESITHRAELEM = 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) BITEE —BIEHTESER (b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
RETHAE the chief executive

e AR
2ER HEW BikE
BNER BERL BREMX R B
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits Discretionary  share option scheme Total

Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

AR®TR ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR AR®TR ARETR
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2021 F 2021
HIES: Executive directors:
mRALE Mr. Lun Zhao Ming = 1,823 - 1,571 15 3,409
ETERAE Mr. Lu Peijun = 1,456 183 1,571 56 3,266
ERELE Mr. Luo Chengyu
(Hizta) (note (i) = 1,249 141 237 56 1,683
AeELE Mr. Lau Kam Kwok
(Hz0) Dickson (note (i) - 414 - 263 6 683
- 4,942 324 3,642 133 9,041
FHTES: Non-executive director:
fRIREEE Mr. Lun Ruixiang - 2,047 - 2,445 71 4,563
- 6,989 324 6,087 204 13,604
2020 F 2020
HOEE: Executive directors:
mERALE Mr. Lun Zhao Ming - 1687 4216 3007 15 8925
EmELE Mr. Lu Peijun - 1343 718 3007 21 5,089
ZIEEEE Mr. Lau Kam Kwok,
Dickson - 1,265 1265 810 15 3355
- 4295 6,199 6,824 51 17369
FHITES Non-executive director:
Rt Mr. Lun Ruixiang - 1738 2617 4722 37 9114
- 6,033 8816 11546 88 26483
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8.

9.

BEERRSTBRAEEM =)

(b) HITEE —BHFITESER
BSTBRAR(#E)
st -

(i) 24 LA R2021FE5 A7 B B
EARRRIES -

iy BEREELER2021F5A7HE
ZEAAREES -

FAMBESIILLHRELRE
PREAAH

hEREHMES
FRNAABEHHEEDE=2EF
(20205 : %)+ HFMEFERAYB
BERMES - BT HEFRBHMERRN
REERF BT

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
the chief executive (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Lau Kam Kwok Dickson resigned as a director of the
Company on 7 May 2021.

(i) Mr. Luo Chengyu was appointed as a director of the Company
on 7 May 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2020: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining highest paid non-director employees for the year are as

follows:

20214 2020 4

2021 2020

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

e RN EETR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,580 6,031
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 4,178 10,732
DA #e 45 5 1O BE IS AR B =2 Equity-settled share option expense 570 1,179
RIREFTEIME R Pension scheme contributions 49 36
10,377 17,978
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9.

10.

162

EEBEFMHESR 0
FHHN T AT HRENFES R HMNE
BAZIT :

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

4,000,001 78 7T & 4,500,000 75 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 -
5,000,001 /& JLE 5,500,000 78 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 = 1
8,000,001 78 JT & 8,500,000 7 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 1 -
16,000,001 B JLE 16,500,000 7C  HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 = 1
2 2

RBEFE  ETHESIFRSTHR
ABZERFHMERRBERNAKELR
HEORB MERBEAAE - BHE— D
BN MR M R34 - ZEBAAED
ANHE(RRBERAERBERR AR R
RO BHETE  BEAFEMBRERAM
HEWOFAALMFESMIFERTR
ABZERHMEEHIRENR -

PSR
FEBARAEEREARERRLE
R TE B4 75 R A R 7 A ST 15 10 R
EREEMHAFEH - RENSHER
HBELRBRARER  AEERH
SHEREBEAHEEMRINEE
SRS -

HRAREBEREANL BEETBELDTM
ERF & MERNLTEELEERNE
TREE (2020F : ) - AEERFER
b B HY T BB A RZE 1R 25%F % (20204
25%) B AN Bl 1 PSR -

THIEER IR T B EAISELRER
R30%E60% U BNIHEMERBR
ERAIRASY - BELHMAAR - B3R
RAREMYERERSY - AEBER
BREEEREEEERMEET
Hat R B BERF A L g E R BE -
THEERBEERE T REE BRK
FE RO o

10.

In prior years, share options were granted to certain non-directors
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in note
34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amounts included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the
entities within the Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2020: Nil). Subsidiaries of the Group operating
in Mainland China are subject to the CIT at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated and included in taxation a provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review and
approval by the local tax bureau.
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10. FISHMAX (#®) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
2021 % 2020 F
2021 2020
AR%T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIHA - Current;
R ESH PRCCIT 250,574 230,655
o B 3 IR (E R (A et 31) PRC LAT (note 31) 234,553 366,283
485,127 596,938
BRI (Kt 32) Deferred (note 32) 66,641 (8,283)
FABIEZ KR Total tax charge for the year 551,768 588,655
FRAAT REKXZHW B AT FTE A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
SEREEREER R ENR B ADETR tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
BEEREY  BRFEATERM K and most of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
EHMIBERTHEAT ¢ effective tax rate for the year are as follows:
2021 2020
2021 2020
AR%T T % ARETT
RMB’000 % RMB'000
B 52 A 4 A1) Profit before tax 1,102,164 1,329,129
BARBATETSIE  Taxcharge at the PRC statutory
STERFIE income tax rate 275,541 25.0 332,282 250
PIEEEBREN—Z  Share of (profit)/loss
BtS D EFE(L attributable to joint ventures
CaH),/EE and an associate (5,075) (0.4) (49,026) 3.7)
BARBUA Income not subject to tax (8,584) (0.8) (2,005) 0.2)
A AR B 2 Expenses not deductible for tax 31,342 2.8 131 0.1
RIERTTEE S Tax losses not recognised 82,629 7.5 31,381 24
T i E R B Provision for LAT 234,553 21.3 366,283 276
TH IR ER ARG ZE  Taxeffect on LAT (58,638) (5.3) (91,571) 6.9)
BRAEBERRE Tax charge at the Group's
FTEMFHIES N effective tax rate 551,768 50.1 588,655 443
HE2021FN2ANHILEFEZSMHEE The share of tax attributable to joint ventures was RMB22,708,000
EEERIER AR 22,708,0007T(2020 (2020: RMB147,789,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

F 0 AR 1477890007T) °
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11.

12.

164

iz B

EREIRE — SRR
248781 (20204 : 4.95711)

11.

DIVIDENDS

2020 5
2020
ARETTT
RMB'000

20215
2021

ARBT R
RMB’000

Proposed final — HK2.48 cents
(2020: HK4.95 cents) per ordinary share

106,351 218,643

ERAAREEGREERRBEFAE
FRARRBRRAER T AEER -

BRAHAEARSERET

HZE2021F 12 A3 ALEFEZ2BREAR
B THERT R RHEE AELF N
A R 256,140,000 70 (2020F = A R ¥
516,3560007C ) & F N E 17 & B R
2 N #E S 15 805,254,000,000 B (2020 4F -
5,221,700,820 %) 51 & -

FARETEHZ2020F 12831 BIEFES
REE AR EF) 2 @R hnie B AR
AIE T 00 @AY - RIFE AL
17 (& BB 7E33(a)) TR 4,465,899,900
BREBE BOZEROENRFRNE
T AERARBITR EMEEETH
788,100,000 % L A% - #E— T FBHR
B 53R R T 5 33(0) ©

BEREERNSEDHBREIARTNEAA
EEFRENTE  ARENEBR
MEFHER)ARFTESRERAN
MEARD BT ERBINEFSE &)
RN BB L B R ETE
REBEREEERTHERRNEFY
eV -

12.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent of RMB256,140,000 (2020: RMB516,356,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,254,000,000 (2020: 5,221,700,820) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
represented 100 ordinary shares of the Company issued,
4,465,899,900 ordinary shares issued pursuant to the Capitalisation
Issue (as defined in note 33(a)) as if these shares had been in issue
throughout the year, as well as 788,100,000 ordinary shares issued
upon the completion of the listing of the Company, as further
detailed in note 33(b) to the financial statements.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the total of (i) the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, and (ii) the weighted average number of
ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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12. '! NEIEEANELESIIRZF] 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
4z ) OWNERS OF THE PARENT (Continued)

i REARREERF HERIAT A The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are
& based on:
2021 20204F
2021 2020
AR%T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BF| Earnings
RARETEEREREEERNZ  Profit attributable to owners of the parent,
YNSIE RS DN g used in the basic and diluted earnings
per share calculation 256,140 516,356
gy Shares
ARG EEREREN 2 FA Weighted average number of ordinary
BT T mAREY I 19 8L shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation 5,254,000,000 5,221,700,820

BEYE — LR INMETIIE - Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

g Share options 136,451 1,348,261
AR EEREERT 2FANE  Weighted average number of ordinary
BATE AR IR T2 shares in issue during the year used in

the diluted earnings per share calculation 5,254,136,451 5,223,049,081
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13. W% - MERRE 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RE HER
HEMHEE WRAERE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202112 A31H 31 December 2021
R2021F1 A1 8 At 1 January 2021:
BN Cost 16,373 55,748 28,994 101,115
2FHE Accumulated depreciation (1,975) (11,890) (21,920 (35,785)
REFE Net carrying amount 14,398 43,858 7,074 65,330
R221F1 818 At 1 January 2021, net of
Sk 2 E accumulated depreciation 14,398 43,858 7,074 65,330
W BB B AR (f5E37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = 782 = 782
B Additions 1,396 8,582 919 10,897
HE Disposals (870) (268) (432) (1,570)
HEMB AR (F7£38)  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (344) = - (344)
FAMERE Depreciation provided during
the year (734) (3,755) (1,531) (6,020)
[EH AR Exchange realignment - (4) = (4)
R2021F 128318 At 31 December 2021, net of
KB EE accumulated depreciation 13,846 49,195 6,030 69,071
R2021F 128318 : At 31 December 2021;
AR Cost 16,555 64,840 29,481 110,876
2FHE Accumulated depreciation (2,709) (15,645) (23,451) (41,805)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,846 49,195 6,030 69,071
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13. Y% - MENREZREB = 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

HEMEEE N AE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Leasehold

improvements
ARBFR
RMB'000

202012 A31H
202051 418 ¢

31 December 2020
At 1 January 2020:

R Cost 9,159 15,211 23,119 47489

REtIE Accumulated depreciation (2,275) (8,794) (18813) (29882)

REFE Net carrying amount 6,884 6417 4306 17,607
R2020F1 818 At 1 January 2020, net of

TR RETIE accumulated depreciation 6,884 6,417 4306 17,607
U BERTBAR] (Bf5E37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) - 273 238 511
NE Additions 8,825 41,268 6,776 56,869
HE Disposals (960) (25) (365) (1,350)
FANERE Depreciation provided during

the year (351) (4,075) (3,881) (8307)

R2020%F 128318 ¢ At 31 December 2020, net of

B RETNE accumulated depreciation 14,398 43,858 7074 65,330
R2020%F 128318 : At 31 December 2020:

A Cost 16373 55,748 28,994 101,115

ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (1,975) (11,890) (21,920 (35,785)

REFE Net carrying amount 14398 43358 7,074 65,330
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=l

14. IREWME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B23%T T2
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7202041 A1 BHMBEEEE  Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 331,000 671,900 1,002,900
EEREHENERT Transfer from completed
LE properties held for sale 170,201 - 170,201
NE Additions - 146,302 146,302
WM B AR (AtaE37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 28,746 44,192 72,938
N ERABREFRE Net gains from fair value
adjustments (8,647) 50,206 41,559
7202012 A31B & Carrying amount at 31 December 2020
2014F1 A1 BREREE  and 1 January 2021 521,300 912,600 1,433,900
Ue BB B A B (M5t 37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) - 162,427 162,427
NE Additions - 91,716 91,716
HEWNBRF (M 38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (28,900) (43,000) (71,900)
N EFAEREFE Net gains from fair value
adjustments (35,100) 205,857 170,757
R2021F 12 A31 B/ Carrying amount at 31 December 2021
REE 457,300 1,329,600 1,786,900

AEBHOEBREMEMRPRERAM - I
K221 FNANBREBLBEEA
EREEMHREBITOETFERES
BRAR(HEHIT)ETHHESE
& A AR #1,786900,000 7T (2020 4 :
AR 1,433,900,000 7T ) ©

NEEER

HZE 2021 F K 2020F 12 A31HILFE -
NEBMIEEMEFERERTAHERE
A (B=ZF) ETAFEE -

E=ZRR MARAFEFAEZRED
XEEERSMRERE -

RAFE  F—HEAF-_H2HEITED
TEA=2ER TEEASELEE =&
NFEFTE (202045 « #) -

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and were revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited (“JLL"), independent professionally qualified valuers, at
RMB1,786,900,000 (2020: RMB1,433,900,000).

Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair value
measurements of the Group's investment properties used significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that are
measured at fair value, the properties have been used in their
highest and best use.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: Nil).
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14. ?ﬁﬁ#@ ¥ (#&) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
ANFEEF () Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
T EERGERMOBMERKREY Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
EMENEZS i AZE the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
fEER EXTAERAARE T
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Weighted average
2021 F 2020F
2021 2020
RERENE
Investment properties under construction
28 WA st ReBEBYARREA) AR¥552136 T ARES8Z 12T
Retail Income approach Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB55-136 RMB58-132
REZEE %) 3 3-5
Long term vacancy rate (%) 3 3-5
B E o) 4.5-5 45-5
Capitalisation rate (%) 4.5-5 45-5
BIE URAEREE RreIkE-FTI8RFHR AR¥ 880 7T AR 9007
Hotel Discounted cash flow approach  Average daily room rate in the first year of completion RMB880 RMB900
BEESERE®) 3 3
Stabilised rental growth rate (%) 3 3
BEALZE %) 70 70
Stabilised occupancy rate (%) 70 70
RRERE () 8 8
Discount rate (%) 8 8
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14. IREWME &) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
NEEEBR(E) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BRI EXTUBEEGAHE I
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Weighted average
20215 20205
2021 2020
ERIRENE
Completed investment properties
TE BRACREE st e BE(BYAAREA) AR¥91 T ARET
Retail Discounted cash flow approach  Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB91 RMB97
BEHSERE® 3 3
Stabilised rental growth rate (%) 3 3
BEE K (o) 8 8
Discount rate (%) 8 8
WA e HeBE(BTARREN) AR¥97 T ARENTT
Income approach Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB97 RMB117
REZEX (%) 3 3
Long term vacancy rate (%) 3 3
B E (%) 3.25-4.75 325-475
Capitalisation rate (%)
fFEfL WA st e BE(BRELREA) AR#188 T AR 1887
Car parking space  Income approach Estimated rental value (per lot and per month) RMB188 RMB188
REZEER (%) 5 5
Long term vacancy rate (%) 5 5
B E o) 4 4
Capitalisation rate (%) 4 4
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DR EBRE)

RIEFRREREE AFEDFEAR
RERMAERNF SN BEBREERN
FH(BREERRKEE) 1T -
ZIEEREMEREN —ERREDR
SRR - MISITERMB RERARTERER
TnE - WERLEERBEARIRD
BRE BElaX - REBEETEF
REAIRE -

BemnegnHERBLRATIRHAE
EREOAESRE  BHREEE
- BERHABHEEMFRE - BENF
BREBX TSR (RYFRER SN — B
) PR - MR SR ERBKATIR
ZE  TAKEAX - WEEE - HBE
BE #EER KENEERRE
R EME RS A o Z— RIIEM
REWAFRE - ERBEARERMRE
R &REEEMGT2E  BRRERE-

RIBBAOL - BETIIREERBHEOMN
SHSWAFETABENMETT  WiE
EERMENERKDESN  H2EH
BRALRRZET  EPERIMED
HEARRZ ZEE - R R E RN
=

A HEBERESFEREEFAE
#in/ RO eEEREWERATEKRE
g m e REEEXR BRELE
AR BBAREE N, D GEBURE
WE N TFERERD, L o

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flows in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and
outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment. The
appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period,
is then discounted.

Under the income approach, valuations are based on the
capitalisation of net rental income derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the properties or made with reference to comparable market
transactions and with consideration of adjustments to reflect
differences in transaction timing, location and tenure.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value and the
rental growth per annum in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties. A
significant increase/decrease in the long term vacancy rate, the
discount rate and the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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15. &
REBIEEBAEA
AEEBELERBARATEMAITAR
EAH)  MEWNT2E5HF o

@@ ERAEEE
RAFE  AEBEOEREEER

15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in its
operations, which have lease terms between 2 to 5 years.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and

[ERESE&-EIONNE the movements during the year are as follows:
#E A 35 P
Office premises

2021 F 2020 4F
2021 2020
AR¥ TR ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A1H At 1 January 6,684 10,134
NE Additions - 2,494
REFFELTH Depreciation charged during the year (4,752) (5913)
b H R Exchange realignment 78 @31
W12A31H At 31 December 2,010 6,684

(b) HERME
RAFE  AEENEERERE

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group'’s lease liabilities and the

ERZFHNT : movements during the year are as follows:
2021 5 2020
2021 2020
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1 A1 BREREE Carrying amount at 1 January 7,297 10,372
EE New leases - 2494
RAFE R ERFLE Accretion of interest recognised during
the year 306 331
INE:N Payment (5,748) (6,307)
bE 5, L Exchange realignment 157 407
K12 A31 HRREE Carrying amount at 31 December 2,012 7,297
DT - Analysed into:
mENE S Current portion 1,933 5,163
ERBE D Non-current portion 79 2,134

HEBEZIHALTREKRE
BT 46 45T -
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The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 46 to the
financial statements.
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15. A& (&)
REBERAREAE)
(© BESREXEINSEHT -

TATEMENTS

15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

2021 5§ 20204F
2021 2020
AR%T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBGERE Interest on lease liabilities 306 331
FREEENES T Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 4,752 5913
TSR EHARN R HAR ok Expense relating to short-term leases and
ZRIERCEBMEER other leases with remaining lease terms
HEmAERERYL ended on or before the end of
(GTATTBRHX) the reporting period
(included in administrative expenses) 1,464 642
RIB= R R Total amount recognised in profit or loss 6,522 6,386

(d) MHERSRDABRYBRENE
39(c) #E 57 ©

AEBEEREBEA
AEBRBELLHAELHHEEREWE
(KIzE14) - BIEMRFPEN=EEEYD
¥ - AEERFRABRNESWABA
R #3,923,0007T(20204F : A RE3,267,000
70) - BREAFIBER Y S REMESE) ©

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 39(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of
three commercial properties in the PRC under operating lease
arrangements. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB3,923,000 (2020: RMB3,267,000), details of which are
included in note 5(a) to the financial statements.
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16. B, EE 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B
Software

2021 F 2020 4F
2021 2020
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

REH At the beginning of the year:
BAR Cost 15,218 10,130
RN Accumulated amortisation (7,600) (4,670)
REVFE Net carrying amount 7,618 5,460

RER) - R RETEEH At the beginning of the year,
net of accumulated amortisation 7,618 5,460
NE Additions 558 5,088
F R E Amortisation provided during the year (1,855) (2,930)

RER - &M BrT# 6 At the end of the year, net of
accumulated amortisation 6,321 7618

RER : Atthe end of the year:

B AR Cost 15,776 15218
BT Accumulated amortisation (9,455) (7,600)
R FE Net carrying amount 6,321 7618
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

17. REBELENRE

2021 % 2020 F

2021 2020

AR%T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

DMEEEFE Share of net assets 290,660 225,061
DERRBEENEK Receivable from a joint venture classified

—REBERENIEAE as current assets 160,256 258,121

R2021F 128318 EIR—REE %
B 7B A R 5 160,256,000 7T (2020 4 : A
R#258121,00070) A - 2 F &
6.18% (2020 : 6.18%) 7T B + W AR 12
EAREE -

EHEEEBEESEZASEEL BB
MASEYEMBIEEERNEEEREE
I RABBEEME - BIEERNE
B B R VE P A I B IR B O B R 2R
OBARORTER - WMEW —REE B E
MRIBEGFEAREOCE RS -
R2021F K% 2020512 A31 H » "RARIE
ERE - BEBHEETAEN -

As at 31 December 2021, receivable from a joint venture of
RMB160,256,000 (2020: RMB258,121,000), which is unsecured, bears
interest at the rate of 6.18% (2020: 6.18%) per annum and is
repayable within 12 months.

The ECLs are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group and the amount
payable to the relevant contractors for the Group’s property
development projects. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. There was no recent history of default and past due
amounts for the receivable from a joint venture. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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17. REBELENRE »#)
AEMY SELEHBENT -

17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows:

176

df kAR RE

Registered and

paid-up capital

HRERRHEXARAF" AR 1960784007
Hunan Development Gaoxin RMB196,078,400

Properties Company Limited

REMEHRHBERAR AR% 1000000070
Dongguan Nanfangjuan RMB10,000,000

Textile Limited

HESRAERARAF AR 3000000070
Xuzhou Huijing Jiacheng RMB30,000,000

Properties Company Limited

ez -

N EAECEBAARRERSS -

*

RIBPEZRELRANEBRQF -

MR % A R THEA IE R A A
B MERXAWIBARRERES
NEERRERETXAMMSK

HATES

Percentage of
dMRERES FEERR REE  EfeN TEED

Place of
registration  Ownership Voting Profit
and business interest power sharing Principal activity
mE/HE R 49% 49% 49% mER%
PRC/Mainland China 49% 49% 49%  Property development
mE/HE R 50% 50% 50% mER%
PRC/Mainland China 50% 50% 50%  Property development
mE/HE R 50% 50% 50% mER%
PRC/Mainland China 50% 50% 50%  Property development
Notes:

The above joint ventures are indirectly held by the Company.

*

Registered as a domestic limited liability company under PRC law.

The English name of this company represents the best effort made by
management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese name
as it did not register any official English name.
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17. REBLENRE 2 17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
TREAAXEETBENEAZAED The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of
EEABBER the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

2021 % 2020
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMEABEFERH Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the year 20,299 196,103
PMEGELEEZEWRALTE Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income 20,299 196,103
REBREELEREN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
BRmEEE investment in joint ventures 290,660 225,061
18. A —FEEPENRE 18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
20215 2020 4
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TMEBEFE Share of net assets 2,235 -
REEZEBEPEFBOT : Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows:

EATES®
Percentage of

AMREKEE  EEEE REE EOHERN TBED

Place of
registration and Ownership Voting Profit
business interest power  sharing Principal activity
Tk mEETEERRAA R B A 27.5% 27.5% 275% PIEEFRE
Qionglai Xindayu Real Properties PRC/Mainland China 27.5% 27.5% 27.5% Property development
Company Limited
Kt - Notes:
* BEPBRERELANEGRAT © * Registered as a domestic limited liability company under PRC law.
# R & AR AR ER AR CE ’ The English name of this company represents the best effort made by
B WEEXEZBITHANGEEES management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese name
NEEBZAPXHEmMER - as it did not register any official English name.
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18. R—XEELENIRE (#) 18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
TEREMAEETBERIEANZBE D The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s
¥ ER associate that is not individually material:

20214
2021
AR® T
RMB’000
DIREE D EFEEE Share of the associate’s loss for the year (3,265)
DR E P ESTEBBAE Share of the associate’s total comprehensive loss (3,265)
REBRBECERENEREAE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's investment
in the associate 2,235
19. HIERMBELMEHEN it 19. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
2021 5§ 2020 F
2021 2020
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FYIRMEAE Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 1,657,879 1,044,817
NE Additions 675,689 613,062
RS E Y Transfer to properties under development (615,492) -
HEWB AT (Hit38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (7,125) -
FREEEE Carrying amount at the end of the year 1,710,951 1,657,879
JEEER —EREE L EEABA  Current portion expected to be recovered
Uz [a] # BN A B > within normal operating cycle after
one year (1,113,137) (1,161,151)
JEBNHEAER > Non-current portion 597,814 496,728
R2021F 128318 AEE VEEAE At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's land held for
B A R#986,818,0007T (2020 F « AR development for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
931,352,000 7T ) B9 {ERI B A H E 8 E RMB986,818,000 (2020: RMB931,352,000) was pledged to secure
FHHEEHEE - LERE T AREFRL certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

BT IRIT REMER (PEE29) -
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20.

21.

EXELYES 20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2021 % 2020 F
2021 2020
N ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEERA IE B & EH E U E A Properties under development expected to
R be recovered within normal operating cycle:
—F R Within one year 2,180,734 1,914,511
— Fig After one year 1,207,768 1,030,430

3,388,502 2,944,941

202112831 B AEBZEREAE
B AR #1,455104,0007C (20205 : AR
#1,050,172,00070) K9/ THEEZWME D E
iR UERR FAEENETRITR
EMER(HIEE29) ©

BEHENCRTIYE
FR2021F 12831 B AEBZEREAE
BARE8506150007C (20205 + AR
620,450,000 7C) K& TRHEHEMZ R T
MECEER UERRTFAEENS
FR1T REAE R (FIEE29) ©

21.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,455,104,000 (2020: RMB1,050,172,000) was pledged to secure
certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB850,615,000
(2020: RMB620,450,000) was pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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2 5 EWERRR 22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

180

B 5 YRR

20215 20204
2021 2020

ARETT

ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB'000

Trade receivables 37,497 56,760

B O RURFIEMEHEEEMNREIE
e MERBRERZFIRBIEHES
BEMIEREN - AEB OB HERK
FEWBR R FFERAE 1 ) - 118 HA 45 B
ERETHEZ -

ENAEENEZRVERRELEZ T
tEFER BUYBENEFERKRSE
e Z!K%@Iﬁﬁdﬂﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ%mmﬁ%
FAETAEFARREMERER - B
R A TEER -

RFRE 5 BRI W R B Ik
HZAHHRESITANT

—FR Within 1 year

Trade receivables represent receivables arising from the sale of
properties. Consideration in respect of properties is payable by the
customers in accordance with the terms of the related sale and
purchase agreements. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances, which are
reviewed regularly by management.

Since the Group's trade receivables are related to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the year,
based on the revenue recognition date or invoice date, is as follows:

20215 20204
2021 2020
AREETIT

ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB'000

37,497 56,760

AEBERAESYBREERFE A
AR F AR TEHEE BB IE L #
# ZBRTATEMEE S ERERIR
A2 ERTEREEEE -  ERXNYETEBE
EEBXEERAENTE  AQAE
$wu7%ﬁlig uxﬁnnﬁ?iﬁwﬁﬁﬁggﬂgmﬁﬁ
FEWNEKR o 72202149 N 2020512
A318  BSEIERNEERETH
BEM -

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. Based on the
evaluation on the expected credit loss rate and gross carrying
amount, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
financial impact of ECLs in respect of these balances is considered
immaterial. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance for
trade receivables was assessed to be minimal.
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23. FE{TEXIE - HihfEWERIER E 23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

MhEE OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020 4
2021 2020
AR%ET R AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SEUNE Q| Prepayments 3,176,374 1,721,680
TEELA #IR R AR Cost of obtaining contracts 70,064 37,336
Hih e WRIE ML e Other receivables and deposits 504,601 422,799
3,751,039 2,181,815

HEURBRIZEEBEERT £
BERRELKEE ABRMEERAE
Re EHEEBB2EAEERLES
Bt AEEYEREIEE B EE
EBPERIE KABEERAMG - BB
KRN EE R 7 B A R IR RIS
LK FEORI R A EAR S - WK B — K
BB EWGTE K E A ERGIETT
R B AR RO ER 2 B8 - 2021 FF
202012 A31H » RRABEERE
EEREWTAEM

24. BV EFARGSZEMEE

24.

Other receivables and deposits mainly represent deposits with
contractors which are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand and rental deposits. The ECLs are estimated
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group and the amount payable to the relevant
contractors for the Group's property development projects. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. There was no recent
history of default and past due amounts for the receivable from a
joint venture and other receivables. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT ORLOSS

2021 F
2021

2020 4F
2020
AREFTT
RMB'000

ARBT T
RMB’000

AR E (IRAFE) Listed equity investments, at fair value 56,251 89,324
Hi3E FmESIRE (R ATE)  Otherunlisted fund investments, at fair value 176,568 405,514
232,819 494,838

ERBEARE RS D BREAFERFTA
BRZEREE  THREANRER
BVIARBAE KA BMHK -

LS ERER AR DB RRAFE
SRABRmZEREE RA/EANR
EREVFARINAERFE - BERQ
FEFABRZEBEENRTFRER
B R E B B TS SRR MY R 45

The above equity investments were mandatorily classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

The above unlisted investments were mandatorily classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. Details
of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are set out in note 45 to the financial statements.
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25. IWERIWITEERR

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2021 F 2020 4F
2021 2020
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
W RIRITES Cash and bank balances 2,702,420 2,083,723
HaE Notes:
@ 2021 F 1283 BHIRS RIRITAR (@  Included in the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2021 are

BIEERARE 253,613,000 7C(20204F :
AR #37072500070) ° RIBAEE =
FHBAREETEENEHERRE
Wi ZEHBARBBESYENTE
ERBHEAETRITIES - Z5TFHE
A AR B A R E AR ER B
AREEBEEER -

R2021F 12831 HNE S RIRITES
BIEERT AR 164,517,0007T(2020
£ AR#16,130,0007T) © iRIEAEE
AETHBARMBEENEBERRER
o ZEMBARZAERETERITERERS
TEARBIEBER -

R2021F 1283 HRE S RIRITER
BIEERFIRITHF AR 800,000,000
JL(2020%F : ) EFEAFTEX IR
#l o

RBERR FEBZRAREGTEZR
© RIR T4 8 A A R ¥2,700062,0007C
(20205« AR#1,986,2950007C) ° AR
BAEAMEEEHLET  BRESD
Bl b OB B IR R I A5 BB - TE R A
EEEBRTE AEEEFEZEBEREE
TTHMNEZEBRRITIEARB L AEAM

FRIRTHBSREST A AYRITE R
REBUF BN E o RITHERDERESR
RiF(EE BT I ER2 AR A RTT o
Be MRITESRAERL QA FERS

deposits of RMB253,613,000 (2020: RMB370,725,000). According to
relevant loan facility agreements signed by certain subsidiaries of the
Group with the banks, these subsidiaries are required to place the pre-
sale proceeds of their properties at designated bank accounts. The
deposits can only be used for the payment of property development
costs incurred by the subsidiaries and the repayment of the relevant
loans.

(b) Included in the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2021 are
guarantee deposits of RMB164,517,000 (2020: RMB16,130,000).
According to relevant loan facility agreements signed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group, the subsidiaries are required to place
deposits at designated bank accounts as a guarantee.

(c) Included in the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2021 is a
pledged bank deposit of RMB800,000,000 (2020: Nil) which is restricted
as to use.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB2,700,062,000
(2020: RMB1,986,295,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and bank balances approximate to their fair values.
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26. EZEBTIRM 26. TRADE PAYABLES
2021 % 20204F
2021 2020
AR%T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JENE=HME ZER Trade payables to third parties 1,597,579 1,708,751
FEA fm 4 S HE P ) Trade payables to related companies
BB N R E SR controlled by Mr. Lun Ruixiang 80,497 30,197
1,678,076 1,738,948
REXRE G ENBERIZEEHHNER An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year,
ST : based on the invoice date, is as follows:
2021 5 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥ T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FR Within 1 year 941,593 1,389,669
—EMmF 1 to 2 years 418,462 277233
BB F More than 2 years 318,021 72,046
1,678,076 1,738,948
BIORNEFREER T8 B— The trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally
BIRBASREEREYMENEREESEE - settled based on the progress of the construction of the Group's

properties under development.
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27. H{hENFIE - EWIZE£ N FE 27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

HEH ACCRUALS
20215 2020 F
2021 2020
AR% TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hth FE {5 0B Other payables 384,565 184,018
[ Deposits received 23,366 308,273
FEZtE A Accruals 122,596 227,698
530,527 719,989
EfEMFIE - Bl METERA Other payables, deposits received and accruals are unsecured, non-
B T ERR—FAEE - interest-bearing and repayable within one year.
28. A& 28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
AEECHAUTEHELZEHANEGHNE The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract
f&: liabilities:

20216 20204

2021 2020

AR¥ TR ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Y S E B IGUIR Receipts in advance for sale of properties 2,676,239 2,223,304
REBERBYEEES LT W TR The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
RAZFUELFIE - (F0R & £ ¥ 2 8 schedules as established in the property sale contracts. Payments are
EENEITZRIHER - usually received in advance under the contracts which are from the

sale of properties.
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29. st ERMRITREHMER 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
20215
2021
ERA= A ARETT EREAX # ARETT
Effective Effective
interest IEES
rate Maturity RMB'000 rate Maturity RMB'000
EDER Current
RIOER—HHEHE Bankloans — secured 1.51%-9% 2022 868,888  4.35%-9.02% 2021 488,600
HiEsD — BHA Other loans — secured 9%-14% 2022 583,591 9%-13.5% 2021 334,500
1,452,479 823,100
FENH Non-current
BITER —BHA Bank loans — secured 5.15%-13%  2023-2029 1,673,762 475%-850%  2022-2023 783,040
HEH — R Otherloans —secured ~ 12%-13.5%  2023-2029 470,000  9%-135%  2022-2023 290,000
2,143,762 1,073,040
3,596,241 1,896,140
2021 F 2020 4F
2021 2020
AR®T T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DT Analysed into:
EERITER Bank loans repayable
—FER Within one year 868,888 488,600
F_F In the second year 736,752 144,150
F=ZhE(PEEEMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 318,642 638,890
AFMNUE Beyond fifth years 618,368 -
2,542,650 1,271,640
EEHAMER Other borrowings repayable
—&FR Within one year 583,591 334,500
F_F In the second year 120,000 20,000
FoEZhF(REEREMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 350,000 270,000
1,053,591 624,500
3,596,241 1,896,140
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29.

186

st RERIT R EMERR )

Wit

@)

it

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

KRB 2 ETIRITREMETATI
AR IR

(a)

EHRAREERN G AREERE
A R 986,818,000 T (2020 4 :
A R # 931,352,000 7T ) H) £ 1E B
B HEEN i (F5E19)

(i)

EHRAEBEmAEBEARE
1,455,104,000 7T (2020 F : AR
1,050,172,000 7T, ) &9 7E 22 49 2 (M
£20) :

(if)

EHRAEBEmMEBABARE
850,615,0007T (20204F : A R #
62045000070 ) MFEHENE
BTE (MisE21) &

(iff)

RS R B E T
JE RO

(iv)

A& E R E A R 3292204000 7T
(20205 = A R #1,896,1400007C) * A
R % 74,846,000 7T (20204F © ) M AR
#5229,191,000 7T (2020 4F © &) BYSRTT &

(b)

HAfER D BIAARYE - BT KT
He

ESIERREBRAE  Huijing Holdings Company Limited

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured or
guaranteed by:

U]

(i)

(iv)

pledges over the Group's land held for development for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of RMB986,818,000 (2020: RMB931,352,000) (note 19);

pledges over the Group's properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,455,104,000 (2020:
RMB1,050,172,000) (note 20);

pledges over the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB850,615,000 (2020:
RMB620,450,000) (note 21); and

pledges over the Group's equity interests in certain subsidiaries
as at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's bank and other borrowings with carrying amounts of
RMB3,292,204,000 (2020: RMB1,896,140,000), RMB74,846,000 (2020: Nil)
and RMB229,191,000 (2020: Nil) are denominated in RMB, Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars, respectively.
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30. BERIR 30. SENIOR NOTES

BRI
(FFZ %) 2021 F 2020 4F
Effective 2021 2020
interest rate ARET T AERBTF T
(% per annum) RMB’000 RMB'000
2021 FRBERE 2021 Senior Notes 12.5 = 871,332
2022 FRBAERE 2022 Senior Notes 12.5 915,930 -
915,930 871,332
20215 2020 £
2021 2020
ARET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

PITR Analysed into:

R—FRNEE Repayable within one year 915,930 871,332
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e

M2020F8 A3H K31 H » ANAF ST
N4 485 135,000,000 F T (H A R #E
930,640,0007C ) KB L B4k - R F FI =%
125%5F 8 o FTERIEF LB 31T
AR 7R 15 #9 55130,832,000 35 7T (H9 A R &
901,907,000 7T) (2021 FEEREE]) -

R2021F7 A2 H @ RABIEBEITA
& 48 %8 51150000003k T (#) AR B
792,767,00070) ~ L FF| L 125%5F B &
20227 A21 BEIEI B R EHE TR
RBEBL  UWXBREBEHRBEASEN
Q00 FBERE - TE KNEBA
115,000,000 F JT B9 2021 F B L EHE W
£ 1 H 8k 7N 2 58 5 20,000,000 3 7T K
2021 FREZBEERFERES -

AR ARARNBETEASREA
23,000,000% JT( £ A K % 158,553,000
JC) ~ FREFME125% 5B R 2022 F 7
A21 BRI EIE B % Z 5 ([2022 F 8 5t
ZE]) -

MIMBN AR B ERE R RIBHZFEAPT
RIS MEE W - AR BT EREREH
HAEARERELEENERE (K
SEIMERNRE) MEEED A BN
REFMARNHE - BRI 2k w0 &%

R o

AREENBRERBASEITAE - WAK
WARBETHE R R BRIEIERELR

Notes:

On 3 and 31 August 2020, the Company issued senior notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$135,000,000 (approximately
RMB930,640,000) bearing interest at 12.5% per annum. The net
proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$130,832,000 (approximately RMB901,907,000) (the
“2021 Senior Notes").

On 22 July 2021, the Company completed an exchange offer by
issuing senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$115,000,000 (approximately RMB792,767,000) bearing interest at
12.5% per annum and due on 21 July 2022 to exchange the 2021
Senior Notes with same principal amount. Upon completion, 2021
Senior Notes with principal amount of US$115,000,000 were cancelled
and the remaining 2021 Senior Notes with principal amount of
US$20,000,000 were settled during the year.

On the same date, the Company also issued senior notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$23,000,000 (approximately
RMB158,553,000) bearing interest at 12.5% per annum and due on 21
July 2022 (the "2022 Senior Notes").

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of the senior
notes at any time prior to the maturity date at a pre-determined
redemption price (principal amount plus applicable premium) plus
accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date, as set forth in
the written agreements between the Company and the trustees of
the senior notes.

The senior notes of the Group are denominated in United States
dollars and are secured by pledges over the equity interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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31. TR EHRE

31. PROVISION FOR LAND APPRECIATION TAX

2021 % 20204F

2021 2020

N ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

®1A1H At 1 January 697,045 595,145
REANBRFZANR (K 10) Charged to the statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) 234,553 366,283

FRRFR Payment during the year (294,194) (264,383)

B12A31H At 31 December 637,404 697,045

RIER 199441 A1 B A E o & + 3%
BEREITHRABRERR195F1 A2718
A AR Y R B A b 3 (B B 1T R ) i 4
Bl - AR B M S sk B i B A L
B BEFRENBREEENTER
5 ¥ 7B 4R 14 (B 58 B 30% 2 60% R i T K
LTI ER  DELTBEEWE
M I ERE BB NRIEE £%8
20% -+ BIBRAN o

AEEDREFBRABREEE AR
ZHE - AEF R DI AT R
ERTHEERABREAHREERETY
XABREERTRET  HHEERTY
AHETMIRERBENEER IR

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the sale or
transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their attached
facilities in Mainland China are subject to LAT at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with an
exemption provided for the sale of ordinary residential properties if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The Group has estimated and made a provision for LAT according to
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on
which the provision for LAT is calculated.
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32, IEZEFRIE 32. DEFERRED TAX

REANEEHREEEKBEZSHIOT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities
e
B £ it B ER B A B i
EEMRE HAfRE EEWN
MIEmEE mEE DNEEBFE
Arising from Fair value
Arising from prepayment adjustments
revaluation of of land arising from
investment appreciation  acquisition of
properties tax subsidiaries Total
ARMET T AR¥ET T AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
R2020F1 818 At T January 2020 79,562 2,922 = 82,484
IEEHT B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Hizt37) (note 37) - - 39,496 39,496
RERBERERA Charged/(credit) to the
e/ (GEA) statement of profit or loss
(Hrati0) during the year
(note 10) 10,390 7,845 (29,059) (10,824)
A2020F 12431 B%  At31 December 2020 and
20211 A1 8 1 January 2021 89,952 10,767 10,437 111,156
IEEHTB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Fizt37) (note 37) - - 27,539 27,539
BB A 7 (Hf7£ 38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) - (7,586) (7,438) (15,024)
RERBREA Charged/(credited) to the
k(5T A) statement of profit or loss
(Hiat10) during the year (note 10) 52,955 (232) (8,893) 43,830
R2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 142,907 2,949 21,645 167,501

190
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32. IRIERIE (&)

CIAL STATEMENTS

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

EEREEE Deferred tax assets
A AR
$ 85 AR 2R
FERBL 2 F B - 1
WEEMELE BBEMEE
Arising
fromlosses  Arising from
ENETET S provision
for offsetting of land
against future  appreciation
taxable profits tax Total
ARET T AR%T T AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
720201 A1H At 1 January 2020 11,979 142,097 154,076
W BB B AR (M et 37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 14,267 - 14,267
RERBRERA (Charged)/credited to the
(0kR),FHA statement of profit or loss
(Hfat10) during the year (note 10) (20,710) 18,169 (2,541)
2020 12 A31 B R At 31 December 2020 and
20011 A1H 1 January 2021 5536 160,266 165,802
WEEKT B AR (M7 37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 25,971 - 25,971
RERBZE AR Charged to the statement of
(Kta10) profit or loss during the year
(note 10) (21,896) (915) (22,811)
R2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 9,611 159,351 168,962
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R2021F 128318 AEEEFREAM
EXENADABREEEAARE
348,938,000 7T (2020 F = AR ¥ 236,007,000
) HAREEELENTERAER
FoAREHEELEBEARNKRKER
TimA o WHRpZEEERERRELTHIE
BE ARERBUANWS BTN 8
RIS se i B A RO FH IR B 18 ©

BFEPEPEMAEHE - NP BEAHAA
T HINERE D ERINE IR E E TR
BB 10% 5 B R GSTEFL o LR E
B 200841 31 B#BAR - Wi A7 2007
F12A31 BEHOEF o i B At B )
Bl EEFERA R AR HE
Bl ] fE B SR A T RS TEIEL - BLA
SEmME BAHERSw - At - A%
B A & TR B R AL 2 EH B
NAIA2008%F 1 A1 BREEENEFFTD
KRR BT TESORL o

2021 F 2020512 A318 » AEEW
LA B A A S M BT B A B A S
TE OB /9 7R B (1 28 R BT FE S B0 TR A0 B AR
RELERE - ARBIEBERE ZSH
BRERAREERTIRAIEDIRZER
F o BR2021F12A31H > ERFEAM
M B~ 5] Y18 & 75 B8 i 30 4 5k U R SRR
EHREAENEREZEAESENAA
R #1,882,7100007C (20204 : A R ®&
2,335,111,000 7C) ©

The Group had unutilised tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB348,938,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB236,007,000)
that can be carried forward for five years from the year in which the
losses arose for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets had not
been recognised in respect of these losses as it was not considered
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses could be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB1,882,710,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB2,335,111,000).

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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33. g 33. SHARE CAPITAL
iz 13 Shares
20214 2020 4
2021 2020
AR%T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
VETE Authorised:
10,000,000,000 i F IR & 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
001 87Tz Ak HK$0.01 each 90,141 90,141
EEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
5,254,000,000 I& B AR TEI & 5,254,000,000 ordinary shares of
001 BTz iRk HK$0.01 each 47,972 47,972

ADARAEBELDT

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

EERHE EEREE

Nominal

Number of value of

ordinary shares ordinary shares
ARMT T
RMB'000

VETE

M 202041 A1 H ~ 20204
12A318 2021 F1 A1B R
202112 A31H

Authorised:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020,
1 January 2021, and 31 December 2021
10,000,000,000

90,141
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33. JRA

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

5 (&) Shares (Continued)
BET
EERHA BRITRA R4 5 1E
Number of
ordinary shares Issued Share
inissue capital premium Total
ARETTL ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:
202051 AR At 1 January 2020 100 - - -
BB Capitalisation Issue (0) 4,465,899,900 40,776 (40,776) -
BITHEADNE LT Issuance of new shares in
AAMITRN connection with the listing
of the Company () 788,100,000 7,19 1,381,584 1,388,780
BDBEITEX Share issue expenses - - (66,535) (66,535)
2019F K55I B 2019 special dividend - - (212,159) (212,159)
7202012 A31 BR  At31 December 2020 and
2021F1 818 1 January 2021 5,254,000,000 47972 1,062,114 1,110,086
2020 F RHEARRS, 2020 final dividend (note 11)
(Frzx11) - - (218,643) (218643)
R2021F 12318 At 31 December 2021 5,254,000,000 47972 843471 891,443

SELONAREE 00T -

RIER 201912811 BEBH R
HER - ARAEEBENMEARBKRD
S 1B AR A 3 BR £ 58 44,658,999 8 JT [A) [
2 N P B it 3% ] 3176 $£4,465,899,900
IR EARY AR TR ([EXR
{E877]) - EAR(EITE R 20201 A
16 B A AR

REBARNBDRMDRE AT EMME
BERSRI1BELHERETEREE
0.0178 7T #) 788,100,000 B ¥ E 3B A% » IR
SRELECT ) 51,521,033,000
7T (A& R AR ¥ 1,388780,0007T) °
ARRII B 20205 1 A 16 B B A A B

ZREE -

BRE

A )RR R AT B AR IR BB B HE AT 813X
th 2 BB 2 FEIT BN B TS R MY 34

* The amount is less than RMB500.
Notes:

(@) Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 11 December
2019, the Company shall allot and issue a total of 4,465,899,900
ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par, to Wui Ying and Wui
Shing by way of capitalisation of the sum of HK$44,658,999 standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company (the
“Capitalisation Issue”). The Capitalisation Issue became unconditional
on 16 January 2020.

(b)  In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, 788,100,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued at a price of HK$1.93 per share for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,521,033,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,388,780,000). Dealings in the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange commenced on 16 January 2020.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
granted under the share option scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.

194 ESERRAERZAE Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B R M ot
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12 A 31 H 31 December 2021

34, EBIGESTE 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ARABF20195F A —HBRE ([ &
RAFBEMBEESS ] UAKE
B ERERNELERMNABERSHE
EREHBLER - ERAREEANRB
Bt Elc B ERSRERERARAE
ERAEEEMBES -

BIRARBEERERERT SR 201954
HeBAER - w2020 1 A 16 BEm °

BFARBAIMNEZEREGEARE 1T
% BHBRENZHARELHE R
TORMEEH - B IERERNTTE AR
HEMNE—EAFBEEHRRRE=EERE
BF B BIBFE AR EATERE
RN EOEREZTEERE AR
REEB (202051 B16 HA1.93787T)
#950% 2= 70% °

R A 3 B T B AR B B 3

MR G E LR -

FARBEERAFEEE B E

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2019 (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operation. Eligible participates of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme include the Company's directors and other employees of
the Group.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 6 April 2019
and expired on 16 January 2020.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMB1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the granted
options commences from the respective first vesting date up to the
fifth anniversary date of it. The exercise price of each option granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be 50% to 70% of the
final offer price (i.e. HK$1.93 on 16 January 2020).

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-IPO

AT 2 BT Share Option Scheme during the year:
20214 2020
2021 2020
In#EF 5 NS

TEE BREHAE 1TEE  EREHAE
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options  exercise price options
BT TR BT TA%
HKS$ ‘000 HKS {0[00]
»1A1H At 1 January 1.1265 70,550 1.1486 79,500
HR A8 Uk Forfeited during the year 1.3510 (5,050) 13224 (8,950)
®12A31H At 31 December 1.1092 65,500 1.1265 70,550

HE 2021 F K 202012 B31 HIEFE
BB I i TE -

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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34, BBIGRESTEI( 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

MNEEHR  MARTECEBREZ/TE The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
BRITERNT outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BREEE THEE TFEH
Number of share options Exercise price  Exercise period
2021 5 2020 4F BRABTT
2021 2020 HKS per share
39,100,000 39,100,000 0.9650 16-01-2020 & 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
7,700,000 7,700,000 1.2545  16-01-2020 % 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
8,750,000 11,700,000 13510 16-01-2020 % 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
- 1,000,000 13510 10-07-2020 2 09-07-2025
10-07-2020 to 09-07-2025
- 1,100,000 13510 15-07-2020 & 14-07-2025
15-07-2020 to 14-07-2025
1,400,000 1,400,000 13510 17-07-2020 & 16-07-2025
17-07-2020 to 16-07-2025
1,150,000 1,150,000 13510 31-10-2020 2 30-10-2025
31-10-2020 to 30-10-2025
1,200,000 1,200,000 13510 18-11-2020 % 17-11-2025
18-11-2020to 17-11-2025
1,400,000 1,400,000 13510 04-03-2021 % 03-03-2026
04-03-2021 to 03-03-2026
1,600,000 1,600,000 13510 04-05-2021 2 03-05-2026
04-05-2021 to 03-05-2026
1,600,000 1,600,000 13510  01-07-2021 £ 30-06-2026
01-07-2021 to 30-06-2026
1,600,000 1,600,000 13510 14-08-2021 & 13-08-2026

14-08-2021 to 13-08-2026

65,500,000 70,550,000
HZE2001F12A31BILFE - AEERE The Group recognised a share option expense of RMB15,751,000
R AR 15751,0007T (2020 (2020: RMB33,774,000) during the year ended 31 December 2021.

£ AR 33,7740007T) °

196 ESZERRAERZAF  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B R M ot
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12 A 31 H 31 December 2021

34. IR E (2 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
BRESBEHFRAOT : The share option vesting method is as follows:

B IR T REER
HEER S Z
REHETL

Maximum

percentage of
underlying shares
in respect of

the options

Vesting date may be vested
REFESE R ((HASERH ) B Rz #NERAREE

EREREBANAEBFARN S 20%

At any time on or after the relevant vesting date (the “Relevant Vesting Date”) to the date

immediately before the first anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date
PR ERBEEAFRE B2 BNEMK/HE

EEEFERBERNE _ERFHA2 B E
At any time on or after the date falling on the first anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to the

date immediately before the second anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date 20%
MIARE R E B B —(ERF B E Bl R EMASREZE

ZEEEREB RS =ERAFHA 2 B H
At any time on or after the date falling on the second anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to

the date immediately before the third anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date 20%
RIEFESRE R E=(ERF R E B RNEMAFHEE

EREHEREERNENERF AT B E
At any time on or after the date falling on the third anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to the

date immediately before the fourth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date 20%
PSR R RAENERES A R RN ERRKEZR

EREERBERHNERFEREFHATZ B
At any time on or after the date falling on the fourth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to

the date immediately before the fifth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date 20%
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RIMERKR - BRIEE A AREERER
HEETEl AR B A 65,500,000 19 18 AR TT
FHERE - REAQFBEFERE
T BEATERARITE 2 BRI E
2517 65,500,000 % A~ B RE AN E i A% K BR
N A(MBETAIN) ARE
59,301,000 7T (F2& 7 72,655,000 8 7T) °

RZSMEREAEBE  BEEGBIA
MEESmBRESTE A2AFEA
65,550,000 {7 (M AR AT {58 2 B A - H915 7R
NaElE BB BEITRMDAY1.25% °

A EENAREE RIBEFENEESE
REBREARREDELT -

(@) EEERRFEE

WRIE R B~ ADE M R B R L HO B
BARMABEREMAA - ZHEBEN
BRRARTEARETER &
10% HOBR ¢ 12 A1 K1) 88 2205 7 28 PR fet
B BEERMBERESDH 500% i
B - R BUER MR
BARMABERAAMESETR
B REBBREEA AR HEER
FE R A (EEBIR AT
BLN205%FEMER) - AR
ARERIBONAIMAE - BT
ERBEEREDIK -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 65,500,000
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
65,500,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of RMB59,301,000 (equivalent to HK$72,655,000) (before
issue expense).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 65,550,000 share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, which represented approximately 1.25% of the
Company's shares in issue as at the date.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, each of
the relevant subsidiaries is required to appropriate 10% of its
net profits after tax, as determined under the PRC generally
accepted accounting principles, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
relevant subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be
used either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase the
share capital provided that the balance after such conversion
is not less than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve
cannot be used for purposes other than those for which it is
created and is not distributable as cash dividends.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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35. {#E &)

(b)

(c)

(d)

mERE
RERBEIRBEAEENR
1 e

REARDKE QB ERNE
BB AD K

[ f A R E R MR A A DK
EASE MR BEEAWEHE QA
AR EA A THRE -

%

BEXR{#E
ARE B Y E A e 1 WU R R
mEE R

35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserve arising pursuant to the
reorganisation.

Distribution to then equity owners of subsidiaries
upon the reorganisation

Distribution to the then equity owners of subsidiaries
represents the consideration paid by the Group to the equity
owners in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries pursuant to
the reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The Group's capital reserve represents the gain or loss arising
from the acquisition of non-controlling interests.
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36. AEEAFERESNE D 5
BZHMBATE

TREJNAEEHRBEEANFERE R
([Efp s ) B A RN FE - TX
BENVHERRE B R R E K HE

have

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following table lists out details of the Group's subsidiaries that

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised

financial information disclosed below is before any inter-company

3 o eliminations.
%
EBEHR  EEARY RRESRISE
Chengdu
Fuyang Project Dongguan Huijing Xichang
Xinggang*  Companies* East Automobile Shugao*
2021 2021 F 2021 20204 20204
2021 2021 2021 2020 2020
ARETT AR¥Tr ARETr ARETT ARETRH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FFERERA AL NCI percentage 49% 49% 59.2% 59.2% 60%
DEEIEREZMER Profit/(loss) for the year

wkl/ (F8) allocated to NC| 149,838 170,491 (1,494) (2763) 183514
RiRE BRI ERE) Accumulated balances on NCI

2t iEH atreporting date 198,838 231,021 350,793 95,627 188483
Wz Revenue 1,568,827 1,531,461 - - 1,513,350
FalEEg Total expenses (1,263,035)  (1,183,519) (2,524) (6,206) (1,207,494)
FREH/(E8) Profit/(loss) for the year 305,792 347,942 (2,524) (6,206) 305,856
ER2EMA(EB)  Total comprehensive income/(loss)

k] for the year 305,792 347,942 (2,524) (6,200) 305,856
REEE Current assets 674,651 714,495 384,938 316453 577,581
FERBEE Non-current assets 163,402 2,246 1 2 91
mBEE Current liabilities (475,218) (344,767) (30,204) (179,847) (263,534)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities = = = - -
BEEEMMBARE  Net cash flows used in operating

pees-] activities 6,713 17,332 (232,122) - (569)
BRETHMARESAE  Netcash flows used in investing

EEE activities (10,004) - (182,225) - -
BEZHMEHEERE  Netcash flows from financing

RER activities - - 424,946 61327 -
BeRBRE5EY Net increase/(decrease) in cash

B/ (5 ) $58 and cash equivalents (3,291) 17,332 10,599 61,327 (569)
# AEBRFAWESEEE « KEBLE # The Group acquired Fuyang Xinggang, Chengdu Lida Real Estate

EEMZEERARE LGS FTHE
BEEERAR(LEIKEER AF])
(Mf3E37) »

* FAEERFAHEREHSFBEME *
BRAR (AR (HFE38)

200 CES#EMAR/AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited

Development Co,, Ltd and Pujiang Gaoyu Zhongxinhai Real Estate Co.,
Ltd (together as “Chengdu Project Companies”) during the year (note
37).

The Group disposed of Xichang Shugao Property Development
Company Limited (“Xichang Shugao”) during the year (note 38).
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(a)

EBE6t

BE2021F 12831 BLEE
R2021F4H30H  REEE—F
BUE=—FTRBEBSGEERNS1%
IRFERT T iR EE R - IR R
EEAEESE2ENMEBEETE
THIRE o WHESEAKE - BISEBK
BAEENIEZEWBAR - B5
EBTENTENEYEME R
B WEHE - ZERH - EER
TR -BEEEMNBERERAE S
AR ¥ 51,000,000 7T ©

R2021F5 21 B » REBEB
FoITHWENEIEE ARISERN
S1% MR SEE W - Bt - K
EEEKEIEE QA F/HEREEE)
TSR - WHESER T - EBIR
BRI ARSENIEZENBR
Al e NEPEE AR EBRPRKE
WERAERIBEYEEERSE - R©
REEE REYEIER - KEIEE
NAIMBEERERATR AR
63,000,000 7T, °

(a)

Business Combinations
For the year ended 31 December 2021

On 30 April 2021, the Group entered into an equity interest
transfer agreement with an independent third party for the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in Fuyang Xinggang,
pursuant to which the Group can exercise control over the
relevant activities of Fuyang Xinggang. Upon the completion
of the acquisition, Fuyang Xinggang became a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Fuyang Xinggang is principally
engaged in property development and sale, property leasing,
construction design, decoration and engineering in the PRC.
The purchase consideration for Fuyang Xinggang was in the
form of cash of RMB51,000,000.

On 21 May 2021, the Group entered into capital injection
agreements with independent third parties for the
acquisitions of 51% equity interest in each of Chengdu Project
Companies, pursuant to which the Group can exercise control
over the relevant activities of the Chengdu Project Companies.
Upon the completion of the acquisitions, the Chengdu Project
Companies became non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group. The Chengdu Project Companies are principally
engaged in property development and provision of property
management services in the PRC and in total have five
property projects in Chengdu. The aggregate purchase
consideration for the Chengdu Project Companies was in the
form of cash of RMB63,000,000.
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37. WEBMIB T ( 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) ¥BKE0E) (a) Business Combinations (Continued)
BZ2021F 12831 BLEFEE(E) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)
ZEBEENKEB BN HAEE The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these
REEOAFEENT : entities as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
B
ERES =N
Chengdu
Fuyang Project
Xinggang Companies Total
ik AR¥TRt AR%®Tn AR%TxR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W - BB MR Property, plant and equipment 13 770 12 782
KEYE Investment properties 14 162,427 - 162,427
R—FRBECERNKE  Investmentin an associate - 5,500 5,500
BILFRIBEARE Deferred tax assets 32 14,319 11,652 25,971
EEmE Properties under development 871,603 1,221,758 2,093,361
BEHENDRIYWE  Completed properties held for sale 444,616 = 444,616
BFOE - EfbEY Prepayments, other receivables
FHENEMEE and other assets 455,257 865,520 1,320,777
Be kRSB Cash and cash equivalents 20,930 32,004 52,934
B SRR Trade payables (316,013) (185,627) (501,640)
HihERFIE - 24 Other payables, deposits and
N BB accruals (53,200) (77,496) (130,696)
ANaRE Contract liabilities (1,486,390)  (1,736,574)  (3,222,964)
RIEFAAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 (14,319) (13,220) (27,539)
BAFEHBRAA A Total identifiable net assets at
BEFEER fair value 100,000 123,529 223,529
RS Non-controlling interests (49,000) (60,529) (109,529)
51,000 63,000 114,000
DR Satisfied by:
He Cash 8,000 - 8,000
ST At FE IR Consideration payable included
JERAE in other payables 43,000 63,000 106,000
51,000 63,000 114,000

202 CESHEMAR/AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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37. WEBMIEB ] (&) 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) EBEE/(E) (a)
BE2021F 12831 BLEEE(E)
HAKBEZEEENRSREDN

Business Combinations (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of

J{UIN these entities is as follows:
X &P
EGER BH AT #st
Chengdu
Fuyang Project
Xinggang Companies Total
ARETR ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HeERE Cash consideration (8,000) - (8,000)
IR & RiR1TRE % Cash and bank balances acquired 20,930 32,004 52,934
REEBERSE Net inflow of cash and cash
RENRENEESE equivalents in cash flows from
EBYRAFE investing activities 12,930 32,004 44,934

PUEE HH - A EUGRIERN R FE
BEA ARM1320777,0007T ° Hith
ERFTENANBEEAARYE
1,320,777,000 7T ©

B UREDAZE - REEEE 2021 4F 12
A3 BEFENRERZENBA
AIFTER R G R TN B AARE
1,568,827,000 7T 2 A R #& 431,686,000
T o

WMEHREBNET XNFEDN
AEBWZ R AEBEF 5 5
A AR #5309290,0007T & A RE
503,318,000 7T

The fair values of the other receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB1,320,777,000. The gross
contractual amounts of other receivables were
RMB1,320,777,000.

Since the acquisition, the Group's revenue and consolidated
profit contributed by these subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2021 were RMB1,568,827,000 and RMB431,686,000,
respectively.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
period, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group
for the year would have been RMB5,309,290,000 and
RMB503,318,000, respectively.
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(a)

EKadt(E)
HE2020F 12831 BLEE

R2020F12 A108 » K& B 55
MNE=ZRIDEEHE R BITE
Wi WEMEB EFEMRES
RAR([EERE]  AE#E Rk
FIMNT K EEHEREERAAS
B 40% A - R - AEE &
LW E R I R ETEETT
I HliE - RUEETTKIE - RSB
WERARIKARNEERIEZENEB
DA ZEWBBE AR ETEEFE
HEMERERIERYEEER
%o FWHESENEEERER
He AREE 27,131,000 7T °

R2020F 12838 AEBE—F
BN E= AR EEER—
BITE % - ARBE IR 2 7k 40%
AR iE - B - AEB R ERIRE K
BB 7% R A8 VR B A TR I il o 1A
IR - RS KK AAER
RIEEEWBAR - RIREXKEE
FHENEMEBRRRERYEE
BRS - RIREXKHNBEREAR
& AR 13,841,0007T ©

(a)

Business Combinations (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

On 10 December 2020, the Group entered into capital
injection agreements and acting in concert agreements with
independent third parties for the acquisitions of a 40% equity
interest in each of Xichang Shuxin Property Development
Company Limited (“Xichang Shuxin”), Xichang Shugao and
Bazhou City Yongzheng Property Development Company
Limited, pursuant to which the Group can exercise control
over the financial and operating activities of these acquired
companies. Upon the completion of the acquisitions, these
acquired companies became non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group. These acquired companies are principally
engaged in property development and the provision of
property management services in the PRC. The aggregate
purchase consideration for these acquisitions was in the form
of cash of RMB27,131,000.

On 3 December 2020, the Group entered into a capital
injection agreement and an acting in concert agreement with
an independent third party for the acquisition of 40% equity
interest in Dongyuan Changyong, pursuant to which the
Group can exercise control over the financial and operating
activities of Dongyuan Changyong. Upon the completion of
the acquisition, Dongyuan Changyong became a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Dongyuan Changyong is
principally engaged in property development and the
provision of property management services in the PRC. The
purchase consideration for Dongyuan Changyong was in the
form of cash of RMB13,841,000.

ESIERRARR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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37. WEHEB AR &) 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) EBE/HE) (a) Business Combinations (Continued)
BZ2020F 12831 HLEFEE (&) For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)
ZETREMNUE MR EE The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these
REEOAFEET : entities as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
GiELIE)
Xichang
Shugao
RMB'000
0E  BERR Property, plant and equipment 13 70 91 350 - 511
RENE Investment properties 14 - - - 72938 72,938
BRHEEE Deferred tax assets E)) 2000 12267 - - 14267
EENE Properties under development 479224 1248141 318,545 - 2045910
BELENDBINE  Completed properties held for sale - - - 241289 241289
ZHRUER Trade receivables - - 2618 - 2618
BRE - EhhEl Prepayments, other receivables
TEREREE and other assets 199092 531758 55908 100700 887458
BeRBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 49850 20992 29090 13332 113,264
B S ENER Trade payables (51815) (26,287) - 732) (78834)
HtERFE R Other payables, deposits and
RIEEBA accruals (192,078) (120777) (423) (67.498) (380,776)
AHERE Contract iabilties (460,343) (1,640527) (358,125) (307,824) (2,766819)
STEBOREMER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - - - (9.900) (9900)
EEREEE Deferred tax liabiliies 3 (3,000) (12825) (15,969) (7.702) (39496)
BATEFIERNTE Total identifiable net assets at
HIEEFELS fairvalue 23,000 12833 31,99 34603 102430
FERRER Non-controlling interests (13800 (7,700) (19,196) (20762) (61459)
9,200 5133 12,798 13841 40972
BARBIAARA - Saticfied by:
Be Cash 9200 5133 12,798 13,841 40972
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37. WEBKIB 28] (&)
EKadt(E)

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) (a) Business Combinations (Continued)
HZE2020F 12831 HIEFE (&) For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)
FRNEZSERBNRSRESN An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of
wm these entities is as follows:
fElE  EEHRE ¢ FEEK
Xichang Xichang Bazhou Dongyuan
Shuxin Shugao Yongzheng Changyong Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RERE Cash consideration (9200) (5133) (12799) (13841) (40972)
FUEESRBELZEY  Cashand cash equivalents acquired 49,850 20992 29,090 13332 113264
FAREERHMERS Netinflow of cash and cash
MENRERREE equivalents included cash flows
BURATE from investing activities 40,650 15,859 16,292 (509) 72292
RUEBE - B EIKRERESR R HA The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
EWESHATFEL R ABARE as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB2,618,000 and
2,618,0007T & A R # 887458000 RMB887,458,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts
TT o B 5 FE AR 3 % E i JE UK AR 3K of trade receivables and other receivables were RMB2,618,000
K& RS B B AR 2618000 and RMB887,458,000, respectively.
TT R AR #5 887,458,000 7T, ©
B U PAZR - NS B# ZE 2020 12 Since the acquisition, the Group's revenue and consolidated
A3 BIEFENRGEEZERER profit contributed by these subsidiaries for the year ended 31
RIFTEROEE RN RIRARKE December 2020 were RMB2,089,835,000 and RMB346,267,000,
2,089,835,000 7T } A R 346,267,000 respectively.
7—_]:' o
ME R EVHET  REBREZE Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
20 N ANALEFENRER the revenue and the profit of the Group for the year ended 31
&= M 9 Bl A A R % 5,153,233,000 December 2020 would have been RMB5,153,233,000 and
TR AREE 740,474,000 7T © RMB740,474,000, respectively.
(b) WEFEREBNHEAT (b) Acquisition of subsidiaries that does not constitute
businesses
R2021F6 A28 H » REBEBFT On 28 June 2021, the Group entered into share transfer
FE=FEI R ERE G - ABR agreements with independent third parties to acquire 80%
B AR #88,000000 T WERTE equity interests in Dongjiang River Galleries at an aggregate
R H) 80% A% A - BT EERH B consideration of RMB88,000,000. Dongjiang River Galleries is
EWERE - WER2021F7H6 engaged in property development in the PRC. The acquisition
B5ERK - REERH - B was completed on 6 July 2021. As at the date of acquisition,
BEETHRIN T ERIERET Dongjiang River Galleries had not carried out any significant
FAEREBRS - Alt - A&E business transactions except holding certain land parcels in
1S A BRS B —TH B E I - the PRC. Accordingly, the acquisition had been accounted for
by the Group as an acquisition of assets.
206 CESIEMARR/AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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38. HEME QT 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
20214
2021
AR%ET
Notes RMB’000
HENUTSENEESE Net assets disposed of:
Y - BB &EE Property, plant and equipment 13 344
KB Investment properties 14 71,900
BELEND R IME Completed properties held for sale 340,721
FEME AR SR T Land held for development for sale 19 7,125
B 5 R Trade receivables 2,907
TENTFRIR  H At fE WRIE & Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Ht&E 509,262
HERESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 51,588
B S EMEER Trade payables (183,504)
Hip N RIE - e NESTER Other payables, deposits and accruals (183,665)
aHaE Contract liabilities (117,437)
STRIRTT M EMERK Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (10,098)
EFTETEE Provision for corporate income tax (37,068)
T IE(E R Provision for land appreciation tax (748)
JEFERR = Non-controlling interests (281,253)
ELEFHIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 (15,024)
155,050
HEWB AR E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 82,419
EFDEEN—REEBDLEMIRE  Reclassification to investment in a joint venture (43,137)
194,332
DER Satisfied by:
Tk Cash 125,603
AT AE A FE IR A FE B Consideration receivable included in
other receivables 68,729
194,332
RekReEEMRNFESTEAT ¢ An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents is as
follows:
#st
Total
ARETIT
RMB'000
RERE Cash consideration 125,603
FThE /BECHGEES ARNE S & Cash and bank balances disposed of/deconsolidated
RITREER (51,588)
FFAREESMEReRENE SR Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in
HeSEMRAFE cash flows from investing activities 74,015
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39. HRAERERERMEE 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) FEIBEEXS (a) Major non-cash transactions
FER o NEEERB B ABE During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
ERMNERAREEREEaEY use assets and lease liabilities of nil (2020: RMB2,494,000) and
JEIE 2 05 B A (20204F © A nil (2020: RMB2,494,000), respectively, in respect of lease
R 2494000 70) B (20204 :© A arrangements for office premises.

ER#52494,0007T) °

(b) REIDELNEESRD (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

35 FTEST
HESE BEENE REAMER
Interest-
bearing
Amounts LELLENT
Lease due to other
liabilities directors Senior notes borrowings
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R202051 818 At 1 January 2020 10372 62442 - 2,059,010
MER% Interest expenses 331 - - -
HHE New leases 2494 _ _ _
KB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Mt37) (note 37) - - - 9,900
RERSREES Changes from financing
HEE cash flows (6,307) (62,442) 901,907 (172,770)
fE 5 R Exchange realignment 407 - (30,575) -
72020612 831 B K& At31 December 2020 and
2021118 1 January 2021 7,297 - 871,332 1,896,140
FEFY Interest expenses 306 - - -
BEBELREES  Changes from financing
o2 cash flows (5,748) - 31,881 1705617
HEWBAR Disposal of subsidiaries
(it 38) (note 38) - - - (10,098)
R Exchange realignment 157 - 12717 4,582
R2021E 128318 At 31 December 2021 2,012 - 915,930 3,596,241
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39. IR RERERMT @ 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(¢ HEBESARHBELE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
SFAREREXRZHEHERSREE The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
FEAOR cash flows is as follows:
20214 2020
2021 2020
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEEA Within financing activities 5,748 6,307
40. FEER 40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES
RREHIR » NREBEAR A FREER The Group had the following financial guarantees as at the end of

the reporting period:

20215 20204
2021 2020

AR®TRT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

MAAEFEYER FRER Guarantees given to banks in connection
ZiEgNE MIRITHER with mortgage facilities provided to
customers of the Group's properties 3,588,717 4,516,730
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210

e

AEERETRITARNEEFEHENRT
MEZPEUNRIBRERTER - RIFE
REBHEF - MEPRBAOSNRBHE A
AEEERBEEENTPRNRITHRER
BB E KA FILS R &3 o

RiE a2 BE - AR EER TIRITIERR

BERNERD  BEEFPENNRIBN
g RITEREBEEAEER  THBEBA

FInEETE R -

AEENERABRDERRBERLEES
MESHHRECYEMBREZL  BFA
REFPHANBDER —EMEFR -

RAFE  RNEELERSE T AEBERFE
HERTMEZPHRIBRE MIRHAIHER
BERELETAEABER - ARAEZERR
T3 4915 3R AR RR D 26 /0 AT B2 3R R B K = A
EEREERIE ﬁ§£$i&{£ﬁf§+ﬂ§ &
50 F I ERERERIEDERAE

HREAREBEEITREMERNEERKT
ZFE B BEHmERMEE19 20~ 21
290

Note:

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the customers of the Group's completed properties held for
sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default
on mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued
interest and penalties owed by the defaulted customers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the
banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage
repayments by these customers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the start of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the customers take possession of the relevant
properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect of the
guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to customers of the
Group's completed properties held for sale. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, in case of default on payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage
loans principals together with any accrued interest and penalties and
accordingly, no financial liability has been made in connection with these
guarantees.

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are included in notes 19, 20, 21 and 29 to the financial
statements.
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42, RiE 42. COMMITMENTS

REBRRERRES AT ERFEYE The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EETAERERE Contracted, but not provided for:
EEME Properties under development 1,691,648 1,339,627
R EME Investment properties under construction 168,640 122,520
FHRWENBAREE T Purchase of land through acquisition of
subsidiaries 578,040 491,790
2,438,328 1,953,937
43. AR S 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BEBHRREMM TR S (a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the
N REBNANE S B T HET financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
TR S with related parties during the year:
2021 F 2020 4F
2021 2020
AR¥F T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
fRImtE e AR HIR AR Companies controlled by Mr. Lun Ruixiang:
FREERR Construction costs 16,988 17,877
WAEHERSE Office rental expenses 1,838 2,248
EEBMRY Management fee expense 24,561 14,499
BEBIRA Management fee income 398 405
HABRX Consulting fee expense = 3,505
HEMRX Selling expense 34,419 3,100
KR Operating expense 17,200 3,400
BEDE: Joint venture:
FLEMA Interest income 13,034 16,653
ZEZ SR IEE LRI TS K These transactions were carried out in accordance with terms
IR E I T - and conditions in accordance with the terms mutually agreed

by both parties.
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43.

44.

45.

212

B A X 5 ()

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) AEETEEEASNEHE (b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

20215 2020 F

2021 2020

AR¥T T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

e R NEYEA Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 14,897 14,672

BIBIEAL Discretionary bonuses 1,921 20,517

VARR 1 45 5 ) B AR I A =2 Equity-settled share option expense 7,633 15,960

RS E MR Pension scheme contributions 525 179
IRHTFEEEEAEN Total compensation paid to key

mERE management personnel 24,976 51,328

FARESH e E — P RENY
BmARMIEES o

EERES2HNEmMTA

R2021 FE 202012 A31 8 » BIRAF
Bt \ERZeREERATETE
Hh AEBRBEcREERAEBY A
REER AR eREERSRHAE -

;ﬂIEmQ$E&Q$EE
w

2021 F K& 2020F 12 A31 A - AEES
MIAMNKREEFRZAFESARR
TREENBEZRBIN BEERNTESE
M o

EEENE ENKE —KAELEN
EWGRIA - B 5 EUKER - 5T ATERK
B HEMERKENEBEENTRE
E R RBITES EHRMEX
FRARMENRENEREE  SWIZ
& NEFTEM - T ERITREME KA
MMy MBI MBAREIE - ZFTANR
FEEHKREERS

44.

45.

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other than the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair value, all
financial assets and liabilities of the Group were financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments, other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and senior notes, reasonably approximate to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of receivable from a
joint venture, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash and bank
balances, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, deposits received and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.
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AEBETBMTAQATVEAERREARRF
MY BRETENRAMEHEEE
Ee AAMBHEERAEFRWFEE
HeNBZIREBD 2RV KLESH
TENBEEZFHETON  WREME
RANEZRZHABE - HELRBER
BI5 B BIE o

HAEEREGRE MR RRAILIELAR
FTEFENEERBE  FTERITEHE
S FGER BB o MEEEEEE A FE
S WEEBTAEIN - BAEBATF
BEAARE9168860007T (20204 : AR
#5897,8950007T) * WEEBERF 14

TREENBENATEREBRS T
Z B ERR 5 (GREHFR T ERIN)
PR RGBT ANSEAR -

TOTDERBRIIBIEGETAFHE

STBIRITRHEAMER Z FEENEHB OB A
FEDEBIZABUGS - EERR RF
FREIHARF R LA E B A ot T B IR 2 ARIR
RARRTEHRRIBEMEFTHE © R 2021
FER220F1N2ANE AEBEHEH
ST EERTT R EME R 2 KB A A B 3 AT
HAETEKR Bt BRTREMERD
ERBH D AFEEEREERS -

EABRAREZ R FETIERTISRE
BE -FLTESREZAFEEB
HERERRZEERABRAERE
EHERYE RELHEFEELE
EeARREERR  ABERMAE
hZ EEr A FEGAZRABBIRRR)
RAFERBES(GTAER)BAE
ARAmERREEEZMGEE -

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

For the Group's assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position, the carrying amounts of
the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximated to their fair values and were determined
as Level 3, and the fair values of the senior notes were
RMB916,886,000 (2020: RMB897,895,000) and were determined as
Level 1.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group'’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was assessed to
be insignificant and the fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on their
quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted fund investments
are based on adjusted net assets approach by adjusting the book
value of assets and liabilities of the investees to their fair value. The
directors of the Company believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.
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45. RITEAMAF{ER2FEE 45. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

|om)
AT RIFLTESREBENERTA
BRBAREBHE -

R A

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Set out below is a summary of the significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of unlisted fund investments:

FEMEGHRE RARFEER

BEATAEHERABE 202145
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2021
WIRE QA EERBERN 176,568 405,514
FEERABRZEATE
(AR®TFT)

Unlisted fund Adjusted net asset
investments approach

WRERANEERBBEZ A FEE
A% BEBGEEMESRED
NFEE MR AR 1,76600070
(2020%F © AR 4,055,0007T) °

RER > RAFEFEEF=ANESHN

Book value of assets and liabilities
of the investees adjusted to
their fair value (RMB'000)

A 1% increase/decrease in the fair values of assets and liabilities of
the investees would result in an increase/a decrease in the fair value
of the unlisted fund investments of RMB1,766,000 (2020:
RMB4,055,000).

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during

T~ the year are as follows:
2021 20204
2021 2020
AR%T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1A1H At 1 January 405,514 -
RE(HE) Additions/(disposals) (148,077) 359,428
REHERN AT EZE Change in fair value recognised in the
profit or loss (54,871) 46,086
M 5 AR Exchange realignment (25,998) -
R12A31H At 31 December 176,568 405,514
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45, ?Eﬂlﬂﬂ'ﬂﬁ$1§&ﬁ$ﬁ@
ll&(/,{/?%)
DNFEER
TRETAEEERTIAZ AVERE
B4R

BAFENENEE :
R202112 A31H

ARBETR
RMB’000

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’'s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

ERATIREZAVENE

Fair value measurement using

RWERTS
ZRE
Quoted prices
in active

ERTER
BARE

Significant

BERTAHE
BAHE
Significant
unobservable
inputs
(B=#)
(Level 3)

observable
inputs
(=)
(Level 2)

markets

(B—&)
(Level 1)

BATER A B Financial assets at fair value
JEREE through profit or loss
— kAR E — Listed equity investments,
BATE at fair value 56,251 = = 56,251
—HtEEmES — Other unlisted fund
BE BLTE investments, at fair value - = 176,568 176,568
56,251 - 176,568 232,819
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45. RITEAMAF{ER2FEE 45. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
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(@)

NFEEHE)
BAFENENEE - (&)
2020812 A31H

ARETT
RMB' 000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

ERTIRBEZ A FEAE

Fair value measurement using

IR 5
(-
Quoted prices

BAAE
BAZUR
Significant

BATAHR
BARIER
Significant

unobservable
inputs
(B=8)
(Level 3)

observable
inputs
(BE=®)
(Level 2)

in active
markets
PEE ok

(F—4)
(Level 1)

BATEE AB252  Financial assets at fair value
PREE through profit or loss
— ETRARE - — Listed equity investments,
BATE at fair value 89,324 - - 89,324
—HiFEFmES  — Otherunlisted fund
BE  &mATE investments, at fair value - - 405514 405,514
89,324 - 405514 494,838

A2021E R 2020512 A31 B » AREE
EAMEATEFENEHEE -

HZE2021F K 2020F 12 A31HLEFE -
TREERCHEBENERE—QALE
—HhREB IR AT ERE  EE
AT E =4 -

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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AEENTECHITABRFEABRITR
HiEFARRE RIRITHESR - ZF S
BTANTEENRAAEENEZE X
BEKES AKEEZRAMERME
ENBE WEFEYERRNEZEN
R DERELBRKEEK -

AEEeRMTAMEENTIRRERERE
MERERE - FERRRTBHESER -
EERaYRESABRERNEIER
R BEAMEHNTX -

A 2= m b
AEBAASZOTISMNEZSEE - =
E05 N BT MR I T 29 PR AN S B e A
BIRTT R EAAE IR - ANEE A EE BT
TR T AR RER - AEBERA
FRBITERREMEREREF B
o

R2021F 12 A31 8 @ WHERITREME
FRRIE AN,/ A 19% K P H A 2 4R
BAE  RIAREBREA SR (REILE
BEREFERR)BRTEEBRNTER
B L1849 A R 510,681,000 7T (2020
F: AR¥4,2330007T) °

EERR

AEEEHIERE  FEEEREHMT
ARSBERRENENERES - #R
TRTAEERRBMABERERZEAN
fEIE A0 o

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate
risk. The Group manages its interest cost using variable rate bank
borrowings and other borrowings.

At 31 December 2021, if the interest rate of bank and other
borrowings had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
held constant, the profit before tax of the Group (assuming no
capitalisation of interest expenses), through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB10,681,000 (2020: RMB4,233,000).

Creditrisk

The Group has established a policy to perform the assessment of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
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2REMEEEERBEK &) 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

BESRBRFLERND R
TEREHR12B31 BREAEEEFEER
RAEETNEEEZRMAXNESE
EEE (MIEEEMBEBZ MK ARETIE
BIA] ERIS BV & R - & R Th LA B & RHE
BRI URFELERFHDR -

FEdMeR AT REENRIAE -

2021%F 128318

AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is
mainly based on past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 December 2021

12{8A
BHGEEEE 2HRNEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Z1RE F2MER E3BE LA o
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARETR AR%T ARETR ARETR AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
RE—REELEN Receivable from a joint venture
JEe IR 160,256 - - - 160,256
B SRR Trade receivables - - 37,497 37,497
SHAFEMFIE  Ef6E  Financial assets included in
AR EER prepayments, other receivables
SEREE and other assets 465,450 = = = 465,450
He MRTRES Cash and bank balances 2,702,420 - - - 2,702,420
3,328,126 - - 37,497 3,365,623
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46. SRIEMETEEERBE & 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

ESREBEREERNSRE) Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
R2020512831H As at 31 December 2020

2HRHAEE
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F 1[5 F2RER F3BER B n%E st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARET:T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KE—RABLEN Receivable from a joint venture
JEUI R 258,121 - - - 258,121
Z FRIERR Trade receivables - - - 56,760 56,760

SHAFEMFUE  EMfE  Financial assets included in
WE R A EER prepayments, other receivables

PREE and other assets 155,843 - - - 155,843
Be REITEHS Cash and bank balances 2083723 - - - 2,083,723
2,497,687 - - 56,760 2,554,447
S E T HE RN A AN ZE B Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
fEWRTEN B EEN SR EE 1B assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
EE S L E 0 RIBE A ARG E as well as individual assessments on the recoverability of other
Hb pE U 2R IE By AT U B 1 o AN EE B3 1213 receivables based on historical settlement records and past
AIaHi =B EamRst \JaMZ%E & experience. The Group recognises an allowance for financial assets
HMEKRZEREMEENS MEER included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets based
& WHtATEM R mEsiE (g ) on 12-month ECLs and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic
1T o data, if any.
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46. SRIEAREEBEHEREE &) 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

REBELREK Liquidity risk

REEHNBEERREBEOMGSEE The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to
HERGRBEERRHESL K WK monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
VEEEwEE MRAEBEEEFEEN contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains
B UEMERBESTE - sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
REBSREBEUAASOKRMRELRE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
BEE(BIREA AN RS IENREH K the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted cash
WEFMRAEOFENT)) Rl EE R flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
HEEIRIER  UERAREEREEEER rates, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
MxFHEBNT the earliest date that the Group could be required to repay, is as

follows:

2021 F
2021
—FRE RE=Z
BRER REZF aE
Within In the In the
one year or second third to

on demand year fifth years Total

ARBTR AR®TT ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ZHEMNERR Trade payables 1,678,076 = = 1,678,076
STAEMEMZIA «  Financial liabilities included
Bl e kst in other payables, deposits

BREMNCREE received and accruals 407,931 - - 407,931
HEARE Lease liabilities 1,933 79 - 2,012
TBRTTREMIER  Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings 1,793,827 1,061,371 2,347,771 5,202,969
BERE Senior notes 982,716 - - 982,716
4,864,483 1,061,450 2,347,771 8,273,704
A BIER - Financial guarantees issued:
EEEREE Maximum amount guaranteed
(HfiF40) (note 40) 3,588,717 - - 3,588,717
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46. SRIEMETEEERBE & 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

RENVE SRR (E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
20204
2020
—FRY NE=EZR
REXR REZF RF
Within In the In the
one year or second third to
on demand year fifth years Total
AREFT ARBTTT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
E FENERR Trade payables 1,738,948 - - 1,738,948
STAEMEMZIE ©  Financial liabilities included
Bz kgL in other payables, deposits
EHNSHAE received and accruals 492,289 - - 492,289
HERE Lease liabilities 5,507 1972 - 7,479
SHRERITREMEF  Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 992,054 231,226 1,000,931 2224211
BERER Senior notes 980,248 - - 980,248
4,209,046 233,198 1,000,931 5443175

B HHBFBER - Financial guarantees issued:
SREREE Maximum amount guaranteed
(Kiat40) (note 40) 4,516,730 - - 4,516,730
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46. TRIEMBIEEAEREE &) 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

BEXREE
AEEEAEENTEBRRRELE
B EKL LMD RIRFFIRRNEARL
KA EEBRERGARRE
B~

AEBETHEAARE  THEREBLESR
ME B EENFAE - NEERGHEH
BRRERMSARE MR EERE g5
ITHRAE R A EARLEE - AEH
MEAEERZ BEIEFREZR
20212020 12 A3 HIFFEEIS I

= e

ANEBEFRFEERRBLR (AAEED
B FRER AR AR B B K - &5
FEBEBRITREMER ELE
BERHERERREEESEEYAR
ZREES - RIEHABNEERR
bR

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

2021 2020
2021 2020
ARET T

AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB'000

FHRIRIT R EAR R (HiE29)

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

(note 29) 3,596,241 1,896,140
BRER (KE30) Senior notes (note 30) 915,930 871,332
HEBE Lease liabilities 2,012 7,297
B IR MERTTA AR Less: Cash and bank balances (2,702,420) (2,083,723)
E1% 558 Net debt 1,811,763 691,046
e BRE Total equity 4,251,375 3,829,636
FEEABLE Net gearing ratio 43% 18%
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47. AR BB R 47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RS IR - RARBMBEARREZER 1
T

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 F 2020 4F
2021 2020
AREFT
RMB'000

AR®T R
RMB’000

EREEE NON-CURRENT ASSET
R—RWEBRARNIRE Investment in a subsidiary —* ¥
MBEE CURRENT ASSETS
BEATEFABEGSREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 132,910 155,476

TEM A ~ Hh e ERIE K Prepayments, other receivables and

HivEE other assets 14,537 66,738
FEUN & Bl A RI5RIE Amounts due from group companies 1,368,738 1,639,583
ReRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,267 2,656
MEVEEBE Total current assets 1,517,452 1,864,453
mEaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEMEMZIE  EliEE R Other payables, deposits received and accruals

EsrE A 2,376 47,354
BEEE Senior notes 915,930 871,332
FHESRITREAMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 74,846 -
mEBEETE Total current liabilities 993,152 918,686
MENEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 524,300 945,767
BEBERREDEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 524,300 945,767
BEFE Net assets 524,300 945,767
s EQUITY
BEITRAR Issued capital 47,972 47,972
() Reserves (Note) 476,328 897,795
1A Total equity 524,300 945,767

* SEONARE 00T ©

* The amount is less than RMB500.
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47. AT B EARRT 2

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
et - Note:
AEERBERBOT A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
R E BRERE E R e R EE
Share
Share option Exchange  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2020F1A1A8 1 January 2020 - 46,519 - (46,519) -
FRABELZEBELE  Lossand total comprehensive loss
for the year - - (82,363) (115,730) (198,093)
MRin B AL 31T Capitalisation issue of shares (40,776) - - - (40,776)
BITHRG Issue of new shares 1381584 - - - 1,381,584
A3 1T 2 Share issue expenses (66,535) - - - (66,535)
MRELEMBRIEL S Equity-settled share option
arrangements - 29,521 - 4253 33,774
19FHRIRE 2019 special dividend (212,159) - - - (212,159)
R2020F 1231 A At 31 December 2020 and
K2021F1A18 1 January 2021 1,062,114 76,040 (82,363) (157,996) 897,795
ERNEEREEEBAE  Lossand total comprehensive loss
for the year - - (19,326) (199,249) (218575)
DAL EMEBIEZ S Equity-settled share option
arrangements - 10,591 - 5,160 15,751
20 FRBRE 2020 final dividend (218643) - - - (218643)
R2021F 128318 At 31 December 2021 843471 86,6031 (101,689 (352,085) 476,328

48. ft/EM IR

48.

FBMERN2022F3F290B EESE

R RETIE
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APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 29 March 2022.
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